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hours, O/R was contacted b oOfficer
ontact with victim COOPER see re ort

On Friday, 1-6-84, at about 1045
R. SMITH #197 who informed me of his ¢
b SMITH). O/R contacted Ms. COOPER b hone & advised her to have sus ect
telephone O/R the next time he called her. Subse entl ¢+ O/R was contacted
b sus ect LEWIS by phone. O/R attem ted to have LEWIS release

allow her to o home. EBe claimed that he had no intention on hurtin her
but didn't know if he was going to allow her to leave and uestioned whether
or not he would be arrested. LEWIS wanted O/R to allow Ms. COOPER to come
and ick u. both he and O0/R told him that we could not allow
COOPER to do that. o/R sug ested he lace in a cab and send her
home. The conversation wag terminated, however he did call back and further
conversation ensued on the return of victim to her home,

At about 1330 hours, O/R and Det. VANLANDSCHOOT went to 537 Rin 8, NLV
in the event LEWIS would either a ain call COOPER or Teturn At
about 1335 hours, victim Came in the front door and related that
LEWIS had dropped her off and described the vehicle, etc.
report). Contact was made with LEWYS, and -the driver of the vehicle (MYERES)
at Doolittle & “H". Street, L.V. wﬁeké“tﬁﬁiS'yﬂéhqt- L OR,
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GT 0 NOR - G ME 1y
POLICE DEPARTME Qg
1301 E. LAKE MEAD BLVD. 84-177

L _CNRNENY o onot under smest for nor am 1 being detained for any

offenses concerning the events I am about to make known to__ Det. R. L. King §321

Without being accused of or questioned about any criminal offenses regarding the facts [ am about teer
the following information of my own free will for whatever purposes it may serve

Iam ; years of age and I live a4 537 Kings, NLV (642=7557

o: (NN culd you tell me in your own word

starting from about 2:00AM this morning and about 1l:4

when you were dropped off at your home by Bobby Lewis

A: 1Last night Bobby busted through the living room sid
1 was sleeping and he called Shirley (P cut ot
he told her to bring her old man (Willie Stevenson)} out
All the noise woke me up and I looked down the hall and
there in the hallway with a sawed-off shotgun. Then Bo
the room where I was and told Shirley that she was goin

Bobby over to his house.
Q: Did he say this in a way that you and GNP :clt threatened?

A: Yes, he was pushing me and he had that gun and he said he didn't
want to hurt anybody but he would if we didn’t do as he said. Then
Shirley drove me and@ Bobby over to his house. When we got there he
told her to get out too and said that she was going with us. He thought
scmeone called the police from the house and he wanted to make sure
that they weren't following him before he would let her go. Then after
he made sure the police wasn't around he let her go and took me in thF
house which is an old empty apartment near Van Buren Street where hée
stays. He still had the gun and there was an old raggeddy mattreds
there and he' made me get down on the mattress with him and he to -
to take my panties off and I did because I was afraid, he paid
didn't do it he would blow my head off because he had no |

1 hhji réad each page of this statement Consisting of_i__pége(;) m:h?;lgg‘;

c .ifmyibtumyinidilsl, and T cortify that the fatty coh -

-% fﬂupygpl. 515 hg . ‘

3]

L

-
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POLICE DEPARTMENT
City of North Les Veges

1301 €, Laks Mead Bivd. 84-177

Dats 1684 Page No. __ 2

STATEMENT ur:m

loose. He then had sex with me, and he c After he had sex with

me he just laid there and talked to g\f‘*pt the gun in his hand
saying he was going to kil me because he didn't want me to be with
another man and that he had nothing to live for. He talked me to
sleep until about nine or ten o'clock this morning when we went over
to some lady's house he knows, I don't knew her name or nothing but it
was an apartment somewhere in the projects. He called SN and
asked her if she called the police or anything and he made tell (I

@y th:t T vanted to be with him and stuff, but the only reason I
was telling her that was because he still had the gun on me. He told
her to call the police and drop the charges because if she didn't he
was going to kill me like he told her last night. We were at this
lady's house the whole time he was making the phone calls to—
and to you all. The lady didn't know anything was wrong hecause he
kept the gun under this big ole coat he was wearing, and she was in
ancther room during the ime he was calling. I was afraid to tell her
anything and he had her believing that everything was ok hetween the
two of us. I was scared t that she might have told him since they
were friends and everything and if she told him he may have pulled it
out and shot me right there, so I really didn't trust her to tell her
what was happen ng. Then after he talked to you about getting a cab
and taking me home we left the lady's apartment and went to some cld
man's apartment and he asked him if he would keep the gun for him and
he handed tc him and said he would be back to get it latter on. We
left and went over to where he stays and caught a ride with the guy
who brought me home. The guy didn't act like he knew what was ‘going

on only just giving me a ride home. *"That's about it.

Q: Were you in fear for your life during this entire iney” . %

3

ez Az Yes, I sure was, he's capable of doing anythin .
Form 2088 (1377 P
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STATEMENT OF: ~

Form 2058

POLICE DEPARTMENT
City of Nonih Las Vegs
1IN E. Lake Mead Blvd,

1-6-84

Date Page No.

Q: Why didn't you make some attempt to either get away from him or

to et someone know what was happening during all this ?

A: He wouldn't let me, he was always right beside of me and would
never leave my side. I may have been able to when I fell asleep but

when I woke up he was already awake too.

Would vou describe the gun Bobby had for me ?

A: It was long typ gun that locked like it was sawed ££f and it had
some white tape on the handle where scmeone had sawed it off at the
back of :t, I'm not amiliar with guns to say what kind it was or

anything.

Q: How long have you known Bobby Lewis and has he ever done anything

like this before ?

A: I've known him about a year, we used t go together but we been
broke up & coup e of months. Before Christmas he shot up into another
ladies house tryin to make me come out of there. Because I didn't
want to see him then either. He got arrested then by Metro. About a
year ago he shot a guy's eye out at the Brown Bomber because I wouldn't

leave with him then. He used a pistol that time.
Is there anything else you would like to add ?

A: That's about it except this scar on the left side of my face, he
did that with a little razor thing on a key chain because I wouldn't
leave with him then, T reported that to Metro downtown but nothing

happened. I do want to prosecute and go to court.

harn )L,
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS
POLICE DEPARTMENT
1301 E. LAKE MEAD BLVD g4-1

I, __Shirley Mae Cooper . 2m not unde, arrest for, nor am 1 being d am  for any criminal

offenses concerning the events T am about to make known to Det. R. L. King 43 1

Without being accused of or questioned about any criminal offensesrega dingthe.a~ts m  u tostate  vo unteer
the following informatior of my own free will, for whatever purp se it ma' erve

1am s vears of age, and I live ap 837 Kings, NLV {642-7557)

Q: Ms. Cooper, would you tell me in vour own words what oc rre

your home early this morning at about two o'clock AM until is

A:  About two o'clock I was in bed asleep and woke up by my daughter
Brenda Cocke and told me Bobby was out there 1: the livina room with

a8 gun and he was trying to come into my room. I went out there and

he was in(JUSEEER room and we all went int the living m angd he
said he was sorry about breaking the window and stuff but he had to do
it . He said he would let all the kids go in the back but he told me
that you better not let anyone call the police because he wantad to talk
to- He had short gun that locked liie a shetTun ané he just told
me that I was going to take -and Fim wheie he wanted to go. So I
put my shoes and coat on and got my purse cause he told me too but I took
my moneY out and put it under the mattress. So we got in the car, I was
driving, Bobby cot in the back seat and -got in the front with me
and all the time he had the gun. He said that if he had to hurt anyone
he would but he didn't want to. He asked if I had a dollar and I told
him po. We went to Hi-view market and he said no vou don't get out, let
-get out and get the cigarettes. We passed by Friendly Liguors
and he saw a dude which he said he should go in there and blow his head
off. (The guy that works there, he didn't actua ly see him). We went to
where he stavs there on Van Buren, We got out of the car he told me to
walk up to the corner to see if I saw Will driving by. I stood there for
a couple minutes than came to where they were. He then had me walk first

and then and he walked behind us around back of his apartment
I have read each page of this statement consisting of_2 page(s), each page of which bears my signature, and

corrections, if any oear my initials, and 1 certify that the facts contained herein are true and correct.

Dated at_ NLVPD 1550 hours , this, 6th day of January _gm84 .

WITNESS: (7 ;o ,

-7 . 7" Signature of felfon éivinﬁ Vol until-y'“
WITNESS: /f - M t32 | '
Form 2048 {12777} Vl .
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POLICE DEPARTMENT
City of Morth Las Vegs
1301 E. Lake Mend Bivd. 84-177

1-6-84

Date Page No.

STATEMENT OF: Shirley Cooper

and we stood there for a few minutes, we walk d back aro nd front and he
told m I could go. so I left and went home. He said that 1f he saw any

poiices chat would eocpardize my life and —1ife t . The police
came out to the h use and I told them what happened.

Q Were you in fear for your life 2

A: Yes, because he's besen going around shooting people and sheooting up

into people's houses and ¢ uff, He always seems to fing out where she's

atc.
Q: Does -ever see Bobby .t orilv
A: As a1 as tow sh 's been trying to stay away from him r r twvo

years or s .

Q: Do vou wish to prosecute Bobby ?

Is there anything else you would like to add to this statement ?

A: Every time he ges t 3 il f 1 sh otl1 g up into peoples houses and

stuff he always seem to get ut of it. He said that if he ever goes to

prison that he would get us—because we would be the two
key witnesses. . S P
X Sty oy

Form 20.58 12N
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h [ICE OF DENIAL OF REQUeST

CLARK GOUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY /1199
Supervisor: CAPT. J. MILLER Arrest Date. 1/6 84
Submitting Offlcer; ~ R. L. KING Date Rec'd. by D.A: ___1/12/84
Agency: NLVPD Data Typed: 116 84
in Custody:  Yes No XX Ball Date
DEFENDANT NAME: 1.D. NO. D.RJCIT. NO.
LEWIS, Bobby 131182 84-00177
CHARGE. POSSESSION SHOTGUN
REASON FORDENIAL: NQ_EVIDENCE OF LENGTH,
APPROVED: BURGLARY;1° KIDNAP W/WPN:2° KIDNAP W/WPN;SEXUAL

If any of the above legal defects can be gured by further nvestigation or other action by your personnel, the
District Attorney tecommends thal the request be resubmitied together wlith such information or other matter
which you believe will strengthen the case upon raconslderation

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DAVE SCHAWARTZ/sh
Daputy

‘DISTRIBUTION: .
WHITE — Addresses BLUE — DA, Lialson  GREEN — Metro Flacords  CANARY — Jail PINK— Jail GQLDENQOQ = Juitics
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When we ran back around to the front of the house, we ran into my father
beating my mother. I stood there and screamed; my friends ran away. It was

difficult to see my mother abused so much.

I didn’t have a good relationship with my father. If I could have gotten the gun
he kept under his mattress, I would have killed him. When I was nine, he
sexually a‘bused me. By the time I was twelve, my mother ran away from home
to escape his abuse of her. She left me and my siblings Johnnie, John, Georgia,
Rebecca, Shirley, Larry, Linda, and TJ alone with our father. My two older
sisters, Betty and Emma, had already moved to Las Vegas. Shortly after our
mother left, my father also left the home and told me to take care of my younger
brothers and sisters. He went to Las Vegas with my uncle JT. Things were bad

back then.

I dropped out of school to take care of the kids. My mother remained in Tallulah
and we saw her around town sometimes but she did not return home to take
care of us until she was sure my father was gone for good: about two years after
he left. My siblings and I survived because of a échool teacher in the
neighborhood, Ms. Viola. She took us around the back of stores, where we went
through the trash. People looked out for Ms. Viola helping us. Once, without
Ms. Viola, we went to the back of a store and they had left a whole crate of

chickens out there.

One day my mom, Jessie and my siblings, Jonnie, John, and Georgia were

5L

injured in a terrible accident after being picked up on a truck to go.’{vork. The

flz
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truck came around for people who wanted to work the cotton fields. Georgia
was around ten years old. Betty and her husband returned to Tallulah for a
while after the accident. When they went back to Las Vegas, they took me with
them. I was around thirteen at the time. I didn’t return to Tallulah until the
death of my mother and I haven’t returned since. My father returned to
Tallulah after the accident. He was supposed to come for my siblings but
instead he came for my stepmother, Shirley Beatrice, and took her back to Las

Vegas. At some point later, they returned for the kids.

After coming to Las Vegas, I stayed away from my family. I got married and
put my time into raising my four children. I never lived with my father and
stepmother. When my father was older and sick, he came back to Las Vegas
from Kansas City and stayed with me for about a month. My uncle JT brought
him to my home. There was nowhere else for him to go because everyone was

working. After a month, I said he had to go.

Marlo’s mother, Georgia, was a funny person who joked around but she had a
mean streak and fought a lot. She even beat our stepmother, Shirley Beatrice,
and was sent off to a girl's home. I remember Georgia’s pregnancies with Larry
and Darrell but I don’t know much about Marlo. Georgia worked hard to take
care of her boys. Marlo’s father, Bobby Lewis, was a good friend of my husband
but I don’t know about his relationship with Georgia because I wasn’t around
them. Georgia and I only became close in later years when we attended the

same church.
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Declaration of Bobby Gronauer
I, Bobby Gronauer, hereby declare as follows:

[ am seventy years old. I currently reside in Clark County, Nevada. I am a
retired sergeant with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department. I worked
the West Side of Las Vegas and am familiar with the areas where Marlo

Thomas was raised.

When I started working as a training officer in the early 1980s, the Gerson
Park area was really bad. Gun violence was at an all-time high. Shootings
happened all though the night and mother’s laid their children to sleep in
bathtubs for their safety. Police were shot at regularly. Domino’s Pizza would
not deliver and the fire deplartment would not answer a call without police
escort, The community was drug infested. People were dying daily. Kids didn’t
play outside and families were afraid to ieave their homes. It was a terrible

place to live.

There was a high presence of street gang activity in the area. Kids that grew
up in. Gerson Park were made to be part of the Gerson Park Kingsmen simply
because of where they lived. GPKs were born and raised. If kids got on the
school bus and were not wearing GPK colors, they were beaten. Kids as young
as five and six were beaten daily until they started wearing gang colors. There
was no-one to protect the kids. Most of the housing was single parent homes.

There were very few male figures in the community.

AA2416



4. In 1989 I implemented a pilot community policing program. As part of our
outreach efforts, police officers played football with gang members and local
kids. Families began to feel safer coming outside. The program was a success
but its success was short-lived. Not all my colleagues on the police force were
in support of the program and many told me I was going to get a cop killed over

there. After I left the program, things slowly deteriorated.

b. If T had been asked to testify at Marlo’s original trial in 1997, or his
resentencing in 2005, I would have agreed and told the jurors the things in this

declaration.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the
best of my knowledge, and that this declaration was executed in Clark County,

Nevada, on June Q:Z, 2017.

. - '
Bobby Ggyal{aué?
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Alark County Justice Lowrt]. .

NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP  CLERK

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

LARRY JAMES THOMAS,

Defendunt,

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

CERTIFICATION
District Court Case No. &/,25355 |

Justice Court Case No. 1181-94FN

il

the above case.

K

F I hereby certify the forcgaing to be a full, tree and coerect copy of the proceedings as the same appear in

WITNESS my hand this date: § January 1995

JON-SE
(Rev. 03/84)

. NRS QL1106

)

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE, Nurlh Las Viegas Township




A County Justice @purt

NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

TURNER
STATES EXHIBIT #1 & 2 admitted {(exhibit #1 returned to DA)

‘ CASE NO. 1181-94FN
STATE -vs- THOMAS, LARRY JAMES
SEXUAL ASSAULT (4 cts)
CHARGE STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION (3 cta)
LEWDNESS WITH A MINOR {2 cts
BAIL SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER 14 YEARS OF AGE (8 cts)
DATE, JUDGE
OFFICERS OF
COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES — HEARING CONTINUED TO:
Jan. 5, 1995 THIS IS THE TIME SET FOR PRELIMINARY BEARING
S5.J.Lahl, JP Deft PRESENT IN Court “NLV* Custody
L.Rojas, DA Defense Motion to exclude T.V. camera from Court and issue
W.Hans,CR a gag order....Denied
R.Archie/S.Walton | Defense MOtion to excude witnesses....GRANTED
Esq. STATE WITHNESSES: CHANEL JACKSON, ARLETHA SANDERS & ROSHANDA
Vi, Clerk

DA Lo provide entire contents of Diary fo defense - Lourt
suggests Diary be transcribed. Mr. Archie will stipulate
to chain of custody as Diary was returned to D.AL)

Exhibit #} was opened by Clerk for DA & Defense to review
DA & Mr. Archie stipulate the chain of custody to clerk
STATE RESTS

Defendant WAIVES right to testify/call witnesses
DEFENSE RESTS

Defense Motlon to disiiss
Count 2 ...DENIED
Defense MOiton to Dismiss
Defense Moticon to Dismiss
Defense Motion to Dismiss
Defense Motion to Dismiss
Defense Motion to Dismiss

Count 12....Denied
Defense Motion to Dismiss counts 13,14,15,16...cbj DA...Denig
Defense

3,4,5,6,7,...DENIED

8 &9...0bj DA...GRANTED

count 10....c0bj DA...Denhied
count 1l...no obj DA...Granted

counts 1 & 2... obj DA...Count 1 GRANTED

26}

Motion to Digmiss count 17...obk7 DA...Cenied
D FoLLon L [} ct—n:—r'"'rﬁ‘—zr;'—cmt'eﬁ.

< amen 5w (s] €0, e
THEREUPCH the Court ORDERED defendant bound over & held to
answer to said charge in the Eighth Judicial District Court

Court resets Bail at $55,000

Defense Motion to release deft on House Arrest...obj DA &
Motion to increase bail...argu by Mr. Archie

BAIL S$TANDS AT $55,000...Ct. 2,3,4 =5000 ea

Ct.5-0/R, Ct.6-5000, Ct. 7 - O/R, Cts. 10,12,13,14,15,16,17
$5000_ea

1-26-95 9aM DC13

Remanded NLV

JCH-1
Rev. 10/86

MINUTES — CRIMINAL

CASE NO.

1181-94FN (2§
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C@: County Fiistice @hurt

NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

‘ CASE NO, __ 1181-94FN
STATE -vs-  LHOMAS, LAPRY JAMES
CHARGE SEXUAL ASSAULT (4 ¢ ts)
STATUTORY_SEXUAL, SEDUCTION (3 cts)
BAIL LEWDNESS WITH A MINOR {2 cts)
SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER 14 YEARS OF AGE (8 cts)
DATE, JUDGE
OFFICERS OF
COURT PRESENT APPEARANCES — HEARING CONTINUED TO:
11-30-94 OOMPLATNT SWORN TO & FILED
12-1-94 Defendant NOT PRESENT in Court
JB Relly, JP ACTIVATE WARRANT/S. 170;000 (10,000 ea ct)
D. Herndon, DA DA to file amended complaint by 12-2-94 9am
T. DeRossett, CR
| CLERK, VW
|Dec. 2, 1894 Defendant NOT PRESENT
'M. Robinson, JP DA files amended criminal complaint
‘D. Herndon, DA Warrant of Arrest STANDS/5.170,000 (10,000 ea ¢t}
|c1x, vw
‘"T. DzRecssett, CR
|
172-8-94 IR IR AR T CHRERT
JB Kelly, J? Complaint presented, advised, waives
S. HILL, DA Defendant PRESENT in Court — "NLV custody'
W. Hans, CR PASSED o secure (MM COUNSEL 12~13-94 9am
| CLERK, VW Defendant Remanded Metro/$170,000 (10,000 ea. ct.)
‘Dec., 13, 1994 |Defendant present "NLV custody"
J.B. Kelly. JP Mr Walton confirms for Mr Archie as retained counsgl
" P, Coumou, DA Defense motion to reduce hail to 5,000 ea ct...obj |DA.
‘Clk, Vi Motion granted, bail re-set 85,000 {5,000 ea ct)
'W. Hans, CR P/H set (deft waives 15 day rule) 1-5-95/10amPH
- 8. Walteon for
|R. archie, esq |Defendant REMANDED NLV/SB5,000 (5,000 ea ct)
|
|

JeNA
Res. 10/36
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JUSTICE COURT, NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, | CASE NO. 94FN1181X
—yg-
LARRY JAMES THOMAS, #0846620,

CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
Defendant. o

The Defendant above named has committed the crimes of SEXUAL“:'
ASSAULT (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366); and STATUTORY SEXUAL

SEDUCTION (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.368), in the manner following,

to~wit: That the said Defendant, on or between August, 1593, and_.f

May 1, 1954, at and within the County of Ciark, State of Nevada, |-

COUNT T - SEXUAL ASSAULT N
| did, on or between February, 1994, and March, 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and
subject CHANELL JACKSON, a famale person, to sexual penetration,
to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vaginail_
of the said CHANELL JACKSON, against her will. o
COUNT II - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION
did, on or between February, 1994, and March, 1994, then and"
there wilfully, unlawfully, and £feloniously subject CHANELL_
JACKSONM, a female person under the age of 16 years, to sexﬁﬁi
penetratioﬁ, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in.[.
the vagina of the said CHANELL JACKSON, the defendant belng 21 |°
vears of age, or older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to,-

or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said

 defendant, or said child.
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cO IIT ~ SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about November 20, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and felonicusly sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: by
inserting his finger in the vagina of the said ARLETH2 SANDERS,
against her will.
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about February 12, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unltawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS, against her will.
COUNT V - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February 12, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a female
person under the age of 16 years, to sexuval penetration, to-wit:.
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vagina of the
said ARLETHA SANDERS, the defendant being 21 years of age, or
older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the
lust, passions, or sexual desires of said defendant, or said child.
COUNT VI - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about February 12, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA |
SANDERS, a female person, Lo sexual penetration, to-wit:
cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS with his tongue, against her will.
COUNT VII ~ STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February 12, 1994, then and there wilfully,

—2=
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unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a femals
person under the age of 16 years, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
cunpilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS with his tongue, the defendant heing 21 years of
age, or older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or
gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said defendant,
or said child.
COUNT VIIY - LEWDNESS WITH A MINOR

did, on or between August, 1993, and September, 1993, then and’
there wilfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feleoniously commit a lewd
or lascivious act with the body of ROSHANDA TURNER, a child under
the age of fourteen years, by fondling the vagina of the said
ROSHANDA with his hands, with the intent of arousing, appealing to,.|
or gratifying the 1lust, passions, or sexual desires of sai.d.
Defendant, or said child.
COUNT TIX - LEWDNESS WITH A MINOR

did, on or between August, 1993, and September, 1953, then and
there wilfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd
or lascivious act with the body of ROSHANDA TURNER, a child under
the age of fourteen years, by fondling the breasts of the said
ROSHANDA TURNER with his hands, with the intent of arousing,
appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires
of said Defendant, or said child.
COUNT ~ SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, on or about Octeober 11, 19%3, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexuval

penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in

-
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the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XT - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, during November, 1993, then and there wilPfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to~wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the sajd ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
gaid ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physiecally incapable of

resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

COUNT XTI -~ SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A WMINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, d&uring December, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

COUNT XIIT - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, on or about January 76, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual

penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in

—4 -
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the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XIV - SEXDAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about February 5, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen vyears of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditiens in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XV - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
d¢id, on or about February 25, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unliawfully, and feioniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sestual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or upder
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the neture of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XVI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about May 1, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under

=B -
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conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or bphysically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

COUNT XVII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, on or between October 11, 1993, and May 1, 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault ahd
subject ROSHANDA TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of
age, to sexual penetration, to-wit: cunnilingus, by inserting
and/or licking the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER with his

tongue, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant

knew, or should have known, that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was |

mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the
nature of Defendant’s conduct.

All of which is contrary to the form, force and effact of
Statutes in such cases made and provided and against the peace and
dignity of the State of HNevada. Said complainant makes this

declaration subject to the penalty of perjury.

1/

94FN1181X/szZ
NLVPD DR#24-7547

Sex Asslt;stat Sex Sed;IWM ~ F
TK7
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THE STATE OF NEVADA, ..+ . - ..

L8 L i P

i.
.

Plaintiffrhl:: ! L‘) L
?gj/ "

-
Seo-

CASE NO. 94FN1181X

-Y5- Lo
' AMENDED
LARRY JAMES THOMAS, #0B46620,
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

Defendant.

Mgt g et v ot "-'wl \""- S

The Defendant above named has committed the crimes of SEXUAL |

ASSAULT (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366); and STATUTORY SEXUAL

SEDUCTION (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.368); LEWDNESS WITH A MINCR

(Felony - NRS 201.230); and SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER | .

FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE {(Felony -~ NRS 200.364, 200.368), in thg
manner folloving, to-wit: That the said Defendant, on or between
august, 1993, and May 1, 1994, at and within the County of Clark,
State of Nevada,
COUNT I - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or between February, 1994, and March, 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and
subject CHANELL JACKSON, a female person, to sexual penetratioﬁ,
to~wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in the wvagina
of the said CHANELL JACKSON, against her will.
COUNT II - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or between February, 1994, and March, 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously subject CHANELL
JACKSON, a female person under the age of 16 years, to sexual

penetration, to-wit: sewxual intercourse, by inserting his penis in

the vagina of the said CHANELL JACKSON, the defendant being 21

AA2428
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years of age, or older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to,
or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said
defendant, or said child.

COUNT ITI - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about November 20, 1993, then and there wilfully,

unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA .

SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: by
inserting his finger in the vagina of the said ARLETHA SANDERS,
against her will,
COUNT IV - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about February_ig; 1994, then and there wilfully,
unltawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vagina of the saig
ARLETHA SANDERS, against her will.
COUNT ¥V - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February f;ﬂ 1594, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a female
person under the age of 16 years, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in the wvagina of the
said ARLETHA SANDERS, the defendant heing 21 years of age, or
older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the
lugt, passions, or sexual desires of said defendant, or =ald chilg.
COUNT VI - SEXUAYL: ASSAULT

did, on or about February }gﬁ 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA.
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said

-
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ARLETHA SANDERS with his tongue, against her will.
COUNT VII - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February )jiJ1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a famale.
person under the age of 16 years, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said:
ARLETHA SANDERS with hig tongue, the defendant being 21 years 'o'f'-:-
age, or older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or
gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said defendant,
or said child.
COUNT VITT ~ LEWDNESS WITH A MINOR

did, on or between August, 1993, and September, 1993, then ahd
there wilfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd
or lascivious act with the body of ROSHANDA TURNER, a child under
the age of fourteen years, by fondling the vagina of the said
ROSHANDA with his hands, with the intent of arousing, appealing to,
or gratifying the 1lust, passions, or sexual desires of said
Defendant, or said child.
COUNT IX - LEWDNESS WITH A MINOR

did, on or between August, 1993, and September, 1993, then and
there wilfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd
or lascivious act with the body of ROSHANDA TURNER, a child under
the age of fourteen years, by fondling the breasts of the said
ROSHANDA TURNER with his hands, with the intent of arousing,
appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires
of said Defendant, or said child.
COUNT X - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, on or about Octeber 11, 1993, then and there wilfully,

- -
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unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURMER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XI - SEXUAIL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARRS OF AGE

did, during MNovember, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
gonditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

COUNT XTI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, during December, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniocusly sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
pehetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

COUNT XIXYT - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, on or about January 26, 1994, then and there wilfully,

- -
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unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XJV ~ SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about February 5, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feleoniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mnmentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XV -~ SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about February 25, 1984, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and felonicusly sexual assault and subiject ROSHANRDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditiong in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XVI - SEXUAL, ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about May 1, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and subject ROSHANDA

-5-
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TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in’
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, ox under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of

resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

COUNT XVII -~ SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, on or between October 11, 1993, and May 1, 1984, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexual assault and
subject ROSHANDA TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of
age, to sexual penetration, to-wit: cunnilingus, by inserting
and/or licking the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER with his
tongue, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant
knew, or should have known, that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was
mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the
nature of Defendant’s conduct.

All of which is contrary te the form, force and effect of
Statutes in such cases made and provided and against the peace and
dignity of the State of Nevada. Said Complainant makes this

declaration subject to the penalty of perjury.

94FN1181X/sz
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State of NEVADA )

County of Clark ) =5

N. Risenhoover, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:
That he is a Police Detective with the North Las Vegas Police

Departwment, City of North Las Vegas, County of Clark, State of

investigate the crimes of STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION (7 counts) and
SEXUAL ASBAULT, VICTIM UNDER 14 (15 counts), committed between
September, 1993, and May, 1994, which invegtigation has developéd
LARRY THOMAS as the perpetrator thereof.

That Affiant developed the following facts in the course of
the investigation of said crime, to wit:

| A complaint was filed with the WNorth Las Vegas Police
Department alleging that a Mr. Larry Thomas, director of the drill
team known as the Queenettes, had consensual sexual intercourse
with three of its members, two being the age of fourteen (14) and
one being thirteen (13). The victims were identified as Channell
Jackson, Arletha Sanders and Roshanda Turner. The incidents

ocourred between September, 1993, and May, 19%4, at wvarious

([locations within the city limits of North Las Vegas, County of

Clark, State of Nevada. Usually, the sexual acts took place in his
vehicle, a 1991 Chevy pickup, red in coler.

Each girl was interviewed regarding their alleged sexual
involvement with Mr. Thomas. Arletha Sanders advised of two
sexually-related incidents with him. The first occurred November
20, 1993, at Harry Webk’s residence. Webhb is a drummer for the
group, and at the time resided in North Las Vegas near CVT Gilbert
school. While outside in his vehicle, Mr. Thomas began fondling

1
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Arletha, and during this time, he would insert his finger into her
vagina. The second incident occurred on February 12, 1994, while
the two were in his vehicle which was parked in the driveway of his
residence, 1729 Helen, North Las Vegas. During this time, he had
sexual intercourse with her and also performed oral copulation.

Channell Jackson advised of incidents that began in october,
The compliments progressed to kissing, then fondling and finally, [

four (4) incidents of fondling where he would insert his finger. 
into her vagina. Three incidents of fondling occurred in his truck
while they were parked in the parking lot of an older apartment
complex in the 1000 block of East Carey, North Las Vegas. One

incident of fondling occurred in the driveway of Harry Webb's

1994, at the same apartment complex in the 1000 block of East
Carey, North Las Vegas. Again, they were in his truck.

After Channell’s mother had learned of their sexual encounter,
ishe took her to the Fremont East Medical Center to be examined. As
A result of that examination, she tested positive for chlamydia for
Which she has since been treated.

Roshanda Turner advised that her sexual encounters with Mr.
Thomas began in September, 1993, with incidents of fondling. He
would fondle her over and under her clothing and sometimes would
insert hig finger into her vagina. The two had sexual intercourse
on fifteen (15} different occasions, with the first being October
11, 1993, and the last May 1, 1994.

x k K *
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1993, in which Mr. Thomas showered her with persdnal.compliménts.é L

Channell had sexual intercourse with him. There were three (3}_to.-=-f

residence. The incident of sexual intercourse occurred in March, -
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Roshanda stated that these sexually-related incidents with Mr.
Thomas occurred either at Mr. Webb’s residence or the apartment
complex on East Carey and usually in his vehicle., After a while,
ishe began recording various incidents with him in her diary. This
diary was turned over to my custody and later booked into evidence, .
on January 13, 1994, Roshanda noted Iin her diary that she

thought she was pregnant and that she had had sex with Larry for.
the 8th time. On January 17, 1994, she wrote that Larry did not
hant their relationship to end. On January 25, 1994, she writes

that she was rubbing his penis and making it hard and that they

ill probably have sex the next day. On January 26, 1994, she had
Eex with him for the 9th time. On February 5, 1994, they had sei_
for the 10th time. On February 25, 1994, they had sex for the 11th
time. On May 1, 1994, they had sex for the 15th time.

The three girls were examined at the S5.A.I.N.T. clinic for

lsexual abuse. The results for each indicated physical findings of

hymenal trauma compatible with penetration.
All three girls basically had the same reason for not telling
nyone that they were having a sexual relationship with Mr. Thomas.
Each stated that he would make threats against them or their
Families.
On October 11, 1994, Mr. Thomas responded to the North Las
Vaegas Police Department and gave a statement regarding the

laccusations lodged against him. He admitted that Channell, Arletha
and Roshanda were former members of the drill team and occasionally .
would take them and other members home. He denied having any type
of sexual contact with any of the three victims nor any other

menber of the drill team.
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. WHEREFORE, Affiant prays that a Warrant of Arrest be issqedf T
for LARRY THOMAS on the charges of BTATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION (7:

counts) and SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH VICTIM UNDER 14 YEARS OF AGE (15|

T @W%,Qm

N. Risefihcover, Affiant

counts).

SUBSCRIBEb and. SWORN to before me
this /0 day of 7&%&&4MJQA., 1994,

Fosary Potin-5 il of Mavada |
COUNTY OF CLARK

DEE JOHKSON -
My Gominission Expires |
- Mazch 10, 1956 I

dtary>Publé€fIn and For Saild
Kounty and ate
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‘case nuwmbear: SAQUTSHT 1AM RAORI NN B & TN A A RN kORI | pCn

" book date: 12/07/94
boak time: 1840
" page 1 o+ 1

NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT | ab no: FPLIBE . -
ARREST REPORT { mf: 99057815
10 50 D6 DB G S 300 00 S S G S S G0 O 0 0 el O O O S | cs:

QR&&20

name .0f arrestac:

THOMAS/LARRY JAMES

hgt | wgt thair leges_i bld | cmp:.

aax | race/ethnic I dt birth [ age |
Mol B N 8LACK | 'é& | 27 1 507 | 197 | BLK | BRO | MED ! DRK -
-alias-aka: ALSO USES SSt 5471 | place of birth:
faliASwaka: I TALLULAH/LA
‘alias~aka: I ssn: SE41 o
saliag—aka: i driv lie/st: 2364/ NY \
“scars, marks, TAT LR ARM 2
tattoos, etc: TAT LA RRM 3-1r52"
‘illnass/injuries: 2
.address t{house no; apt no; street, city, state, zipi i phone'nuhbéﬁ'_ifj,
1729 HELEN NORTH LAS UEGAS NU 82020 | To2&6472480
) rext of kin name: THOMAS/GEORGIA relation: MOTHER -
naxt of kin address: phone: 7026444225
employer: DALLY-S ccoupation: UTILITY POHRTER )
‘Place. of arrest: 1709 HELEN/MLUN ! arresting officer: i vehl -
date/time of arrest: 12/07/94 5:30PH I ARMSTAONG/ JOHM I NO )
‘officers present during booking: I transporting offiver: | impd. . .
;ﬁQRTINE O7ILD/WELLES 0734 I ARMSTRONG/ JOHN I NO
no. | orig | charge warrant/nrs | ets | fgm | bail | ecase fnum
- 1 UQ SEXASLTY FUFNLLIB1 X 4 F 42, Q00 FROGT7SH7
: PCN FOO093270-~01 SEXUAL ASSAULT
2 WA SEXASLT2 QUFNLLIELX 3 F 30,000 PUDOTS47
ACN TOO9ZRT70-02 SEXUAL ASSRULT — STATUATORY SEMUAL. SEDUCTION
3 WA LEWD2 FUFNL LELX 2 F 20,000 FUINTS47
PCN 7OQQ9E270-03 LEWDNESS - WITH A MINOR UNDER 14
<) WA SEXQSLTH QUFNL 121X =] F 4,000 UROTSLT |
PCN Fa092270-04 SEXUAL aSEAULT ~ WICTIM UNDER 14
:}écbrds bureau: | detective buraau:
officer: ARMETRONG/JOHNM

;éuhv approved: SCOTT/AMTHONY |

AA2439
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CASE: 9407547 e NORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE DEPARTHENT-—~— HEF: GRIGINAL
DAYVE: LR/OE/PE  eemmmem e POLICE REPORT = m s — e PAGE: 1
TIME: 7:18 e INUVESTIGATIVE PORTION-~——w———mm oF: 4

S0 0 V00 0 2 B 3 0 M S0l 6 0 U 06 e T 00 90 3 016 206 3 6 01 206 00 0 906 0 30 0 e T o 6 2 M HE 3 006 2 e B T e o0 o A NG 9 G 0 o 3 T O e o

———— - e — = INQLDENT ORIGIMAL-~——— ————
clagsification/additional infermation: { gang related?
o SEXUAL ASSAULT/STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTIOM/VICTIM UNDER 14 ! MO

inuest bureaus/units notified:

lacation of oecurrences: I rpt. dist: €2 neighborhood: JBG

1000 E CAREY AUVE ! CHARLIE 2 JIM BRIDGER

fram: date 7/ time I to: date / +time { report: date / time
16/11/93 1 20:00 | SiCl/i98 /4 20:00 ! [rRsdRY 4 B0:30

e nk By b g rm i s e P g i = o s o o

hate orima? NO ! fingerprinte? NO ¥

routing? | prosecute? ! prop repori? | wvehl veport? ! arrest vypt? | atitach?
DETECTIVE ! YES | NOD ! NGO | NO ! YES
0 o 0 0 7 M 1 0o 0 W o 3 S o 0 00 o o o o o 3 R e e et - o o 1460 e 3 OB 4l o O 04 o o e SO0 O 7 O 0t 0
e b e e e METHOD OF OPERATION— m——am——— -
residential-—-type: 113 target: L&9 sacurity:
APT/ CONDRQ TARGET-OTHER

e e A A e et st Tt e e

rnon-rasidtl~-—-Lypa: targetl: security;

- R —_—— e e e b By e e e

entry-———locaticon: methoo:
egrit———~lotation: method:

Rt o e e o e s et e . e e

suspect actions:

AL 901 KMEW VICTIMS NAME B. 902 MOLESTED WICTIM C. 204 MASTURBATED

D. 911 RAPED E. 912 OTHER SEX ALTS B

G, H. 1.
S ST 4 O 0 R 0 0 6 A 0 Y 0 9 O 9 3 5 O 3 3 90 OHE 0 A6 0 3 e 0 6 o 0 e 0 o W o o o s 4 o o4 K o o 0 0 e o YA O oo
e st = e e 44 i i et e i e — e e [ [ EROS E TIONS — e e e e — -
£ J-UNFOUNDED/NO CRIME——0 [XI-SUBMITTEDRD 0L.A.~———— 5 L J-RECLASSIFY-—w—————e 16
CHA-JUVENILE~m——m—— e — 1 [ 1-ADHMINM. CLEARED——--——- 4 L 1-VIC REFUSED PROS.--11
f 1-MON DETECTIVE CLR-~-2 { I-EXCEPTIONALLY CLR—=+7 [XI-AFFIDAWULT~-——r—— iz
£ I-DETECTIVE aGRREST—~—-3 [ 1-5CREEN CLEARED-—w=—-—-— g [ J-ChR/DA DENIAL —————w-— 13
L 1~SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 [ 1-ND CHGS FILEDINCF)—~% [ J-OTHER——-——————— ——14
060K E A T W 62 21 DI A e 0 20 R O 06 M T 0 e 296 0 20 3 e 0 0 v 20 o0 O S o e e i o 08 O e e ok 00 306 o 0 MR TR O o e 30 U o i o I o B e o

———————————————————— RECORDS~—— s s

class eode-——uer 5id number date ser no

! 1 ! date ser ng
| | &anter | cleared '
y b oscope i FCOp&

| ! ]

S Mt 0 o 9 0GR B30 0 0 0 0l 0 0 0 e e 00 0 0 0 0 06 e o 0 O oo 336 0 s o O 36 0 4l o 4 6 N ok o o o o o o0 O o G e ol o K

recorads bureau procassed ser no | detestive bureau processed SEr ND
BRACKROG/ CHERYL ™M OTeET ¢

supearvisor approwving sar nog { afficer reporting Ser ng
SLOTT/ANMTHONY 4SS ' ORTIZ/EDUARRO DORADD JR Q6B




 CASE: 94007547 -—--MORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT~~== REF; ORILGINAL
DATE: 12/08/94  ———eeem—eemees POLICE REPORT-—-—————————— - PAGE: 2
TIME: 7:1& e PERSONS PORTTONmw e — e m—ee e OF: 4

mmumwwawum*#m**m*mm**m»mm»mmmmammwmmmw*mwtm***»mmmmmmmwmmmﬁmmmmmmm*mmwma»m»*mm*

- hame of person {(GOL) I type: W | neccupation: ! susp id7.
"TURNER/ROSHANCA MONIQUE I WICTIH I STUDENT ! YES
sax | race: B hisp: W ! A { age ! hgt ! wgt ! hair | eyes | bld ! ecmp
F { BLACK { 8L ! 13 ! | ! | [ I
alias—aka: 1 birthplace:
alias—aka: | ssn;: mf no:
addr: NL Y NU g9030 | 399-1241

businaas: CAMMNOM JHS t
‘descriptors: TTH GRADER
 descriptors: ARRIUVES HCHME AFTER 1400 HOURS

6 W S O 0 0 P O S0 o a6 e S e e M e 0 e S 56 0 30 ol o v 0 e e O 0 R 0 O

- name of person (QQ3) I type:. W | accupation: | musp id?
. SAMDEARS/ARLETHA LASHON ! UICTIM ! STUDENT ! YES
gax 1 race: B hisp: N ! dob | age ! hgt 1 wgt | hair ! eyes | bld | cmp
FF. ! BLACK H 1?1 15 1 | H ! ! !
alias~aka: i Eirthplace;
alias—aka: { ssn; m¥ no:
addr: MLU NU B9030 | IFe-35D1

bugsiness: CANNOM JHS |

descriptors: 8TH GRADER
. deacriptors: ARRIVES HOME AFTER 1600 HOURS
S TOUNE D I P 30l R 0 0 0 2 05 0 o 0 o T 0l O 6 o 0 o o e 00 L 0 0 26 0 - P 9 0 o o 2

name of perzon {Q03}): t type: P ! pccupation: I susp id?
SANDERS/ LOWVISE t{ PERSOM RERTG | RETIRED i YEB
gax | raée: B hiap: N | dab t age ! hgt | wgt ! hair { eyes | bld | cmp
‘F | BLACK ! e B B~ T T | 1 1 | | |
alias-aka; | birthplace:

alias-—aka: I sg5n: mf no:

addr: MLV NV 87030 @ 399-3501

-business: !

deseriptors: UVICTIM #2775 GRANDMOTHER AND LEGAL GUARDLAMN
descriptors:

records bureau pracessed ser ho | detectiwve bureau procossed sSer no
- BRACKRAOG/CHERYL 4 Q787 |

supeirvisor approving s&r no ! officer reporiting ser no

SCOTT/ANMTHONY 05656 | ORTIZ/EDUARDO DORADC JR . n&pa
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" CASE: 94007547 ZZZ-MDRTH LAS VEOAS POLICE DEPARTMEMT——-- REF: ORIGINAL
DATE: 12/98/94  —=———seeee———m POLICE REPDRT—m=-~m——m e —— PAGE: 3
TIME: 7:18 ee— e PERSONS PORTIOM«=——— e — OF: 4

_t*m*wn***#unmattnmum*mmumwnmm&m*tmkt*mmmmm**tmmammm&rmmmuuuu*mmmmmm*mw*um*wﬂu*ﬁ3,

suap id? _3

.. name of persen (004} : ! type: S ! pecupation: !
oo THOMAS/ LARRY JAMES ! SUSPECT I STEWARD ) ' YES
sex | race: B hisp: N ! dob | age + hgt | wgt | hair | eyes | bld I cmbt;,
‘M .t BLACK t fab | 27 ! i 1 | I : !
" alias-aka: | birthplace:
aliaz-aka: b ssn: 5241 mf no:
', addr: 1729 W HELEN AUE NLY NU 87030 |
business: DALLY 'S HOTEL 1
descfiptnrs: DIRECTOR OF "QUEENETTES" ORILL TEAH
dedcriptors:
récordﬁ bureau processed ser no ! detective bureau processed s5er no
BRACKROG/CHERYL. M ara7
superviesor approving ser no | pfficer reporting s8€r no |
SCOTT/ANTHONY Dess + ORTIZ/EPUARDO DORAPRO JR osg=2
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CASE: R4007347 ———-NDRTH Ll.AS UEGAS POLICE DERPARTMENT-—-——-— REF: ORIGLMAL
DATE: 12/08/Ff  ———re—eeeemme e POLICE REPDRT—————rr e simm e PRGE: 4
TIME: 7:18 = ———eem———— NARRATIVE PORTION=— e e OF: 4

OM 0524694 AT 2030 HOURS, I WAS OISPATCHED TO 517 W. MILLER AVE. TO
INVESTIGATE A SEXURL ASSHAULT. UPON ARRIVAL, I INTERUIEWED BOTH VICTIMS AND
VICTIM #5758 GRAMOMOTHER AND LEGRL. GUARDYAM.

THE INVESTIGATION REVEALED THAT THE SUSPECT 15 THE CLURRENT DIRECTOR OF
A DRILL TEAM CALLEDR THE "QUEENETTES'" AND HE HAS COMMITTED STATUTORY SEXUAL
SEDUCTION, SEXUAL ASSAULT, aND SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH UWICTIMS UNDER 14 YEARS OF
AGE . ACCORDING TO THE WICTIMS, THE SUSPECT HAS VICTIMIZED 9 OTHERS FROM THE
PDRILL TEaM, WITH AGES RANCING FROM 13 TO 15. SOME OF THE INCIRENTS OCCURRED
IN METRO’S JURISDICTION A8 WELL AS WITHIN THE CITY OF MNORTH LLAS VEGAS.
VICTIM #2°S GRAMDHMOTHER L& ATTEMPTING TO COMPILE A LIST GF OTHER VICTIMS AT
THIS TIME.

VICTIM #1 RELATED THAT SHE HAS HAD SEX WITH THE SUSPECT A TOTAL OF

FIFTEEN (15) TIMES WITH THE FIRST OCCURING ON 10-11-93 IN THE SUSPECT’S
WIFE'S CAR IM THE RPRRKING LOT BEHIND 1000 E. CRREY AUVENUE AND THE LAST TIME

OM Q5—=H1--%4 . THE SUSPECT HAD SEXUaL LNTERCOURSE, M8 WELL AS ORALLY
CORPULATING VICTIM #1 BETWEEM THE DATES LISTEDR. THE SUSPECT HAS HAD SEX WITH
VICTIM #2 A TOTAL OF TWO {(2) TIMES AND HAD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE AND ORALLY
COPULATED VICTIM #2. BOTH UICTIMS RELATED THAT THE SUSPECT USED
PROPHYLACTICS WHEN HE HAD SEXM WITH THEM. SOME OF THE ILNCIDENMTS CCCURRED AT
THE SUSPECT S HOUSE, [N WINSLOW PARK, AND OTHER UMNKNOWM LOCATIONS.

THE SUSPECT USED HIS MEWER MODEL RED, CHEWY TRAUCK A8 WELL A5 HIS WIFE‘’S
GREY CADILI.ALZ DURING THE UARIDUS INGIDENTS. A POSSIBLE WITNESS IS OME OF THE
DRUMMERS IM THE DRILL TEAM MAMED HARARY WEBB. WEBR LIVES SOMEWHERE IMN THE
WIMSLOW PARK AREA. NO FURTHER DETAILS WERE PROVIDEDR AT THIS TIME aBQUT WEBR.

VICTIM #2 ADMITTED TO THE SEXUAL INCIDENTS TO HER AUNT, aAND
GRAMDMDTHER . AFTER FURTHER QUESTIONING, WITNEES LOUISE SANDERS BEGANM TO
DISCOVER FURTHER DETAILE ABOUT THE SUBPECT S ACTIVITIES WITH THE DRILL TEAM
MEMBERS. UPON MY ARRRIVAL, 80TH VICTIME HAD ALREADY WRITTEN STATEMENTS ABOUT
THE INCIDENTS.

BTTACHED ARE TWO SIGNED VICTIM STATEMENTS ON MLURD VICTIM STATEMENT
FORMS. A FOLLOW Up INTERUVIEW IS REQUESTED FOR FORMAL STATEMEMNTS.

records bureau progessed ger no | detectiwve bureau processed sar no
BRACKROG/ CHERYL ™M 07467 !

supervisaor appraving ser no | officer reporting ST nNo
SCOTT/ ANTHONY N&G6 | DRTIZ/EDUARDD DQRADC JR [aFaci=,

AA2444
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CASE: 94407547 —=—=MORTH LAS UVEGAS PULICE DEFARTMENT———— REF 23961
DATE: 12/708/94 2 = ——cee——— e POLICE RERPQORT—————rramim————— PAGE 1
TIHE: 714 imemem e e e [MUEBESTIGATIVE PORTIOM— s —rermme e — e oF . E
’m**mawﬁmm*w**m#*m*mmm****&mm*****m*mmw**»*m*wmwmmm*m**$m*mnwwﬁmmmmmm*m*m*mmammw
454 g e A £ e i s e INCIDENT FOLLOWUR == e —
classificatiaon/additicnal inforwmatian: ! gang related?
INFORﬁﬁrlON!INTEHFEHRING WITH WITNESSES t NO
invest bursaus/uniis notified:
Lucatign of oCzuTrrencs: I rpt. dist: A3 neighborhood: WL
17 MILLER | ADMM 3F VALLEY WIEW
From: date / time 1 to: date /7 time I repoart: date / time
S/R7IGY4 J 18:50 | ! 1 S/27/94 /1 19:30
hate crime? MO ! fingerprints? MO !
rodting? ! preosecute? ! prop reporti? ! vehl report? | arrest rpt? | attach?y
DETECTLIVE | MG ! ND ! MO ! MO | TES
******ﬁm****m#***m&#*#**ﬁ********mt#****ﬁ******#!****#*m******#****ﬁ******#**mﬁ
. re—— METHOD OF OPERATION————w=m -
residential—type: target: securiiy:
nen-residtl —~—~type: target: security;
entry---——location: method:
el t—=——locatian: method:
suspact actions:
A B. c.
0. E. F.
G. H. 1.
A 1 e e R 0 0 OF o DA 406 D00 sk o D 0 A o ok ol OB 3 o e T ok YD 206 e 20 e sl o W SUE i She okt 306 A7 o o A ol 20 MK o ok e o o o W2 o o o 3
o e e r— e RESRPOSITIONS~—~—— ————
1-UNFOUNDED/NDO CRIME--0 [ J1-SUBMITTED D.A.=——m— 5 [ 3-RECLASSIFY———m——em 10
1 JUVENT LE = = — v e = 1 € I1-ADMINM, CLEARED—-—-—----— & [ 1-VIC REFUGED PROS.--1t
J-MON DETECTIVE CLR-~-~2 [ J1-EXCERTIOMNALLY CLAR-~-7 [ 1-AFFIDAVI T————rwmo—— i2
1-DETECTIVE ARAEST==~—3 [ 1~SCAEEM CLEAREDw=———- S [ 1-CA/DA DENIAL——mm——— 13
1-SUBMEITTED QITY ATTY-4 [ 3I-NO CHGS FILEDIMCF)=~9 [ I1-CTHER———wwmm———— e 14
00 TV e o 20 e HE O P e e 7 I 6 T T O e N0 i e o T e ol D0 NI HE OB Sl 930 0 0 31 30 0 11 ol o o o0 006 ol o o o e e e
————————————————————————— —— e —— — REC ORD§ = -
clagse ocodeg———uar | sid number i date s=ser no | date Rer no
! ! enter ! gleared
! ! scope ! skope
t ! !

o A S 06 O e st o O A5 R A o 30 S 0 0S4 o o 9 e e 0 o B e A o o e 3 02K 0 M o 0 o o o ol ol sk o e ol o ool 1 o o N o

P o e e e ot R gy e e e e e B —_—

records bureau processed ser no | detective bureau processed ser ho
|

supervisor approwving ser no | agfficer reporting ser no

- REDCAY/ARTHUR N&e34 1+ MEAL S JAMES ogss




CASE: F4007547 —~~~MORTH LAS UVEGAS PDL[CE DEPﬁRTHENTwww* REF: I
DATE: t2/0G/94 POLICE REPORT PAGE: 2
TIME: 7:18 FERSONS PORTION-————————wwirn DF: 3

mmmwuuwnm*wummmwutnmnmmm»mﬂnumﬂmm*mwmm*m**w***mm*mmwmmmm*mw*wm#***#tmm*m*u***&n

name of person (0017 [ type: W | pocupation: | susp id7
SAMDERS /L.OUI SE | WITMNESS ! ! YES
ﬁeu ! race: 8 hisp: M ! rhely ! age | hgt | wgt | haivr | gyes | bld l_cmpJ
F | BLACK ! 211 83 1 1 ! i ! | | :
alias—aka: ! birthplace:

alias—~aka: I san: mf no:

addr: NMLW My 89030 | ZI99-3501

business: t
descriptors: WRITTENM STATEMENMT COMPLETED

descriptors:
munmwm*wmmmmw***mm;umm*wﬁtmmm*umm*mmmm*nu*m*mm**m*mw**m*mmmwmm**m*m****ummwwwwm

"name of person {002 | type: W ! poccupation: 1 susp 1d?
SAMNDERS / BARBARA ! WITNESS ! | YES
saw | race: B hisp: M | dob ! age | hgt ! wgt ! hair | eyes | bld | cmp

F | BLARCK 1 ! ! ! ! 1 | |
alias~-aka: | birvthplace:

alias—aka: ! msn: mi no:

addr: Ly NU 89122 | 999-8329&

busiress: !
descriptors: WRITTEN STATEMENT COMPLETED
descriptora:

e - -_ ek ik ke B B - — e am s

records burean procassed s5&er no | detectiive bureau processed sSEer ho
¢ .
suparvisonr approving ser no ! officer reporiing ser no

REDCAY/ARTHUR &34 1 MEAL/JAMES e]=27-

———
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CASE: 94007547 —re—=NORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE DERARTMENT=~—- REF: 23961
DATE: 12/08/%4 e e DOLLCE  REDORT momom oo mimm s PAGE: 3

TIME: 7:18 e =~ NARRATIME  PORT L QMo em e e oF: 3

. ON oSa774 AT ABOUT 1900 MRS, OFFICER B TANMER AMD I WERE DISPATCHED TG
517 MILLER IN REFERENCE TO A DISTURBANCE INUVOLUVING VICTIMS OF A SEXUAL
ASSAULT ANO THE RELATIVES OF THE SUSRPECT, WHO WAS LISTED AR LARRY THOMAS.
(FOR FURTHER SEE OREGINAL REPCRT UNDER CASE #94-7347.) UPON ARRIVAL WE
CONTACTED THE RESIDENT AND GUARDTIAM/GRANDMOTHER OF ONE OF THE VICTIM’S,
LOUISE SANDERS .

LOUISE SAID THAT AT aABOUT 1850 HRS, THOMASYS WIFE aND MOTHER CAME TO
HER HOUSE. S#iff SAID THAT THE HMOTHER WAS ANGRY aANDR STARTED TO "JUMP'" ON HER
GRAMNDDAUGHTER, MEANING THAT SHE YELLED aT HER. THREE 0F THE ULCTIMS WERE AT
THE HOUSE AND THOMAS’S MOTHER ASKED THEM WHAT HAD HAPRENED BETWEEN THEM AND
HER SON. THEY TOLD HER ABOUT THE IMCIDENTS, IMCLUDING THAT THEY HAO SEX WITH
HIM. THOMAS S MOTHER TOLD THE GIRLS THAT THEY WERE LTLARS AND ALLEGEDLY TRIED
TO HIT OQNE GF THEM. THE GIRL’S AUNT, BARBARA 3ANDERS WITNESSED THIS. LOUISE
TOLD THOMAS'S MDTHER TO GET OUT AND THE MOTHER THREATENED TQ "WHIP ROSHA'S
ASS', ROSHA BEING ONE OF THE UICTIMS. THOMAS S MOTHER THEM LEFT.

LOUGISE AND BaRBRRA COMPLETED WRITTEN STATEMENTS.

NC FURTHER ACTIOM TAKEN. ATTACHMENTS: WRITTEN STATEMENTS BY LOUISE
SANDERS aNDO BaRBaRA SanbERS {1 PG ERCHY) .

- [ Al e e e Py _

records bureau processed ser no 1 detectiwve bur®au processed ser no
f

Sugervisoer approwving ser no | officer reparting ser no

REDCAY f aRTHUR N634 t NEAL/ JAMES Qg s
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CASE: 24007587 —~~~NORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT-——— REF : 24233
CDATE: 1R2/08/94 e POLICE REPORT——~me———— e PAGE: 1
TIME: 7:18& oo INUESTIGATIVE PORTI OM~~—— e e OF: 5

11 e 11 o 293 0 3 20 e s o SO 0 e ol e S S O el ol 1 G ol e e Bl MO 3 G G 0 46 e o e N 0 R e o o b e e ol e of 3 2 T e e

e

e e e e e e e IMCIDENT FOLLOWUIP~mw — e
elassification/additional information: ! gang related?
BEXUAL ASSAULT/STATUTORY SEXUaAL SEDLCTIOM/VICTIM UNDER 14 ! NO
" inwvest bureausfunits nptified:
location of occurrence: I rpt., dist: C2 nelighborhood: J4B86
1400 E CAREY AVE ! CHARLIE 2 JIty BRIDGER
. fram: date / time | to: date / time | vpeport: date / time
10/11/93 7 20:00 | S/04/94 f 20 00 | 6/07/94 4 11:53
hate crime? MNO I fipgarprints? NO !
routing? ! prosecute? 1 prop report? | wehl report? | oarrest rpt? | attach?
DTHER ¥ YES t YES ! NG ! g ]0] ! YES
0 e 20 06 o e S o o o 0 0 0 0 S o o 0 06 3 OB 00 0 o 0 o o 0 e 3 0 o 0 o 6 e 0 e I D 0 3 3 e o b 3 Sk e o 9 Aol o ek e
————————————————————————————— METHOD OF OPERATION-—————me————— - —_—
residential ——~Lype: target: saequrity: |
.nDn~residt1~~*type: targeat: security:
entrye-—-— location; method:
@xit-—--location: methad:
suspaect actions;
AL B. c.
D. E. F.
G. M. I.
356906 3 M 0 e e o e e o O 0l e o o OB S i N 90 o sl 0 0 o O Wl S0 0 M HE OBl S A 0 e o R N O E o K o
T e e i e e DISPOSITIONS -
I-UNFQUNDER/MO CRIME——0 [ 1~SUBMITTED D.A.———-—-—=5 [ J-RECLASSIFY————mwm——— 10
C I=JUUENILE~———m— e 1 [ I-pDHMEIN. CLERRED—=—=wm~— & [ 1-UIC REFUSED PROS . -—-11
3-NOMN DETECTIVE CLR——-2 L I-EXCERPTIDMALLY CLRA-=~7 [ 1-AFFIDAVIT———ww=————— i2
1-RETECTIVE ARREST-——3 L 1-5CREEN CLEARED——————g [ 1-CA/DA DENIAL—-——————13
A-SUBMITTED CITY ATTY-4 [ J-HNO CHGS FILED{(NCF}—~% £ J—0THER=—————— T ———— i4
200030 3 000 96 9 e 30 6 1 S0 W 300 05 00 1 N N 106 N T 9 73 e O 0 2 I S 0 M 2 e 20 230 20 06 i 6 106 I N K 06 D M 06 00 3 S O 0 D0 W e 6 o 0 2
et —— RELORDG e — e -
@laas code——uer | s5id number | date ser no ! date ser no
! ! enter I cleared
H ! acape H sGCope
t | !

e 0 o 5 0 00 7 e N A ol N 1 20006 0 0K 20 0 o o K 06 D 0 S0 0 e o 5t e B N e W0 0 3 6 0 S 00 O M o 0 S0 0 3 S S

records hureau processead aer nn ! detective bureau pgrocessed SET N
BARKLEY /DI aME G374 1

supervisor approving ser ne | officer reporting SET nNo
KING/R L 0321 1 RISENHOOUER/MNORUVAL [adeial=)
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CASE. 4007547 —w—wm NDATH LAS UEGAS POLICE DERPARTMENT~—-— REF: R42B3
DATE: 128/08/94 e e — e ~POLICE REPORT=w-—— e e PAGE: 2
TIME: 7:18 e PERSONS PDRTION e OF: 5

200Dt W N O 5 W A 0K G O AR A6 Sl B SO P O e 00 00 0 D1 TN o 0 0 0 06 N R N O 000 20 e N YR T

name of person {Q01): t type: L | pocoupation: | susp id7?
JACKSOM s CHIAMELL. . | VICTIM | | YES

se@x | race: B hisp: M ! Anh | age | hgt | wgt ! phair | eyes 1| blid | cmop
F 1 BLACK ! 77 114 ! t I ! ! '
alias—daka: | birthplace:

alias—aka: ! san: mf no:

addr: Ly NU | 3FF-T0EY
businoss: f
descriptors:

dascriptaors:
N e M A0 B e S0 P OOE S M O O O D D 0 D 3 W e R O e

name of person (002} : I type: W ! bpecupation: | susp id?
BROWN/ CORY I WITHESS | DOCTOR H MO
sax ! raca: W hisp: ™ | dob I age { hgt ! wgt ! hair | eyes | bld | cmp
M | WHITE ! 1 ¢ i 1 ! | §

'alias—aka: | birthplace:

alias—aka: 1 ssn: mf po:

addr: 1

business: FREMOMT MEDICAL~EASTP . Q. DOX 1737 LV NY 891251737 | 383-EH200

desgripiors:

deseriptors:
- records bureiu proceased ser ne | detective bureau processed sar no
BARKLEY s DI ANE 0378 |
. Supervisor approving ser no ! gfficer reparting sar no
CKING/R L 03zi | RAISEMHOOUER!MORVAL 038%
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CRSE: P4007547 —~—==NOATH LAS VEGAS POLICE DERAATMENT=——— REF: 24233
DATE: 12/08/94  —— e POLICE REPORT == st v e PAGE: 3
TIME: 7:18 et PROPERTY PORTE QMoo — e oF; S

0 0 0 51 06 56 3 0 6 0 M 0 6 1 0 0 96O 0 0 e e o 0 0 o 0 0 24 0 1 O 0 N

no. arteds type——desceripitive information on property——————— stolaen recover

additional descriptive infaormation—- e b e value value

Q0L MISC £ brd: mod :

e e e aXE sar - -
cal: coll: cala: aumit:

PERSOMAL DIARY OF WICTIM ROSHAMDA TURMER

W SR A 05K o o e T M O sl S o e e o S o o e O o Y D o S e e ot i o o e o ol 2 0 0 e o o o 0o TR0 o o A o a4 e e e
FHEFRP R R AR R R R R S R R R R R R TR R Y LDtals——————— >
I W 6 M e 06 M 116 A6 0 1IE T 208 N 0k 06 710 HIE e 0 e 306 200 0 3l 31 3t 0 00 3 90 116 O Sl 7€ ol e 3l MG 0% PN O 30 3 30 316 i 30 300 0 HE SIF 2 6 HE DI T HE D A0 DI 30 30 0 0F 9 900 Nt 9 2l e e O HE e
type: E-gvidenoe; F-found;, I-~ivmpounded; L-lost;
D-other; RA-recowvered; S—-stolen; X-safekeeping
00T NN 2 6 DB ol R T o T o A 0 O 06 Y e e e i o o B 6 K o S 8 b 25 W I e 0 06 kol 900 B 206 o e 0 8 05 0 e B o B e 30 O o e AR O

Tecords bureau processed ser no ! detactive bureau processed ser no
BARKLEY /OLAME Q37E !

supervisor approving ser no ! officer reporting sar no
KING/R L 0321 | RISENHOQUER/NORUVAL Q329
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CASE: 98007547  csee— NORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT———— REF: 24233
DATE: 12/08/94 e POLICE REPORT———— e PRAGE: &
TIME: To1E&E e e MARRATIVE PORTION-—~————— e ma——— OF : 3

DURING FOLLOWUP INUESTIGATION, THE TWD LISTED VICTIMS, WHDO WERE MEMBERS
OF THE QUEEMETTES CRILL TEM, RESPOMDED TO THE NLUPD AaMD GAUE FORMAL
STATEMENTS IN WHICH THEY TOLD OF IMCLIDENTS INUOLVING SEXUAL CONTACT WITH THE
DIRECTOR OF THE GROUP, MR LARRY THOMAS. I LATER LEARNEDR OF & THIRD VICTIM
AND FORMER MEMBER OF THE TEaM, ME CHAMELL JACKSON, WHO ALS0O RESPONDED TO THE
NLVPG aMO GAVE R/ STATEMENT ., EaCH TOLD OF NUMEROLS INCIDEMTS IN WHICH MR
THOMAS FONDLED THEM OR HaD SEXUAL INTERCOURSE WILTH THEM .

DURING ARLETHA SANDERS‘S STATEMENT, SHE RELATED ON 11/20/%3, MR THOMAS
HAD FONDLED HER AND INSERTED HIS FINGER INTO HER VAGINA. THIS INCIDENT
OCCURRED IM HIS VEHICLE WHILE THEY WERE PRAARKED IN THE DRIVEWAY OF MR HARAY
WEBB- s RESLDEMNCE. MR WEBE IS OME OF THE DRUMMERS FOR THE GROUP AND LIVES IN
THE WIMDSOR PARK AREA NEAR CUT GILBERT SCHOOL. ARLETHA TOLD OF AN INCIDEMT
WHICH QCCURRED ON nRs32/94 IM WHICH SHE AND MR THOMAS HAD SEXUAL
INTERCQURSE. DURING THAT INCIDENT, HE alLs5Q PERFORMED UORML COPULATIDN ON HER.
THEY WERE AGAIN IN HIS UEHICLE PARKED 1IN THE DRIVEWAY COF HIS RESIDEMCE, 1989
HELEN, HNLWY.

PURING CHAMELL JACKSOM'S STATEMENT SHE TOLD OF IMNCIDENTS [NUOLUING MR
| THOMAS THAT STARTED 10/351/93 IM WHICH HE WOULD SHOWER HER WITH COMPLIMENTS.
AS TIME WENT OM, THIS PROGRESSED TO FONDLING HER WAGINA AND FINALLY TO
SEXURL INTERCOURSE. THE INCIDENTS OF FOMDLLING AND INTERCOURSE OCCURRED IN
HIS VEHICLE WHEN THEY WERE PARKED AT MR HARRY WEBE'S RESIDENCE OR THE
ARPARTHMENT COMPLEX AT 1000 E CAREY.

WHEN CHANELL "3 MOTHER LEARMED THAT HER DAUGHTER AND MR THOMAS WERE
HAUING SEXUAL INTERCODURSE, SHE TOOK CHANELL TO FREMONT MEDRDICAL-EAST TO BE
CEXAMINED (Q5/27/%94). A8 i RESULT OF THE EXaMIMNATION BY DOCTOR BROWM, CHAMELL
TESTED POSITIUVE FOR CHLAMYDIA ANTIOEM, A SBEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE. ON
S OG/UTISR, I CONTACTED DR R JOADAM OF THE CCME OFFICE TO OBTAIN 2]
CLARIFICATION OF THE DISEASE. HE aADUISED THAT CHLAMYDIA IS SEXUALLY
TRAMSMITTEDR, IT"% RARE AMD SOMETIMES WILL SHOW MO SYMTOMS. AN INDIUIDUAL,
COULD HAVE THE DISEASE FOR A TIME mAND NOT BE AWRRE OF IT.

DURING THE IMTERWVIEW WITH ROSHANDA TURNER, SHE TOO TOLD OF NMUMERDUS
EMCIDEMTS INM WHICH MR THOMAS HAD FONDLED WER BAREASTS aND UVAGINA aND Ha
INTERCOURSE WITH HER. USUALLY THESE INCIDENTS COCCURRED IM HIS UVEHICLE AT THE
APARTHENT COMPLEX ONM E CPRREY OR AT MR HARRY WEBBE-S RESIDEMCE. THE INCIDENTS
GF FOMGLIMG BEGANM AUGUST OR SEPTEMHEER OF 1993, BETWEEN 10/11)93 TO 05/01 /94
ROSHaNDA HaAD SEXYUAL INTERCOURSE WITH MR THOMAS o TOTAL OF FIFTEEM (15}
© TIMES.

AFTER THRE EIGHTH TIME THE TWO HAD SEXUAL INTERACOURSE, ROSHANDA BEGAN
MAKINMG NGTATIOMS IN HER PERSOMAL DIARY REGARDING HEAR SEXUAL RELATIOMSHIR
WITH MR THOMAS, SHE TURMED THE DRIARY COUVER TO MY CUSTODY WHICH I LATER RLACED
IMNTO EVIDENGE AT THE NLUPD. REFER TO COPIES OF INSERTS FOR FURTHER REGARDING

NOTATIDNS MADE BY RDSHANDA .

e g — —— e bt — —_— e b i Bt ——— -

records bursiau processed ser no ! duetective bureau processed S&r no
BARKLEY /DInNE 0374 1

supervisor approving & no ! officer reporting 80 MO
KIMG/R L 0321 | RISENHOOUER/NDRUAL e cinie
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CASE: 94007547 ~———MDRTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DERPARTMEMT~~-- REF: 24223
DATE: 1Z2/08/94 POLECE REPORT - PAGE: 5
TIME: 7:18 ——e—e————eee NARRATIVE PORTI QM= st e OF: &

EACH YWICTIHM I INTERUVIEWED RELATED THAT MR THOMAS WOULD THREATEMN THEM OR
THELIR FAMILY IF THEY TOLD WHAT WAS QCCUARING. EUVEN THOUGH NONE OF THE THREE
HAD ANy TYPE OF SEXUAL COMTACT WITH MR HARRY WEBB, EACH VICTIM INDICATED
THAT THEY BELIEUVED HE AS FULLY AUARE OF SOME OF THE SEXUAL CONTACTS THAT
"EACH HAD WITH MR THOMAS .

APPOINTMENTS HAUE BEEM MADE WITH S.A I . N.T. #0R EACH VICTIM TO BE
EXAMINED FOR SEMUAL ABUSE. EACH VICTIM INDICATED THE POSSIBILITY OF
ADDITIOMNAL YICTIMS WHO ARE CURRENT OR PAST MEMBERS OF THE DRILL TEAM. AT
THIS TIME, I AM ATTEMRTING TO OBTAIN A COMPLETE LIST OF NAMES OF OTHER
MEMBERS 50 THRT I MAY CONTACT ERCH TO ASCERTAIMN IF ANy ARE, INM FACT, WICTIMS
OF SEXUAL RBUSE. INUESTIGATIOM IS CONTINUING.

records bureau processed ser no ! detective bureau processed sEer no
BRARKLEY/DIANE Q37s

sSupervisor approving ser no | officer reporting ST no
KING/R L 0321 1 RISEMNHODUER/MDRUAL xIaP
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(..F'lSE GHOOTELT —=—=NORTH LAS VEGAS PDLICE DEPARTMENT-~—— REF: 26004
DATE: 12/Q8/98 e ROLYCE REPORT—=rom—— i e PAGE: 1
TIME: 718 e e [MUESTIGATIVE  PORT L QN = oo oF: =2

2 T Y G S o PR B Gl 0 0 306 A 00 0 306 706 o i 0 D06 00 6 00 o e DI D 6 6 T 20 7 e 3 B0 o e e e e 300 i o e MG e T A e e

—————————————— IMCILODENT FOLLOWUP- - — e — e ———
clagssification/additianal iniormation: | gang related?
SEXUAL ASSAULT/STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION/UICTIM UNDER 14 l MO
invest burgaus/units nptified:
location of pocurrence: I rpt. dist: €2 neighborhood: JBG

C 1001 E CAREY AVE ! CHARLIE & JIM BRIDGER
fFrom: date s time I ota: date / time 1 repori: date / time
10/11/93 / 20:00 Shnrse4 4 20 00 | e/a25/94 ; 8:03
hate orime? MNO | fingerprints? NO i
reeiing? ! prosacute? | prop report? t wvehl report? | arrest rpt? | attach?
DTHER t YES ! MO | MG 1 NO |
Pl 206 5 6 6 0 0 7 0036 O 06 ol e e o 0 2 0 O 0 0 0 98 G S0 0 N6 D W 0 3 S0 e 0 0 e 30 0 O e S W G 0 o W e o e e o ot
——— ———— e — =M ETHOD OF OPERATI ON-—- —————
residential ~——type: target security:
pon=-rasidtl——tupe: target: security:
entry-——-—logation: method:
gxnit———=locatiaon: method:
suspect actions:
[N B. C.
. E. F.
G. H. T.
N 0 o o6 0 e o 6 e I A O S e 0 N 0 o S N 6 00 30 A 06 S e 06 306 906 2 06 00t 0 A 00 3 3 0 0 2 o S O 06 20 9 ok 90 K e
———————————————————————————————— napm e =i =D SPOSI TIONG e m e e e — -
[ JI-UNFOUNDED/ND CRIME-~0 [ 3-SUBMITTED D.A.~———w— 5 [ 1-RECLASSIFY ——rm——w—— 10
£ JI-JUUENILE~——=~——w———~1 [ 1-ADMIN. CLEARED——-——-— & [ 1-YIC REFUSED PROS.,-—-11
[ 2-MNOM DETECTIVE CLR—-~2 [ JI-EXCEPTIOMALLY CLR-=~7 [ I-AFFIDAJIT—~—r——m——we i2
[ J=-DETECTIUVE RRREST——=-3 ( I~SCREEN CLEAREOD—-—-—=-—=8 [ 1-CA/D8 DENIAL-~=w——w=- 13
L 1-SUBMITTED CI'TY ATTY-# { I-NQ CHGS FILEDINCF)-~-% [ 1-QTHER- 14
m**»**&****ww*#w***m****w***ww*w&****#******m**wwmmmm**m*m**ww****m****mm*mw***
- ———em —_——— e RECQRDS ~ e e — e —— e — e —
clagas code———ucr | sid npumber ! date ser no ! date =zer no
1 [ enter ! cieared
i I sgope | sope
! i !
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raecnrds hureau processed sar no | detective bureau processed ser no
BARKLEY/OIANE H37&

supervi sor approving sar ho ! officer reporting aer no
FORTL/JOSEPH 05464 | RISEMHODOUER/MORUAL Q3I8Y
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.. CASE: S4007547 ———=MORTH [.AS UEGAS ROLICE DEPARTMENT—ww— REEF: 26004
CDATE: 12/08/94 - POLICE REPORT NAGE: 2

CUTIME: Tie C m———— “~MARRATIVE PORTION=——=—— e oF: 2.

.- AT THIS POINT IN THE INUESTIGATION, ATTEMPTS ARE BEiNG MADE TO CONTRbT
"OTHER POSSIBLE VICTIMS. INVESTIGATION IS CONTIMNUING. _ e

-.-.V'r<:or-d5 bur#au processed ser no ! detective buresau processad | sar no.
BARKLEY /DIAMNE 0376 | ' ’
'-‘-":.Qﬁparwi.snr approving ser no | officer reporting ' Her .no R
FORTI /JOSEPH _' GS&4 | RISEMHOQUER/ NORUVAIL a3es
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CASE : Q4007547 —~——MORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DERARTMENT-——-—- REF: 27813
DRTE:. 1&/0&s94 0 —o—eemo—mm——eee POLICE REPORT .- PAGE : 1
TIME: A N - Tl IMUESTIGATIVE PORTIOM-————————— oF: 3

**********#*##*******ﬁ#&ﬁ***#&#*#**#*#m******#**#*****ﬁﬁ##***#***#ﬂ*&***ﬁiﬁ##ﬁﬂ

e e e — w—merm e — e —= = TNC I DENT  FOLLOWUR - e ——en
claseificatipnradaditional information: | gang related?
BEXUAL. ASSAULT/STATUTORY SEXUAL SERDUCTIOM/VICTIM UNDER 14 { NG

e S ) — - ——— T —

invest bursaus/unihs notified:

Frr— - —_— [P —_ - —_ d——

logation of recurrence: I vpt. dist: C28 nelghborhoeod: JBG

1o00 E CAREY AUK ! CHARLIE 2 JIr BRIDGER

fraom: date / time | ta: date / time [ report: date / time

1G7L0L795 4 20040 ! S/nL/ie4 ¢ 20 00 ¢t QA1 L94 4 142
hate orime] HNO U fingaevprints? MO 4
routing? | prosecute? ' prop repori? 1 wehl report? | arrest rpt? 1 oattach?
OTHER ! YES ! MG ! MO 1 NO t YES
00 00 A0 0 90 N0 006 O 0 S0 b 8 30 A ol e 3K e a1 o e 9 o 0K ot R S M e o 0 o 0 0 3 b e Y S M 0 O 06 o ol e R N M
————————————————— METHOD OF OPERATION-~——w=——

residential———=type: target: security:
non-residil~-—typea: target: segurity:
entnry-——-location: method:

agit—~-—=Location; methoed:

puspatt actions:

A . 8. C.

U, E. F.

G. H. 1.
0006 9 0061200 00 0 0 60 A 0 G 06 M 0 o TG O e o e ol 3 O 0 M 0 09 0 S 0 0 6 0 K e O 6 O 96 0 6 M o o
- DI SPOS LTI ONE —— rmas e e o et e it o e e
C J~-UNFOUNDED/NG CRIME-~-D [ 1-SUBMITTED D.A.~———==5 [ I1-RECLASSIFY——rw—mmu—w— 10
£ I JUUENILE~—— o —mor——e 1 [ 3-ADMIN. CLEAREDw———-—& [ 1-UIC REFUSED PRQS ——114
£ 3—MNOMN DETECTIVE CLR-~—& [ JI-EXCEPTIONALLY CLRA~——7 [ I-AFFIBAVIT=—wme——— —_—1g
[ 1-DETECTIVE ARREST—-~~3 [ I1-SCREEN CLEARED—————- & L 1-Ca/bdp DENIAL—-———— 13
£ I-SUBMITTED CITY ABTTY~4 { I1~MO CHGS FILEDINCF)~=8 [ 1~DTHER— == —rw—m———me] 2
#
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wlase codege-uor date ser no

i 1 date ser no
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! mcope 1 sCope
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H
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CASE: 4007547 e -MORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE DERARTMENT———- REF; 27813
DATE: 12/06/94 - POLICE REPORT - - PAGE: 2
TIME: 7:18 —meeeee e PERSONS FORT I ONw ot — s e OF: 3

***#*****ﬁﬁ*********ﬁ*******ﬂ#****************************ﬂ************mm******

name of person {(D0O1): I type: W I secupation: I susp id?7
OLESON/KEWVINM | WITHESS I DOCTOR L NO
sex | race: W hisp: N ! dab tage ! hgt ! wgt | hair | eves | bld ! cmp
4] I WHITE i 1 ! | | ! 1 !
aliam—aka: I birthplace:
alias-aka: | ssn: mf no:
addr: 4
business: 5. A. L .N.T, S444 E BONAMZA LV NU &9101 1 435-5371
descriptors:
descriptors:
**m**w*m*m***wmmwm***awm****m*mw*m#*mm*m**m**w**m***********m*m&m*m******w*****
nams of person (002} I type: W ! pecupation: 1 susgpn idy
KMIGHT/BETH I WITNESS { NURSE PRACTITIONER | MO
sy | race: W hisp: N ! dob I age ! hgt ! wgt | hair | eyes | Bld | cmp
F ool wHlTE ! ! ! H ! ! ! t
alias—aka: | birthplage:
alias—aka: ! sER: mf no:
acidr : !
buzginess: §.a4.I.N.T. 3444 £ BONANZA LV NU 87101 I #53-5371

descriptors:
descriptors:

— - ——rn ~—— e

records buread processed asr np | detective bureau processed ser no
¢
.. supervisor approving sar na | gfficer teporting ser no
FORTL/JOSEPH 0Ssd | RISENHODUER/MORUAL - o3ee -

| e e e e o ——————— e e o —— R




CASE: 98007547 —~~~NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT—-—— REF: 27213
DATE: 1RIQEIFEG e POLICE REPORT = mmm e PAGE: 3
TIME: 7:18  mem—— e NARRATIVE POATION—~——~———mm———— OF: 3

ARLETHA, CHANNELL AND ROSHANDA WERE EXAMINED AT THE S5.A.1.N.T. CLINIC
FOR SEXURAL. ABUSE. CHARNELL WAS EXAMINED ONM D&/17/94 BY DR OLSOM. ARLETHA WaAS
EXAMIMED ON 0&8/16/%4 BY BETH KMIGHT. ROSHAMDA WAS EXaAMINED OM B&/28/94 BY DR
QLSON. EAGCH GIRL HRAD EVIDENCE OF HYMEMNAL TRAUMA. REFER TO HEDRICAL. REPORTS
FOR FURTHER IMFORMATION.

DURIMG MY INTERUVIEWS WITH CHANMELL, ARLETHA AMND ROSHANDA ERCH ADUVISED
THERE WERE POSSIBLY TWELWVE HMORE VICTIME. OUER THE NEXT SEUERAL MOMTHS, EACH
POSSIBLE VICTIM WAS CONTACTED aAND EACH RALATED THAT aT MO TIME DID THEY Houe
ANY TYPE OF SEXUAL CONTACT WITH MR THOMAS. THEY WERE IDENTIFIED AS MATILDA
AND JOANMA WaTTSs, SYLuaNMA FITZGERALD,., MICHELLE CLAY, SHANISHR WRIGHT,
SHJUANA HARRIS, DERMMA CRIMER, MNATASHA LONG, SHAWN PHILLIPS, aalLlvak
JOHMSON, SHARONDS HOWARD AND SHATIEA WRIGHT.

MR THOMAS WAS CONMNTACTED AND RESPOMDED TO THE NLUPD OM 10/LL1/94
ARECARDING THE ALLEGATION. DBURING HIS FORMAlL. STATEMEMT, HE DENIED EUER HAUIMG
HAD AMY TYPE OF SEXUAL CONTACT W1TH THE VICTIMS OR ANY MEMBER, CURREMT QR
PAST, OF THE DRILL TEAM. INUESTIGATION IS CONTINUIMNG.

— e e e e e ke ————

racords buread processed ser no | detective bureau processed s@Er no
!

supeErvisor approwving sar nae | officer reporiting S no

FORTI f JOSEPH 2564 | RISENHOQUER/MNORUAL 038




CRSE: 94007547 —-~~NORTH LLAS VEGAS POLICE DEDARTHENT——we- REF a7s21
DATE: 12/08/94 —ce—ceeec—e—oe POLICE REPORT—w—————m S PAGE: 1
TIME: 7:19 mmr e m e ENUESTIGATIVE  PORT LON=-=-~~ ————— oF: 1

K*#ﬂ**##***ﬁ*&H**#*********m*****#***#***************#******ﬂW***#***#***m#ﬁﬂk*

5wt i e e T e L INCIDENT FOLLOWUP——
clasgification/additional intformation: bogang raelated?y
SEXUaL. ASSAULT/STATUTCRY SEXUAL SEDUCTION/VICTIM UNDER 14 ! MO

] T T m——

invest bureaus/dnits notified:

location of occurrence: i rpt. dist: C2 neighborhood: JBG
10010 E CAREY AuE 1 CHARL.IE =2 JIM BRIDGER
Pram: date / time ! to: date /s time ! report: date / time
1041193 f 20:00 1 S/01/94 5 20 00 ¢ 11704/94 / 15141
hate crime? NO I fingerprintsa? MO !
routing? ! prosecute? | prop reperi? | vehl report? | oarrest rpt? | attach?
OTHER | YES | NO i MO f NG 1 YES
" e e 3 o ot 6 N M e 4 30 M 0 1 30 0 0 o 20 02 0 P b T e 906 Y 0 3 o 0 S o0 e 0 I 2 0 30 e ke o o069 e 0 e i A VR e 90 o 6 Pt o o O O ot R
e ——— —— METHDD OF OPERATICON——-- —
residantial —%Ltype: target: security:
nol-resridtl———typea; target: security:
entry———-— location: method:
exit———-—lacation: method:

suspect actions:

A, B. c.

D. E. F.

G. M. I.
G O O 1 33 S G 0 O M 96 O 6 e o S N 0 90 S e 0 3 16306 06 06 € 0 3 59 30 o O 6 o 35 56 9 96 b
—————————————— ——— e DI GPOSTI TI DN ————reem ——— e e -
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CRI-JUVENI LE~————— e i 1 ¢ J-AabDMIN. CLEARED—————- o [ 1-UIG REFUSED PRDS.,-—-11
[ 1-MOM DETECTIVE CLR——~2 { JI-EXCERTIONALLY CLR~—7 [X]1-AFFIDAUI T—m=mm—— e 12
£ I-DETECTIW ARREST—~——3 [ 3I-5CREEN QLEARED~————=8 { 3-CR/Df DEMIAL—~——————13
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CﬁaC FUONTIHT —~—=NMORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPHPTHENT—~~* REF : 2B209
TRATE: 1R/0e/94 000 —e——ee wmmm— PO YCE REPORT - —msmiramim — e PAGE : 1
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inwvest bureaus/units notiflied:
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 CASE: 94007547 ~mwNORTH 1LAS UEGAS ROLICE DEPARTMEMNT == REF : 26209
DATE: 1B/08/98 e —— e POLICE REPORT PAGE: 2
CTIME;  7:i4& e NEORRATIUE PORTEDN——mm————— e oF: g2

- AT THE TIME DF THE REPDRTED SEXUAL CONTACTS WITH MR THOMAS, BDTH
ARLETHA SAMDERS (03/04/79) AND CHANMELL JACKSOMN (12/15/79) WERE 14 YRS OLD.

S ROSBHANDA TURNER {04/20/81) WAS 12 YRS QLD DURING MNUMEROUS XNCIDENTS OF

T FONMDLING WHICH WAS BETWEEN 09/93 TO 10/93. SHE WAS ALSCO 12 YRS OLD DURING

THE FIRST i TIMES SHE HaADR SEXUAL INTERCOURSE WITH HIM BETWEEMN 10/11/93 TO

.Q2/25/94. SHE WAS 13 YRS OLD WHEN SHE HAD INTERCOURSE WITH HIM FOR THE 15TH
TIME ON O05/01/94.

e

records bureau proce&ssed ger no ! detective bureau processed ser np
!

‘supervisor approwving ser Ao | officer reporting ser no

FORTI/JOSERH 05a4 | RISENMHOOWVER/NORWAL QEBo

e+ o —_———— - —
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CASE: F400TIHT ——-=-MDATH LAS WVEGAS ROLICE DEPARTMEMNT-——- RAEF: 2510
CDATE: 32/08IF4 e POLICE REPDAT——— o ———— e PAGE: 2
TIME: 7:1@ e o PERASONS PORTI OM—— e e e - OF: 4

0 R P OO R L O 20 P D N o D e M B e 3 o D O Y W A

name of perssn (Q01): I type: S ! pococupation: ! susp id?
_THONQSILQRHY JAMES { SUSPECT | | YES
asax | race: B hisp: M akal-' ! age ! hgt | wgt ! hair | eyes | bld ! cmp
1 I BLRCK 1 fes | 27 I 307 | 197 | BLK | BRO | t
. alias—aka: ! birthrlarea:
alias—aka: ! s=n: 3241 mf no:
addr: 1729 HELEM MLy N BFL30 | SHYTISEQ

business: |

descriptoras:
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R DN PO 0 RN P T O R 0 P 00 0 0 00 0 D0 D0 O O 00 0 R 0 0 D S O O R M

hame DF person (0023 ' type: LW i peoupation: ! sausp id%

GLAZIER T. PH70L i WITMNESS ! POLICE OFFICER ! YES

sax | race: hisp: ! dab I age | hget | wgt | halr 1 eyes ! bld ! emp
! | ! | | ! { f !

alias—aka: I birthplate:

alias—aka: | smn: mf no:

addr {

business: MLV POLICE DEPT 1301 E LMBE I 6499513

dascriptors:

descriptors:

resords hHureau processed ser no | detective bureéau processed ser no
t

supervisor appraving ser no | eofficer reparting ser no
| aRMSTROMG/ JOHN Q73&
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CASE: 94007547 ~—~—NDORTH LAS UEGAS POLICE ODEPARTMENT—~—— REF: 2ESHL0
DATE; LR/OE/FE e ~==POLICE RERORT——mmm e PAGE: 3
TIME: 7:18 0 mem—emme e PROPERTY PORTION-————mmm e OF: 4
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np. artods type--descriptive information on property—————— stolen rechver

additional descriptive information-————rmwcermme e e — value value
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cal: call: cola; 1913

SERDLOGY KIT BELONGING TO THOMAS
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CASE: P4007S47 -——~MNORTH LAS VEGAS KOILICE DEPARTMENT———- REF : 28610
CATE: 12/08/94 e e BOLLCE REPORT—m—~——— = ————— PACE: 4
TIME: 7:i@  —eee e NARAATTUE PORTION-————— e oF: 4

ON 120794 APPROX. 1730 HOURS OFFICER GLAZIER AND I WENT T0O 1789 HELEN
"IN REFERENCE TO A SUBJECT WHO HAD HAD A& FELONY WARRANT FOR SEXUML ASSAULT
CHARGES . THE SUDJECT IN QUESTIOMN WaAS IDYED AS LARRY JAMES THOMAS.

ON ARRIVAL TO THE HOUSE I WAS ABLE TO GOMTACT THOMAS, I ADVIESED HIM HE
- WAS UNDER ARREST FOR SEXUAL ASSAULT, STATUTORY SEXMUAL SEDUCTION. LEWDNESS
WETH MINOAR, SEXUaL ASSAULT WETH i MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE. THUS HE
Was TRaANSPORTED TO THE HLWY JAIL WHERE HE Was BODRDKED OM THE ABOVE LISTED
CHARGE . WHILE AT THE JAllk. I WITHESSED THE MURSE JEANNE SCHNORF TRKE A
SERQOLOGY STAMNDARDRS KIT. I KEZT THIS RPROPERTY IN MY POSSESSION UNTILL IT WAS
BOOKED INTO THE NLV PDLLICE DERT. ATTALH: BOOKING SHEET, DECLARATION FOR
WITHORAWAL OF WHOLE BLOOD SAMPLE. ALSO IT SHOULD BE NOTED THAT THE WARRANT
OF ARREST WAS RETURNED 7O THE NLU POLICE CEPT. WITH OTHER PARER WORK.

records buresu progessed ser no | detective bureau processed s5er na
!

superviser approving sar no | officer Teporting sS&r no
! BRMETRONG/ JOHM 0755




@la® County Justice Gt
NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

JUDGMENT
{Felony / Misdemeanor)

e e bt o e

TRANSFERRED FROM L.V. JUSTICE CQURT #:

. THE STATE OF NEVADA,

)
Pliniff, ) | FELONY CASE #: 1151-94rw
v ) ARGRX. Ass. (4 cts) Stat. sex. Seduction (3 cts) .
A S ) ewaness Gith a mnor (2 Cttta.{
LARRY JAMES THOMAS '] XM Sex Ass. with minor under 14 yrs of age (8 ci:_,)
—— ) j COMPLAINT FILED: _11=30-94 DR # 94-7547 LV
) 846620
LD, # T .
) Amendad Criminal Conplalf Eﬁgdiz-l-gq i
Deifzndant. ) FELONY DISMISSED BY MOTION OF . R
! 1 Date): __2-5-95 DISTRICT ATTORNEY |.
COURT

COMPLAINT INTERLINEATEL;

MISDEMEANOR CASE #:
CHARGE:

(See Information Bglo_u;) -

COMPLAINT FILED:
NHP CITATION: METRO CITATION:

I.D. # ARREST DATE:
DOB: SSN:

DR #

MISDEMEANOR CASE INFORMATION
» Defendant entercd plea of
the Cour: gave the following ORDER:

Bail Forfeited. . L
* Case Dismissed by the Court. IR
Case Dismissed by Motion of District Attorney. :
Case Dismissed by Motion of Defendant,
Defendant Found Nat Guilty,
Deferdant Found Guiliy.
* Fined In the Sum of §, +
Sentenced To Serve
Defendant Given Credit For Time Served. _____ Days.
. ‘DUI Schodl, o

Administrative Assessment Fee +

Analysis Fee,

Community Service: Hours,
——— Petit Larceny Schoal, ’
- Revocation Of Driver’s License.
Vietim Jmpact Panel. Counseling.
. OTHER: _
1-6-95 STEPHEN J. DAHL, JUSTICE OF THE PEACE -
Lo e W o NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP : x
Co - Clerk: : : :
- DISTRIBUTION: . WHITE - Cauit/Felory  CANARY - DMV /Misd. PINK - Metw/NIVPD. ¢ et

AA2465
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(illaﬁ ('Inuntg Juztm: (ﬁurt

NORTH LAS VEGAS ']'DWNSH]P

' JUDGMENT
(Felony / Misdemeanor)-

THE STATE OF NEVADA,  TRANSFERRED FROM L. JUSTICE COURT #:

FELONY CASE #: - 1181-G4FN

a: (4 cts) Stat. sex. Sedvction 3c )
eas"ﬁ%Eﬁ‘émx):‘ﬂ—‘EEﬁi_ (3 cts) -

X¥ Sex Asy. with minor under 14 yrs of age (8 cte)| -

- Plaietff,

| LARRY JAMES THOMAS

COMPLAINT FILED: 11-30-94 DR 4 94=7547 NLV _
_ o - i

LD. 8466

Amgnded Criminal Corrplaiggs¥ I)1252-1—94

Defendant. FELONY DISMISSED BY MUTION OF:

(Date): 439 X DISTRICT ATTORNEY | - -
1,8,9,11 only DEFENDANT - o
COURT .

S e Y M St S St T e S

1 COMPLAINT INTERLINEATED:

MISDEMEANOR CASE # .. (See Informidtion Below)

CHARGE:

COMPBLAINT FILED: _‘ T DR #:
NHP CITATION:  METRO ClTATlON.
b & : ARREST DATE:

ISDEMEANOR, CASE INFORMATION . DOB: SSN:

Defendant entered plea of
the Court gave the following ORDER:

Bail Farfeited,
.~ Case Dismissed by the Court. :
Case Dismissed by Metion of District Atorney.
Caza Digmissed by Motion of Defendant,
.. Defendant Found Not Guilty.
" Defendant Found Guilty. . o
Fined In the Sum of § + Administrative Assessment Fee + — Analysis Fee.
~Sentenced To Serve i : o
- Defendant Given Credit For Time Served. ... Days,
DU School.
Community Service: .. Hours.
Petit Larceny School.
. . Revocation OF Driver’s License, )
Victim Impact Panel, Counseling.
. OTHER; ' :

o 1685 : - STEPHEN J. DAHL, JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
T w NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

. . InSTRIBUTION: wuma Cnun‘l‘tlnn'_v "CANARY - DMV (Misd, PINK Metm-‘NLVPD

e
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S @la&h County Justice '&n.urt

NORTH LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

THE STATE OF NEVADA, o | o " District Court Case No. .
| o Plaintiif, . . Justice Court Cnse No. . 1181-04FN .
_ mnay JAMES HONAS, | o chMITMENT AND ORDER TO APPEAR

Defendant,

An inicr haﬁing been made this day by me that the above named defendant be held to answer upon the charge(s) of ____;_.__' .

"".f_j Sexuval Assault (3 cts) STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION (3 cts)
' SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER 14 YBARS OF AGE (7 c ts)

committed in Clark County, Novada, o or abow

IT I8 FURTHER ORDERED that unless the Defendant has been previously released on bail or by order of the Court, the Steriff B

 of Clark Cownty receive the above named Defendant imo custody and devdin such Defendant unit such Defendant be legally discharged

 und that such Defendant be admitted to bail in the sum of $82,000 _ cash or bail bond or §_110/000 property =

o bond. {Property bond must be approved in advance by the Court)

- . IT ISFURTHER ORDERED that said Defendant appear in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County Courthouse, 200 South
“ 13

:. Third Street, Las “egas, Nevada on 1~26-93 , ar 2300 AM., Depariment ¥

004

arraignment and further proceedings.

. DATED January 6, 1995

S for o

STEPHEN J. DAHL, Justice of the Peace
North Las Vegas Township

T JCN-MT
. (Rev, W94}
- NRS 17208
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DISTRIST COUURT }
FILED
i 178 55 g a5

.
do AL AAG . ::Z-w,; feares

CLAAK COUNTY, NEYADA

State of Wevada

Plainglfs,

)
}
)
! CLFRI
vs. ;
Larzy J. Thomas } Case No. (125353
, ] Depk. N3, 13
Sefandant. ) Docker No.
- MEDIA RBQUEST
Erik Pappa ¢ of KlLAS-TUR

hareby raguests perzisalon te broadcast, record, photograph or

talevise proceedings in the above-entitled case in the couxsyoocn

&f Department _13 . Judge Chairez ¢ commencing
en the 26thgey e January . 1895 ,

1 cartify thak I'an femiliar with the contents of
Nevads Standazrds of Conduct and Technology ADRT 26.
' I alag understand that this fora nust bo submitted
ko the Court ar least seventy-tve (72) hours bafora the proceeding

e=mmencas unless -good cause cun de shown.

paTRD this 10thgay of January , 1595 .

Erik Pappa ﬁ‘
MEDLA ROPRESLNTA
792-1488
"WEGIA FHONE HUMDER
3228 Channel 8 Dr., LV, NV 89109
MEDIA ADDHESS

————

[Eesil |

. - -y

L16¢26Le0L "ON Xud

8 AL-SHT

£G:€1 3NL 96-01-Nul'
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DISTRICT COURT :
vy
LARK COUNTY, NIYARA “—ED

JwiT 856 M9

case Ne. C1253533
Bazmn. X2, 13
Defgndant. . Crakarn Ye. o

Larry J, Theomas

. (;yﬁlz;L~¢ah‘ e
State of Nevada ; cLED
}
Plaintisf, ;
va. }
}
)
]

CORDBR GRANTING PBRMISSICR OF MBDIA ENIRY

Ypon written raguess of Exik Papna ¢ of

KLAS-TV fer written permission te breoadcasts

recerd, phetegrash, cr televise praceedings lIn the abeve-gntitled
case: ib the gourtraoom of Departisal =~ 13 , ana being satisiled that |
approval of this reguest ¥ould not distract participanta, impair
*ha dignity of the proceedings eor othorwise materially interfess
vith the achievement of a fair tzial or hearing herein.

I TS BER2BY ORDERED thalt permission is granted 23 requested
for each and evaery hearing on the abeve-entitlad case snlass |
ormerwige naki®ied. The Media Ragquest is in accordance with
Vevada Standards of Conduct and Techrnology ADED 26.

17 TS FURTHEZR ORDERZD that thig eahey fhail be made a
part ©f thu recosd of the peocaedings in thls cagde.

DATRD this Pﬂ& day G.OMWJ_ ‘

QM?Z@W

DISTRIZT JURGE

——
[T
, (2
el 1 _
1162261201 'O K94 § ALY 286l 3L SB-01-NU
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STEWART L. BELL _ '
DISTRICT ATTORNEY _ : H { oo
Nevada Bar #000477 : . L ¥

200 8. Third Street _
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 '
' | o dm T 8 asPH'ES

!

(702) 455-4711 SRR
Attorney for Plaintiff &7.< '

-THE STATE OF NEVADA : "

M e W sz b e B 7Y

| CLERK L
DEPT. XIII . . .
9:00 A.M.
R. Archie

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. Cl1l25353

Plaintiff, DEPT. NO. XIII .
-vs- DOCKET NO. G

LARRY JAMES THOMAS,
#0B46620,

INFORMATTON

Defendant.

STATE OF NEVADA )
188;
COUNTY OF CLARK )

STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney within and for the County
of clark, State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of ﬁhe
State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That LARRY JAMES THOMAS, the Defendant, having committed thé'
crimes of STATUTORY SEXUAL BEDUCTION (Felony - NRS 200.364_,
200.268)  SEXUAL ASSAULT {(Felony =~ NRS 200.364, 200.366) and BEXUAL
ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE (Felony - NRS
200,264, 200.366), on or between October 1983, and May 1, ;994,'
within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary toeo the.fdrm, 

r—
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force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and
against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
COUNT_ I - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or bhetween February 1994, and March 19294, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously subject CHANELL
JACKSON, a female person under the age of 16 years, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in.
the vagina of the said CHANELL JACKSCN, the Defendant being 21
years of age, or older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to,
or gratifying the 2lust, passions, or sexual desires of said
defendant, or said child.
COUNT II - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about November 20, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexuwally assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: by
inserting his finger in the vagina of the sald ARLETHA SANDERS,
against her will.
COUNT III - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about February 21, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penie in the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS, against her will.
co IV ~ STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February 21, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a female
person under the age of 16 years, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vagina of the

2
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said ARLETHA SANDERS, the defendant being 21 years of age, or?
older, with the intent of arousing, appealing te, or gratifying the
lust, passions, or sexual desires of said defendant, or said child.
COUNT V - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about February 21, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to—wit:.
cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said_
ARLETHA SANDERS with his tongue, against her will.
COUNT VI - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February 21, 1994, on or about February 21,
1994, then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually
assault and subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a female person, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the
vagina of the said ARLETHA SANDERS with his tongue, against her
will.
COUNT VII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE:

did, on or about October 11, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniocusly sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER,against her will, or
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT VIIT - ;?E}:{UAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF

did, during December 1983, then and there wilfully,

3
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unlawfully, and feloniougly sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUN - BEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about January 26, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexuél
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT X - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about February 5, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UHDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about February 25, 1994, then and there wilfully,

unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
4
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TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the wvagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or
under conditions in which Pefendant knew, or should have knowﬁ,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE
did, on or about May 1, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA:
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to gexual
penetration, to-wit: saxual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have Kknown,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.,
COUNT XITT - gggUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
did, on or hetween October 11, 1993, and May 1, 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and
subject ROSHANDA TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of
age, to sexual penetration, to-wit: cunnilingus, by insertihg
andfor licking the vagina of the sald ROSHANDA TURNER with his
tongue, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant

knew, or should have known, that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was
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mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the

nature of Defendant’s conduct.

STEWART L. BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477
Navada Bar #005107

7,

LUI ROJAS ’
Deputy District Attorney

The names of the witnesses known to the District Attorney’s
Office at tha time of filing this information are as follows: .

HAME ADDRESS
Brown, <Cory P.0. Box 1737, LV, HNv B91235
Jackson, Channel LV KV 89101
Knight, Beth 3444 E Bonanza, LV, Nv 83910l
Olson, Kevin 3444 E Bonanza, Lv, Nv 89101
Ortiz, Eduardo Jr NLVPD P#&82
Pérent-Guardian of C. Jackson - LV,Nv
Parent-Guardian of R. Turner NLV, Nv 89030
Risenhoover, Norval NLVPD P#38B9
Sanders, Arletha . NLv, Nv BS030
Sanders, Louise . NLV, Nv B9030
Turner, Roshanda . NLV, Nv B8S030
DAF94FN1181X/msr

NLVPD DR#94-7547
SEX ASS; STAT SEX SED; SEX ASS W/MIN-F
{TK7)
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* " 1] STEWART L. BELL FER G 1995 19. -
. | DISTRICT ATTORNEY o = : A
2l Nevada Bar #000477 LORETTA BOWMAN, \-f--’( —

200 8. Third Street y Ty (7 S

3{ Las Vegas, Nevada 88155 whu’u{h@/ Dewuty

{702) 455-4711

4] Attorney for Plaintiff : o] e
| THE STATE OF NEVADA , ) S Ol
“.
6 "_f'l';..:.}‘;‘
7
g8
9 DISTRICT COURT
10 c CO EVAD

113 THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C125353

)
12 .. Plalntiff, - ) DEPT. NO. XIII
3 E {13 L ) DOCKET NO. @G
a 2 3 )
~8 & 14] LARRY JAMES THOMAS, )
W #0846620, )
R 15} ). AMENDETD
s o _ o ) INFORMATION
o U0 j1s : Defendant. " © })° '
& 3 &{17 y
Vi Ao
. g.;-é-. cu 18] STATE OF NEVADA ;
. s5:
& E:f & {19] counTy OF CLARK )
% 8 3. 20 _ STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney within and for the County
S -

21} of clark, State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority of t__he_
22 Stéte of Nevada, informs the Court: | 1
23] That LARRY JAMES THOMAS, the Defendant, having committed the |
24) crimes of STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION (Felony - NRS 200.364,
25] 200.368) ; BEXUAL ASSBAULT (Felony - NRS 200,364, 200.366) and SEXUAL
26{ ASSAULT WITH A MINCR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE (Felony ~ NRS

‘27F 200,364, 200.366), on or between October 1993, and May 1, 1994, .

oF @ U;@ "

28] within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, |
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force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and
against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,
COUNT I -~ STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or between February 1994, and March 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and felonlously subject CHANELL
JACKESON, a female person under the age of 16 years, to sexuél"'
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis.in
ﬁhe vagina of the said CHANELL JACKSON, the Defendant being 2i
years of age, or older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to,
or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said
defendant, or =said child.“
COUNT_TII - SEXUAL ASSAULY

did, on or about November 20, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: by
inserting his finger in the vagina of the said ARLETHA SANDERS{
against her will.
COUNT III - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on or about February 21, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANDERS, a }emale person, to sexual penetration, to-wit: sexual
intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS, against her will,
COUNT IV -~ STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February 21, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a female
person under the age of 16 years, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in the vagina of the

2
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sald ARLETHA SANDERS, the defendant being 21 years of age, or
older, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the
lust, passions, or sexual desires of said defendant, or said child.
COUNT ¥ - SEXUAL ASSAULT

did, on eor about February 21, 1954, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ARLETHA
SANCERS, a female person, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS with his tongue, against her will.
COUNT VI - STATUTORY SEXUAL SEDUCTION

did, on or about February 21, 1992, then and there wiliunlly,
unlawfully, and feloniously subject ARLETHA SANDERS, a female
person under the age of 15 years, to sexual penetration, to-wit:
cunnilingus, by inserting and/or licking the vagina of the said
ARLETHA SANDERS-with his tongue, the'd.efendani: being 21 years of
age, or older, with the“intént:of arousing, appealing teo, or
gratifying the lust, passions,ibf'seiﬁai desires of said defendant,
or said child.
COUNT VII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

éid, on or about October 11, 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully,‘and feloniocusly sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER,against her will, or
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable

of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

/177
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COUNT VITII - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

did, during December 1993, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feleoniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT IX - SEX_UAL ASSAULT WIZ‘H A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, on sr about Januafy 26, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously 5exually assault and subject ROSHANDA.
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis in
the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, égainst her will, or under
conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known, that the
said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable of
resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT X - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, on or about February 5, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen vyears of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known,
that the sald ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.

4
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COUNT XI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, on or about February 25, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject ROSHANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis .
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or-
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XIT -~ SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINCR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF AGE

did, on or about May 1, 1994, then and there wilfully,
unlawfully, and feloniously éexually assault and subject ROSQANDA
TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of age, to sexual
penetration, to-wit: sexual intercourse, by inserting his penis
in the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER, against her will, or
under conditions in which Defendant knew, or should have known,
that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was mentally or physically incapable
of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant’s conduct.
COUNT XIITI - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF

AGE

did, on or between October 11, 1993, and May 1, 1994, then and
there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and
subject ROSHANDA TURNER, a female child under fourteen years of
age, to sexual penetration, to-wit: cunnilingus, by inserting
and/or licking the vagina of the said ROSHANDA TURNER with his
tongue, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant

knew, or should have known, that the said ROSHANDA TURNER was

1
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mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the |

nature of Defendant’s conduct.

STEWART L. BELL

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #£000477
Nevada Bar #005107

BY //’2"7%

S ROJAS
eputy District Attnrney
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The names of the witnesses known to the District Attorney?s
Office at the time of filing this information are as follows: .

HAME ADDRESS
Brown, Cory P.O. Box 1737, LV, Nv 89125
Hiramfiggures, Tony Unknown
Jackson, Channel LV, Nv 89101 -
Knight, Beth 3444 E Bonanza, LV, Nv 89101
Nikia "Pickle" Unknown
Olecn, Kevin 3444 E Bananza, LV, Nv B%910l1

ortiz, Eduarde Jr.
Parent-Guardiqn_of C. Jackeon,
Parent-Guardién_of R,.Tufnéf ﬁ
Risenhoove;} ﬁpfvéiﬁ?. -“ :
Sanders, Arle?ha

Sanders, Loﬁiée

Turner, Rosﬁaﬁdé

Watts, Hatiida

Webb, Harry Jr.

Willlams, Doris

Wright, Shanisha

CLAY, MICHELLE

CRINER, DEANNA

FITZGEHALD, SYLVANNA

HARRIS, SHJUANA

HOWARD, SHARONDA

JOHNSON, AALIYAH

DA#S4FN1181X /sy
NLVED DR§94-7547

NLVPD P#682
LV, Nv
. NLV, Nv asoao_ﬁ
NLVPD P#389
."Niv, Nv 89030

, NLV, Nv 89030

. 'NLV, NV 89030

 Unknown

'iﬂﬁkhoun.
Unknown
unknown
C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVEﬁ
C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
C/0 DETECTIVE N, RISENHOOVER
C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
C/Q DETECTIVE N. RISENHQOVER
C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER

Continued...

SEX AS5S5; STAT SEX SED; SEX ASS W/MIN-F

(TK7)
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LONG, NATASHA
PHILLIPS, SHAWN
“SANDERS, BARBARA

WATTS, JOANNA

 BANKS, LINDA
CLARK, KATHY
DESIREE, AKA "RAY RAY"
FITZGERALD, LEE
LONG, JOYCE
WATTS, GWENN

Chemist

Custodian of Records
Meers, Marg;ret; R.N._
wachtelf'pr;

Walker, Dr.
Ravenholt, Dr.or Designee

Lees, Graham, Physician's
Assistant

DA#GAFN1181X/msT

NLVPD DR#84-7547

C/C DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
c/0
c/o

c/0

DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER -

c/0
c/0
c/0
c/0
c/0
c/0

NORVEL RISENHOOVER,

NORVEL RISENHOOVER, NLVPD.

NORVEL RISENHOOVER, NLVPD

NORVEL RISENHOOVER, NLVPD

NORVEL RISENHOOVER, NLVPD

NORVEL RISENHOOVER, NLVPD

Associated Pathologists
Laboratories, LV, NV

Frepont Medical Center;
Premont, LV, NV

Clark County Health District
625 Shadow Ln, LV, NV.

520

Associated Pathologists
Laboratories, LV, NV

Asseciated Pathologists

"~ Laboratories, LV, NV

Clark County Health District
625 Shadow Ln, LV, Ny

Fremont Medical Center Il
Fremont, LV, NV

SEX ASS; STAT SEX SED; SEX ASS W/MIN-F

(TK7)
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LARRY JAMES THOMAS,

pDate of Hearing: 2-16-95
Time of Hearing: #s7-

Dafendant.

2,
BERT ARCHIE, ESQ. S
evada State Bar #: 002574 ' : F -
550 E. Charleston, Ste., #E /i i n
Lag Vegas, Nevada 89104 ' e b
702/383-8112 Feg /5 _
Attorney for Defendant 9, i
LARRY JANES THOMAS . ok L
_ Bty D]
DISTRICT COURT oL Erx e
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA '
ITHE STATE OF NEVADA, )
H
plaintiff, )
)
vs. ) case No. C125353
) Dept. No. XIII
) Docket No.
)
)
)

COMEB MOW, the Defendant LARRY JAMES THOMAS, by and through his
attorney ROBERT nndnxn, ES8Q., and files this Motion for Béil
Reduction, Own Recognizance Release, and/or in the alternative,
House Arrest.

This Motion is made and based upon the papers and pleé.dings on
file herein, the attached Points and Authorities in support hereof,

and the oral argument of Counsel at the time of the hearing.

parEd this /3% day of WM ; 1995.
o /
ROBERT ARCHIE, ESQ.

Nevada State Bar #: 002574
550 E. Charleston, Ste., #E
lLas Vegas, Nevada 89104
702/383-8112

Attorney for Defendant
LARRY JAMES THOMAQ

tgg?;l .. : @!g'

g
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TG: THE BTATE OF NEVADA, PLAINTIFF

TO: BSTEWART BELL, DISTRICT ATTORNEY

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the underaigned will bring

e foregoing MOTION FOR BALIL REDUCTION, OWN RECOGNIZANCE RELEASE,

/OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE; HOUSE ARREST, is hereby acknowledged:
is
- -day of 1995,

DATED this/ZKday of %,’Lgdlu_é);u/lQQS.

]/

ROBERT ARCHIE, EBQ.

Nevada State Bax #: 002574
550 E. Charleston, Ste., 3B
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
702/383-8112

Attorney for Defendant
LARRY JAMES THOMAB

AA2486
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STATE OF NEVADA ) __ AR R
C ) ss:  AFPIDAVIT OF COUNGEL IN SUPPORT OF = |~
COUNTY OF CLARK ) R

“ROBERY ARCHIE, ESQ., being'first;duly'swdrn,-upon oath, hereby. | .

daposes.and says:

1. That he is an attorney duly licensed to practidg'in”théﬁg

D 00 w1 Oy O e D N

highest court in the State of Nevada, and currently maintain§3érléﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁﬁ

office located at 550 East Charleston, Boulevard, Suite, #E,:Laé-] ;.“

.11 Vegas, Nevada, 89104.
18 2. That your Affiant is the Counsel of Record for the above-. |-

14 maned Defendant:.

15 3. That the Defendant is a life-long resident of the City of
16 ras Vegas, and has extensive family ties here in the City.

17 ' ' :
18 4. That the Defendant has never been in trouble with the law

19 hbefere, and has no criminal record.

20 5. That the Defendant was employed at Bally’s Hotel & Casino
21 here in Las Vegas as a Porter until his arrest. '
99

23 6. That the defendant is not a flight risk due to his

24 gxtensive family ties here in lLas Vegas.

25 » - L]
26 o . -
27 i L -

AA2487



7. That this is the Defendant's initial request for a bail :

reduction or Own Recognizance Release at the Dlstrlct CQurt levetx

PURTEBR, your Affiant sayeth naught,

DATED this 15 ay of W , 1995,

u
15
16

17
18 SUBSCRIBED ARD. SWORN to before me

AA2488
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Defendant. " .Date of Hearing:

Time of Hearing:

ROBERT ARCEIE, ESQ.
Nevada 3tate Bar #: 002574
550 E. Charleston, Ste., {E
Las Vagas, Nevada 89104
702/383-8112
Attorney for Defendant
LARRY JAMES THOMAS
DISTRICT COURT
CLARE COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, }
)
Plaintiff, )
: )
VE. } Casa No. 125353
) Dept. No. XIIT
LARRY JAMES THOMAS, ) Docket No.
)
)
)

MEMORANDUM OF PCINTS AND AUTHORITIES
z
BSTATEMENT OF FACTS _
This office represents the Defendant in case #C125353. and has
been apprised of the charges against the Defehdant, as well as the
Defendant’s bail status. 1In the case before the Court, the
Defendant has a current bail setting of $55,000.00,
Ir
ARGUMENT

The Defendant’s current bail is set at $55,000.00, which was
based on $5,000.00 per count in the eleven (11) count criminal

information and 0/R‘s on two additional charges.
The United States Supreme Court has held in gtack v, Boyle,

-1-
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342 U.8. 1 (1952), that the Eighth Amendment to the United States

Constitution provides that "excessive bail shall not be required",

hall be interpreted to mean that the bail set at a figure higher
an an amount reagonably calculated tc provide assurance that the .
ccused will be present at trial was excessive under the Eighth
Amendment., In the case at bar, the Court is faced with a pefendant
whose fipancial resources are close to being classified as | .
indigent, thus any setting of bail must be closely scrutinized to
leansure that the bail as set, does not amount to being excessive

inder the Eighth Amendment.

Moreover, the Constitution of the State of Nevada, Article I,
Saection 6, states that excessive bail shall not be required. The
Supreme Court of the State of Nevada has stated that bail is

wcessive within the prohibition of Article 1, Section &, if the
Fmount is more than the accused can reascnably expect to give under
the circumstances. The Court stated that the factors that should

be considered are:

1. The financial ability of the prisoner;
2. The atrocity of the offense or the surpitude of the crime;

3. The punishment of the crime involved in the charge.

Ex Parte, Malley at 50 Nev. 248, 256 P.2d 512 (1927), and Ex_
arte ow + at 69 Nav, 194, 245 P,.2d4 1004 (19552).

Furthermore, the court stated in the case of In Re: Jaggels

44, Nev. 370, 195 P.2d 808 (1921), that a recent conclusion as to

- -
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what  is reasonable bail "should consider that the object of the

bail is simply to assure that the person accused is at trial". .

The facts to be considered by the Court in setting bail is set

forth in N.R.B. 178.4%8, as follows:

1. The nature and circumstances of the offense charged:;
2. The financial ability of the Defendant to give bhail:
3. The character of the Defendant;

4. The factors listed in N.R.S. 178.4853."

conslderations for release without ball are contained in

N.R.8. 178.4853, azs follows:

#%, The length of his residence in the community;

2. The status and history of his employment;

3, His relationships with his spouse and children,
Parents or other members of his family, and with his close friends;
4. His reputation, character and mental conditien;

5. His prior criminal record, including any record of

Pis appearing or failing to appear after release on bail or without
bhail;

6. The ldentify of responsible members of the community

Who would vouch for the Defendant’s reliabhility:

7. The nature of the offense with which he is charged,

the apparent probability of conviction and the likely sentence,

insofar as these factors relate to the risk of his not appearing:;

=3
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8. The nature and seriousness of the danger to any
person or the community that would be posed by the person’s

release; .
9. The likelihood of more criminal activity by the

Iperson after he is released; and
10. Any other factors concerning his ties to the
community or bearing on the risk that he may willfully fail to

appear®.

In addressing the factors, the Court should consider in
setting bail as set forth in WN.R.S. 178.498, the nature and
circumstances of the offense charged, the Defendant is charged with
three {2) counts of Statutory Sexual Seduction,.which involved two
(2) different victims, and three (3) counts of séxuai.Assault,

invoiving the same victim, and seven (7) counts of Sexual Assault

ith a ninor under fourteen (14} years of age, which involved one
(1) victim, all alleged wvictims testified at the preliminary
earing that no threats, force or other coercion was used by the
efendant in order to perpetrate the crimes. This Court should
1lso note that a Defendant is presumed innocent until proven
ilty, which appears to be reversed, based on the present bail

ituation;

The second factor for consideration would be the financial
pbiiity of the befendant to make bail. The Defendant has the
upport of his family in assisting him in posting a reascnable bail
to procure his release from custody pending trial. However, at the
current amount, the intended collateral, which is the Defendant’s

-
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based on the present bail amount.

Lastly, the Court should look to the character of thé
Defendant, and in doing so, the Court will discover that the

Dafendant had no prior felony convictions.

It is anticipated that the State will argue that the Defendant
has ties to the local Las Vegas Community, however, that a bail
reduction is not appropriate due to the nature of the charges. The
Defendant contends that this assertion is in direct contrast to.the-'
ruling handed down by the 9th Circuit court in the case of U.8. V.
fTownsend, 857, F.24 989, 995 (9th Cir. 1990), where it was stated
that "if the Defendant is a United States resident, the community
to be considered must be at least as broad as in the United States.
pecordingly, we hold that ‘community’ ... embraces both the
compunity in which the charges are.brought, and also a community in
the United States to which the Defendant has ties. The Court
further stated that doubts regarding the propriety of release are

fto be resolved in favor of Defendants,™ I.D,, at 994.

The Defendant is not charged with any crimes of a violent
mature, nor does he have a prior record, so any claims of a threat
or danger to the community must be shown by more than mere
allegations. The alleged victims in the instant case never gave
Lny testimony relating to the Defendant brewing a threat or danger
ta their safety or well being during the course of the prior

preliminary hearing.

AA2493
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In the event the State is concerned about the likelihood of
the Defendant belng engaged in more criminal activity in the event
he is released on bail, it is important to note that the Defendant -
lives in the Nerth Las Vegas area, and will make all Court '
Lappearances and attend trial. The Defendant is also further aware
of the consequences he would face if he does not adhere to the

mandates of the Court.

Therefore, the Defendant requests that this Honorable Court
allow the bDefendant a reascnable bail in connection with the matter

currently brought before the Court.

CONCLUBTON
The Court should reduce the Defendant’s total bail to
$22,000.00 in order to avoid prejudlice to the Defendant’s

rocedural Due Process Right

s. E
DATED this /576% day of W/ . 1995,

=2l A

ROBERT ARCHIE, E8Q.
Nevada State Bar #: 002574
550 E. Charleston, Ste., #E
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
702/383-8112

Attorney for Defendant
LARRY JAMES THOMAS
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ROBERT ARCHIR, EBQ.
Nevada State Bar f#: 002574
550 E. Charleston, Ste., #E
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
702/383-8112 _ I
Attorney for Defendant _ F' Fl)
LARRY JAMES 'mom
' : fis Sas M ’95
DISTRICT COURT
. F
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA (-Y“‘-ﬂv‘:_-‘::ﬁ- SR
Gl '
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
' )
Plaintiff, )
)
VS . } Case No. Cl25353
) Dept. No. XIIT
LARRY JAMEE THOMAS, ) Docket No.
)
)
)

[y
[

Defendant. Date of Hearing:
Time of Hearing:
RECRIRT OF CORY

OWN RECOGNIZANCE RELBASE, AND/OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, EOUSE RBRBBT

is hereby acknowledged this /5'4:1@ of /ééy,w?, , 1995.

BTEWART PELL, DISTRICT ATTORNEY .

] |

e @ R

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing KO‘I'IOH FOR BAIL REDUCTION, -
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0846620,
Date of Hearing:

Defendant. Time of Hearings:-

OBERT ARCHIE, ES8Q.
evada State Bar #: 002574
50 E. Charleston, Ste., §B
8 Vegas, Nevada B8104 L :
02/383~8112 FILED
ttoriney for Defendant
PRY JMMES THOAS ha (B WaM'%
DIBTRICT munr W-‘E&Fﬁ- IP AT A o
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA OLERK
THE STATE OF NEVADA, }
)
Plaintiff, )
}
a8, } Case No. C 125353
) Dept. Ho. X111
Y JAMES THOMAS, ) Docket Ho. "G"
)
)
)
)

o i

Pursuant to the Affidavit of Counsel, and good cause shown,
IT I8 HEREBY ORDERED that Counsel for Defendant, SBTANLEY A.
FALTOH, ESQ., be given until 3/29/95 to file a Writ of

Habeas Corpus and other appropriate Motions regarding the above-
referenced matter.

DATED this Gjeday of YARCeH , 1995,

-
-

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE'

evada State Bar #: 002574
S0 ¥. Charleston, Ste., #E
s Vegas, Nevada 89104
02/383-8112

ttorney for Defendant

¥ JAHEE THOMAD
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ETATE OF NEVADA )

ICOUNTY OF CLARK )

BTANLEY A. WALTON, E8Q., having been first duly sworn, hereby
Peposes and says:
1, That he is an attornay duly licensed to practice law in
fhe State of Nevada, maintaining offices at 550 Fast Charleston
1vd., Ste., #E, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89104, and that he is the
ﬁttorney of Record for Defendant, LARRY JAMEE THOMAS.
2. That the Trial is currently set for April 24, 1995.
3. That your Affiant haz taken on a heavy case load dus to |
khe fact that the attorney of record is ill, and his cases have
heen given to your Affiant to handle. -

4. That your Affiant is requéstiﬁg.until_3)29/§5 to file
khe Writ of Habeas Corpus in this niattar.
Y¥URTHER, YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NMAUGHT.

DATED this M\, day of YV\oycl~, . 1995,

STAKLEY Ky WALTON, ESQ.

BUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me
Th
knis 7 day of Toteh | 1995,

OTARY PUBLIC in #nd for said

county and State

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
: County of Clark

i Lila Sprenger
My Appeintment Expires Mar 21, 1898
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STEWART L. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

FILED %

Nevada Bar #000477 Arr 1l Qoapyt
200 S. Third Street AH 5
Las Vegas, Nevada 82155 %)14' ot _
(702) 455-4711 B = N S
Attorney for Plaintiff nLER
THE STATE OF NEVADA - SLERK
DISTRICT COURT

C UNT EVAD

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO, C125353

Plaintiff, DEPT. NO. XIIX

-vs— DOCKET NO. G
LARRY JAMES THOMAS,
#0846620,

Defendant.

Mt Nt Nt ol Wt Nnt® Vst Tt s St Pmal Mot ot

OTION AND NOTICE OF MOTION TO DORSE ES_ON INFO T10

DATE OF HEARING: 4/18/95
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

T0: Defendant above named, and

TO: Your Counsel of Record: ROBERT ARCHIE, ESQ.

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU WILIL PLEASE TAXE NOTICE that, on Tuesday,
the 1s8th day of April, 1995, at the hour of 92:00 o‘clock, a.m., or
as soon thereafter as Counsel can be heard, in the Courthouse, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Nevada, the STATE OF NEVADA will move the
CGuft for leave to endorse upon Information heretofore filed herein

the names of the following witnesses:

WA

Test
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BAME ADDRESS
CLAY, MICHELLE C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
CRINER, DEANNA C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER - |
FITZGERLD, SYLVANNA C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
HARRIS, SHJUANA €/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
HOWARD, SHARONDA ¢/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
JOHNSON, AALIYAH ¢/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
LONG, MATASHA C/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
PHILLIPS, SHAWN ¢/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
SANDERS, BARBARA €/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER
WATTS, JOANNA ¢/0 DETECTIVE N. RISENHOOVER

pac
paTeED this /07 day of april, 199s.

STEWART L. BELL

DISTRICT ATTURNEY
Nevada Bar #000477
Nevada Bar #000738

BY:
BILL A. BERRETT
Chief Deputy District Attorney

F v N _SUPPORT OF MOTION
STATE OF NEVADA )
jas:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

BILL A. BERRETT, Chief Deputy District Attorney, being first
duly sworn, deposes and says:

The Affiant is a Deputy District Attorney for Clark County,
Nevada; that Information as heretofore been filed in the within
action; that since the filing of said Information Affiant has
learned that the testimony of the person or persons named in the
Motion to Endorse Names on Information, which the Affidavit

._2_
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supports, is necessary and material to the prosecution of the
within criminal action; that such facts were unknown tc Affiant at
the time of £iling Information herein.

WHEREFQRE, Affiaprt prays that the Court enter an Order for
endorsement of names on Information, in accordance with NRS
173.045.

"I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is trﬁe
and correct."”

Executed this (‘0’1‘ day of April, 1995.

e Moot/

BILL A. BERRETT
chief Deputy District Attorney

PO S _AND ORITTIES 1IN SUPPORT OF MOTION

QO ENDORSE N. S_ON INFORMATION

1. After filing the Information the District Attorney shall
endorse thereon the names of such other witnesses which shall
become known to him before the trial as the Court prescribes. Such
amendment may be made at any time after Defendant pleads when it
can be done without prejudice to the substantial rights of the
Defendant. NRS 173.045.

2. The granting on the morning of trial of a motion to add
names of witnesses to a first degree murder Information was not
arror where the Defendant’s attorney learned the names of such
witnesses three (1) days before trial, this being a reasonable time

toe prepare for the defense. State v. Teeter, 65 Ney, 584, 612

{1948): Dalby v. State, 81 Nevy. 517. 1965).
-3

AA2500




IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

EE I S S

Electronically Filed

Jun 14 2019 02:53 p.m.
MARLO THOMAS, Elizabeth A. Brown

Clerk of Supreme Court
Appellant, No. 77345

V. District Court Case No.
96C136862-1

WILLIAM GITTERE, et al.,
(Death Penalty Case)

Respondents.

APPELLANT’S APPENDIX
Volume 10 of 35

Appeal from Order Dismissing Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction)
Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County
The Honorable Stefany Miley, District Judge

RENE L. VALLADARES
Federal Public Defender

JOANNE L. DIAMOND

Assistant Federal Public Defender
Nevada Bar No. 14139C
Joanne_Diamond@fd.org

411 E. Bonneville, Suite 250
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 388-6577

Attorneys for Appellant

Docket 77345 Document 2019-25930
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WHEREFORE, Petiticner prays that this Honorable Court make an
order directing the County Clerk to issue a Writ of Preohibition or
in the Alternative Mandamus directed to the said Sheriff of Clark
County, commanding him to bring the above-mentioned client of

Petitioner before Your Honor, and return the cause of his

imprisonment. EQ ﬂL’
DATED this day o£ , 1998.

W ORFICES -OF AMES & 8C

D C. BMESBURY, Esb"
300 5. Maryland Parkway
Las Vegas, NV B9101
Attorney for Petitiocner,
DARRELL, BERNARD THOMAS

STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK } =e

DAVID C. AMESBURY, being first duly sworm, according to law,
upon oath, deposes and says:

That he is the attorney for DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS in the
above-entitled matter; that he has read the foregoing Petition,
knows the contents theresof, and that the same is true of his own
knowledge, except as to those matter therein stated on information
and belief, and as to those matters he believes them to be true.

That the client of Affiant, DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, is now in
custody and that your Affiant represents that his Client will be
present at the time of the hearing, should that be necessary, in
the above-entitled matter.

That the instant Petition is verified by DAVID C. AMESBURY,

3
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counsel for DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS and that DAVID C. AMESBURY,

verifies that said Defendant/Petdtipner, personally authorized

DAVID C. AMESBURY to ccmmence t

kﬁxﬁn C¢. AMESBURY

SUBSCRIBED and SHW 191—{0
before me this 3@_
of January, 1998

day

58] STATE OF NEVADA
- 7Y COUNTY OF CLARK |
PLf  mvarronmapwexrnss ()
SEFTEMBER 12,1393 |}
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DAVID ¢, AMESBURY

NEVADA BAR No. 003859 Fry )
AMESBURY g SCHUTT J =~
300 8o, Marylang Parkway /N :
Lag Vegas, Nevada 85101 o Zb I 3 Pfl '3
{702) 385-5574 . ;
Y 2N

o .u“_cxd__ pY
Attorney for Petitioner At P
Darrel] Bernard Thomas 4lEs,

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK CODNTY, NEVADA

DARRELT, BERNARD THOMAS,

#0785645. Case No. C147517

)
}
) Dept. No. v
Petitioper, )  Docket : 4
)
) INFORMATYO
THE STATE OF NEvapa, ) a'Z_//d/ q JB
’ -
Respondent: . ) 4’ oo
)
PRETRIATL PETITTON FOR WRIT op
HABEAS CORPUS
-_— ————

Darrell Bernard Thomag, Petitioner, by ang through hig
attorney, pavig Amesbury, files this Pretrial Petition for Writ of
Habeag Corpus ang Tequests that the Court dismigg the Information
on the following grounds: (1) Counts 1T through v are barred by
the statute of li.mitations; (2) the charges arg not supportaeqd by
Probabla cause; (3) Countg 1V and V are constitut:ionally deficient
for being toe indefinjite; and (4) Preindictment delay.

INTRODUCTION

Dafendant has been charged with five counts of lewdnesgg with

2 child under the age of 14 years, in violation of NRS 201.23¢0

(1597) . The charges allege that there were three differant

AA2253



1{ victims. Counts I, II, and V allege that the defendant committed .
2| the offense charged "by touching and/or fondling the buttocks of"
3| the wictim. Count IV alleges that the defendant committed the )
4} offense charged "by kissing the said Erika Goodall on the mouth
5( and/or by touching and/or fondling the buttocks of the said Erika
6j Goodall. . . .* Count II alleges that the defendant touched and/or
71 fondled the breasts of the victim.

8 ARGUMENT

99 IX. COUNTS I1 THROUGH V ARE BARRED BY THE STATUTE

OF LIMTTATIONS.

o The limitations period applicable to violations of NRS 201,230
H (1997) is three years. Hubbard v. State, 110 Nev. 671, 877 P.2d
- 519 (1994), pet. for reh’g denied, 112 Nev. Adv. 122, $20 P.2d 991
- (1996); Walstrom v. State, 104 Nev. 51, 752 P.2d 225 (1988); see
- NRS 171.085(2) {(1997). It is well established that the State must
e prove that an offense was committed within the statutorily
e permitted period for prosecution., Walstrom v. State.
Y The initial complaint against the defendant was filed on May
18 23, 1997. Thus any violation of NRS 201.230 that was committed
¥ three or more years prior to the filing of the complaint is barred
20 by the three-year limitation periocd. Counts II and III of the
= Information allege that the offense occurred between July 1993 and
2 May 1994. Counts IV and V allege that the offense occurred between
2 December 1993 and May 1994. Thus, it appears that Counts IT
“ through V are barred by the applicable three-year limitation
% period.
26
- It is recognized, however, that NRS 171.095(1) provides that
28 2
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if a felony ig committed in a secret mamner, an information or
complaint must be filed within the period of limitation Prescribed
in NRS 171.085, in this case, three vears after the discovery of
the offense. $ee Hubbard v. State; Walstrom v. State. Exceptions
to eriminal statutes of limitations are narrowly construed and read
in a 1light most favorable to the accused. Walstrom v State.
Under NRS 171.095, the burden is on the State to prove by a
preponderance of the evidence that the crime was committed in a
Secret manner in order to toll the statute of limitations for
criminal actions. Id.

In this case, the State has failed to carry its burden. The
evidence shows that the alleged acts were generally committed wh:.le
other people were at the defendant’s house. Thus, the alleged acts
could easily have been discovered and the victims could easily have
:i.mmediately told others about the alleged acts. Moreover, the
evidence indicates that the victims told others about the alleged
acts very shortly after they were committed. (See T at 14, 18, 20,
51-52.} Thus, even if the alleged acts were committed in a "gecre:
manner, * they were discovered three years or more before the £iling
of the complaint. Therefore, even assuming NRS 171,095 (1) applies,
Counts II through V are still barred by the applicable three-year
limitation period. Accorxdingly, Counts II through V must be
dismisged,

IT. THE CHARGES ARE NOT SUPPORTED BY PROBABLE
CAUSE.

At the preliminary hearing held on December 16, 1597, the

State presented the testimony of each of the three alleged victims.
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With regard to Count I, Lakeisha Culverson testified that in 1995,
while she was at the defendant’g house, the defendant "touched" or
"caressed" her "behindn with his hand. (T at 31.) There were
other people at the house at the time but Lakeisha wasg alone in the
room with the defendant when the touching occurred. (T at 37-38.)

With respect to Count III, Ebony Bell testified that sometime
around July 4, 1983, while ghe was at defendant’g house, he
"touched" her whutgn wWith his hand on top of her clothes. (T at
47.) This oceurred at a glumber Party with other girls present at
the house. (T at 49-50,)

Bell also testified that on another occasion around the same
time, the defendant touched her breasts with hiz hand on the top
of her clothes asg she was “passing through® hig house. (T at 45-
46.) Thig touching ig charged in Count IT of the Information.

With respect to Count IT, Ebony Bell testifieg that as she was
"passing through" the defendant’g house on July 4, 1993, the
defendant touched her breasts with hig hand on top of her clothing.
(T at 45-4¢,)

Witk respect to Counts IV and v, Erika Goodall testified on
direct examination that the defendant "touched me on my butt and
kissed me." (T at 8.) According to Goodall, the defendant kissged
her on hexr lips and touched and rubbed her butt with his hand on
top of her clothes. (T at 8-9.) She testified that this was the
first time that anything had happened with the defendant and that
the defendant did not do "anything else on any other times that
made [her] feal uncomfortable. n (T at 11.) op Cross-examination,

Goodall testified that thig ineident oCcurred "around

4
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Christmastime" of 1993, in defendant’s house while other peocple
were in the kitchen. (T at 8, 17-18.)

On redirect examination, the brosecutor showed Goodall a Prior
statement she had made, and asked her if anything happened in 1994,
(T at 21-22.) Goodall answered "No." (T at 22.) The Prosecutor
then asked if she recalled telling the police that a second
incident oecurred in May of 1994 and Goodall answered "Yes."n (T
at 22.) Goodall testified that in May of 1994, the defendant
"touched my butt" while she was at his house. (T at 22.)

On recross-examination, Goodall was asked: "The first
incident was the incident at the church; is that my understanding
of your testimony." (T at 23.) Goodall answered "Yesg,® (T at
23.)

Particularly, with regard to Counts I, ITI, IV, and V and even
as to Count II, the evidence Presented at the preliminary hearing
was insufficient to establish probable cause for the charges
against the defendant.

NRS 201.230 provides in pertinent part as follows:

1. A perscn who willfully and lewdly commits any
lewd or lasecivious act, other than acts constituting the
crime of sexual assault, utpon or with the body, or any
part or member thereof, of a child under the age of 14
Years, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or
gratifying the lust or passions or sexual desires of
that person or of that child, is guilty of a category B
felony[.]

The statute does not define "lewdly," "lewd, " or "lascivious." See
Summers v. Sheriff, Clark County, 90 Nev. 180, 521 P.2d 1228
{1974); Ranson v. State, 99 Nev. 766, 670 P.2d 574 (1983). A lewd

and lasecivious act has been defined, however, as an act which tends
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to excite lust and to deprave the morals with respect to sexual
relations and which is obscene, indecent and related to sexual
impurity or incontinence carried on in a wanton manner. State v.
Ragas, 607 So. 2d 967, 972 n.2 (La. Ct. App. 1992); see Young v.
State, 109 Nev. 205, 849 P.2d 336, 341 {1993} (at common law, open
lewdness was defined as an "unlawful indulgence of lust involving
gross indecency with respect to sexual conduct “committed in a
public place and observed by persons lawfully presentv),

The acts with which the defendant is charged do not fall
within the definition of lewd or lascivious. Merely kissing a
perscen under 14 years old as alleged in Count IV cannot be defined
as a lewd and lascivious act., See State wv. Ragas (hugging and
kissing the minor victim did not constitute an attempt to commit
a lewd and lascivious act); State v. Louviere, 602 So. 2d 1042 (La.
Ct. App. 1992) (kissing the minor victim and attempting to "french
kiss" her, did not constitute an attempt to commit a lewd and
lascivious act; evidence did not prove intent to arouse or gratify
either the defendant’s or the victim’s sexual desire).

Similarly, merely touching the "butts" of the victims over
their clothes cannot be cconsidered a lewd and laseivious act. Such
conduct is common and cannot be construed as lewd and lascivious.
Moreover, under NRS 201.230, intent is an element of the crime.
Findley v. State, 94 Nev. 212, 577 P.2d 867 (1978). The statute
requires that the defendant act with the "intent of arousing,
appealing to, or gratifying the lust or passions or sexual desires!
of the defendant or the child. NRS 201.230(1). There was no

evidence presented in this case to show such intent. The alleged

6
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. & D
acts generally took place while numerous other pecple were in the
bouse and in one case (Count II alleging the touching of the
victim’s breasts) as the victim wasg "pasaing through" the
defendant’s house. (T at 45-46.) The circumstances under which
the alleged "touchingsw occurred belie any showing that the
defendant acted with the requisite sexual intent. Thisg ig the case
even as to Count IT, alleging the touching of the victim’s breasts,
which could have been accidental. Accordingly, the evidence fails
to establish probable cause for the charges.

Furthermore, Particularly with respect to Counts IV and v,
even if the conduct alleged could be considered lewd, the evidence
is inconsistent and contradictory and fails to establish probable
cause. The victim, Erika Goodall, initially testified that only
one incident occurred and this was at the defendant’s house. (T
at 8, 11, 17-18.) She again later denied that there was z second
ineident. ([T at 22.) However, upon preodding by the prosecutor on
redirect, she testified that the defendant, on a seceond occasion
at his house that occurred in May 1994, “touched [her] butt.n (7
at 22.) Goodall did not testify as to any of the circumstances of
this "touching.” op recross, Goodall indicated, contrary to her
Prior testimony, that the first incident occurred at the church and
not at the defendant’s housge. (T at 23.) Given the
inconsistencies and contradictions in Goodallrs testimony, the
evidence fails to establish probable cause as to Counts IV and V.
III. COURTS IV AND V ARE CONSTITUTIONALLY DEFICIENT

FOR BEING TOO INDEFINITE AND THERRFORE MUST BE
DISMISSED.

NRS 173.075(1) requires that the indictment ghall contain a
7
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1| definite written statement of the essential facts constituting the

[

offense charged. Wright wv. State, 101 Nev. 263, 701 P.2d 743
3] (1985). An indefinite indictment deprives a defendant of notice
of the particular act alleged to have been committed by the accused

and deprives the defendant of his ability to defend properly

a 0 e

against the accusation. Id. Therefore, an indefinite indictment
denies a defendant his fundamental rights. Id.

It is recognized that time is pot an essential element of an

v B ~

offense under NRS 201.230. Cunningham v. State, 100 Newv. 356, 683
10§ p.2d 500 {(1984), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 935 {1985). As such, the
11| State is not absolutely reguired to allege the exact date of the
12§ commission of an offense under NRS 201.230. Id. This does not
13 mean, however, that the State may £ail to allege any date
14| whatsoever, since such a failure would clearly deprive the
15} defendant of adequate notice of the charge against him. Id.
16 Moreover, the State should, whenever possible, allege the exact
'1'7 date on which the crime was committed, or as closely thereto as
18| possible. Id.

19 Tn this case, the State’s evidence at the preliminary hearing
20 indicated that the criminal act alleged in Count IV occurred
21| "around Christmastime" of 1993 (T at 17-18) while the criminal act
22|l alleged in Count V occurred in May of 1994, (* at 22.)
231 Nevertheless, both Counts IV and V allege that the criminal act
24| occcurred "hetween December, 1993 and May, 1994." TUnder these
25| circumstances, Counts IV and V are constitutionally defiecient in
26 that it cannot be determined from the Information what specific act

27 is being charged in each count. Either of the alleged touchings

28 B
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1l of the victim could be the basis of each count under the time frame i
2] alleged in Counts IV and V. Accordingly, Counts IV and v must be
3| dismissed as constitutionally deficient for being too indefinite.
41 1V, THE INFORMATION MUST BE DISHISSED DUE TO
UNCONSTITUTIONAL PREINDICTMENT DELAY.

N It is well sgettled that unjustified and prejudicial
¢ preindictment delay may constitute a due brocess violation which
’ requires dismissal. See United States v. Marion, 404 U.S. 307
’ (1971) ; State v. Gattuso, 108 Nev. 49, 825 P.2d 569 (1892},
° Although there is scant authority im Nevada concerning
e Preindictment delay, there is an abundance of authority from other
H jurisdictions.

12

The seminal United States Supreme Court decision on the issue

3 of preindictment delay is United States v. Marion. The Court in
1 Marion noted that although the primary guarantees against excessive
18 preindictment delay are the statutes of limitations for criminal
*e offenses, the statutes of limitations do not fully define a
ad defendant’s rights with regspect to the events occurring prior to
18 indictment. The Due Process Clause also plays a role in Protecting
+ against prosecutorial delay. Id. Thus, even if the applicable
20 statute of limitations hasz not expired, due procesgs requires
. dismissal of indictments when the delay in bringing formal charges
22 is unjustified by the legitimate needs of the brosecution and
3 causes the defendant to suffer actual prejudice. United States v.
2 Richburg, 478 F. Supp. 535 (M.D. Tenn. 1978) ; see United States v.
25 Marion; United States v. Lovasco, 431 U.S. 783 (1977).
z: In determining whether dismissal is required due to
28 9
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preindictment delay, the courtg génerally follow 5 balancing
approach, gee Uniteg States v, Alderman, 423 p, Supp. g4y (D. Ma,

1876) . A8 United Statag v, Marion observed, to "accoxrmodat:e the

the circumstancea 2f each Cage."” 404 U.S. at 325, The courtg

generally agree thap the defendant bears the initial burden of

Howell v, Barker, gga F. Supp. 132 (E.n.N.cC. 1988}, arf’d, gpq F.2d
889 (4tp Cir.}, cert, denied, 498 U.g, 1016 (1390); Uniteg Statesg
V. Sample, 565 p. Supp. 11g¢ {E.D. va, 1983}, People v, Lawson, g7
I1l. 29 2449, 367 N.E.2d 1244 (1977). z¢ the defendant meets thig

Prosecution for itg delay in prosecuting. See Peopia V- Lawson;
Howell +, Barker; Pharm v, Hatcher, ggg F.2d 783 {7th Cir.), cert,
denied, 114 g, Ct. 125 (1993),

Prejudice to a defendant Caused by preindictment delay may be

establigheg in a variety of ways. For eéxample, lgsg of records,

and, thus, fall within the Core of the due Process Protectien. Id.

In Richburg, the court noted that when making claims of
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Prejudice caused by loss of evidence, defendants often encounter
difficulty in substantiating guch claims, ard courtg experience
difficulty in evaluating theny because of the very real danger that
what has been forgotten or logt ¢an rarely be shown. 478 F. Supp.
at 540, Accordingly, the adoption of a rigid approach in assessing
bPrejudice is not @ppropriate, as it predetermines an outcome
adverse to defendants in all but Very rare instanceg, Id.
Generally, to establigh Prejudice from loss of witnesses due

to preindictment delay, defendant must demonetrate the general

United States v, Sample. The mere possibility that memories may

dismiggal of the indictment. Onited Stateg +. Sample, It is

Peossible, however, for a defendant’g ability to defend himgelf to

Id.; United States v, Richburg, Thus, if defendant i able to shaow
who would he hig witnesses, that these witneggesg:’ memories have
been impaired, what the general content of their testimony woulg
have been hag they not lost their memories, that the testimony
would have been material te defendant’g defense, ang that the loss
of witnesgeg’ memories resulted from the government- g bPreindictment
delay, then actual prejudice will have been established, United
States v, Sample. The gsame analysis applies to lost or unavailable
Witnesses, gSee id.; United States v, Richburg,

Application of the foregoing Principles Tequires that the
indictment be dismissed ip this casge. Most of the offenses charged

11
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happened as many as almost four years ago. There is no reason why
these charges could not have been brought soconer., Moreover, the
delay in bringing the charges clearly has prejudiced the defendant.
The alleged offenses generally occurred while other people were
present, but the exact dates have not been provided. Accordingly,
it is difficult if not impossible for defendant to determine who
was present and thug to gather exculpatory evidence. Moreover,
given the nature of the acts alleged and the indefinite time frame
alleged during which the acts occurred, the defendant is Ffurther
prejudiced in gathering exculpatory evidence. Therefore, the
unjustified and prejudicial delay in bringing these charges
constitutes a due process violation and requires dismissal of the
charges.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that the court dismiss the

Information.

L4
EXECUTED on the Cg\é -

— e

y\ef January 1998.

d Amesbtry
'Law Offices of Amesbury & Schutt
300 South Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorney for Petitioner

12
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DAVID C. AMESBOURY .
NEVADA BAR NUMBER 38859 ngg 1
AW OFFICES OF DAVID C. AMESBURY L

300 SOUTH MARYLAND PARKWAY

TAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89101 . ]
(702) 385-5570 w28 3ofl'M
Attorney for Petitioner

Darrell Bernard Thomas aﬁ“.z{‘_, rm e

CLERY
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS,
Petitioner, CASE NO. C147517

V. DEPT. NO. V

THE STATE OF NEVADA, DCCKET NO. H

Respondent,

et e St Tt St Sl St® i et Tt

RECEIPT OF COPY

RECETPT OF COPY of the foregoing petition for Writ of Habeas

Corpus is hereby acknowledged this QLJ day of January, 1998.

RECEIVED BY
DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S QFFICE

By: ,__;::jfj/ff

STEWART BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
200 South Third St.
Las Vegas, NV B9155
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DAVID C. AMESBURY -
NEVADA BAR NO. 003889 { “ F’D
AMESBURY & SCHUTT - L

300 So. Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 ”ﬂﬂ‘ 5o,

(702) 385-5570 05 fif 99
Attorney for Petitioner Ojencts. -.-.’.*,»,,._,,',_,h
Darrell Bernard Thomas CLER K =

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DARREFRI, BERNARD THOMAS,
#0785645, Case No. C147517
Dept. No. v

Petitioner. Docket b2

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

St N et Nt Nty Yt N ot et

Date of hearing: 3/26/98
Time of Hearing: 9 AM

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing PETITIONERS’ OPPOSITION TO
STATE’S MOTION TO DISMISS DEFENDANT’ S8/PETITIONER’S PRETRIAL
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS is hereby acknowledged this
éday of March, 1998.

Received hy
DISTRICT ATTORMEY’S OFFICE

ISTRICT ATTORNEY
00 So. Third Street
Las Vegas, NV 89155
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STEWART L. BELL F‘LEJ
R ALY ’
evada bar .
200 S, Third Street M 2d 4 22PH
%ﬁgﬁ?ﬁ%?wasgﬁs PP
- -y WElseeamaremta
Attorney for Plaintiff i LLERK
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Application

of
DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, CaseNo.  C147517
#0785645 Dept. No.
Docket H
for a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
RATESEERNR BT

COMES NOW, JERRY KELLER, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada, Respondent, through
his counsel, STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney, through TERESA LOWRY, Deputy
District Attorney, in obedience to a writ of habeas corpus issued out of and under the seal of the
above-entitled Court on the 26th day of January, 1998, and made returnable on the 26th day of
March, 1998, at the hour 0f9:00 o'clock A.M., before the above-entitled Court, and states as
follows:

1. Respondent admits the allegations of Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Petitioner's Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

2. Respondent denies the allegations of Paragraph 3 of the Petitioner's Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus.

3. Paragraph 1,6 and 7 do not require admission or denial.

4. The Petitioner is in the constructive custody of JERRY KELLER, Clark County
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Sheriff, Respondent herein, pursuant to a Criminal Information, a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated by reference herein.

Wherefore, Respondent prays that the Writ of Habeas Corpus be discharged and the
Petition be dismissed.

DATED this day of March, 1998.

Respectfully submitted,

STEWART L, BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

-

BY, h /) \A J§¢
TERESA L Y b
Depu(tiy District Attorney :
Nevada Bar #03901

STATEMENT OF FACTS
Erika Goodall 13 years of age met Darrell Thomas (hereinafter referred to as Defendant)
at the Philadelphia Church of God in Christ. The Defendant was the Pastor of that Church,

Erika went to the Defendant’s house on two Separate occasions to help his wife Cynthia Thomas
with things around the house. ( Preliminary hearing transcript referred to as PHT) (PHT. pp. 6-
7). InMay of 1994, Erika was at the Defendant’s house helping his wife, when the Defendant
approached her while she was in the laundry room and no one else was around and kissed her
o the lips and rubbed her butt with his hand. (PHT.p.8). The Defendant told Erika, “ this has
to stay between you and me”, (PHT. P. 14).

In December of 1993, Erika was at the Philadelphia Church in the Defendant’s office
after a service. (PHT.p. 11). When no one else was around the Defendant asked her if she was
developing in certain areas and if she had pubic hair. (PHT. p. 12). The Defendant also rubbed
her butt with his hand and told her that this was to stay between them and not to tell anyone.
(PHT.p. 13). OnMarch 5, 1997, Erika was contacted by police in reference to the Defendant.

Lakeisha Culverson 14 years of age went to the Philadelphia church. In June of 1996,

the Defendant was babysitting Lakeisha and her sisters at his house. Lakeisha’s sisters were

-2- PAWPDOCS WRITS\! 7 431.WPD
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that something bad would happen., (PHT.p.33). Lakeisha told her mother severa] weeks Jater
and they contacted the police. (PHT.p.35).

Ebony Bell attended the Philadelphia Church of God in Christ between the ages of 13-14.
Ebony was at the Defendant’s house on Ji uly 4, 1993, when no one Wwas around the Defendant
touched her breasts with his hands. (PHT p. 46),

years Hubbard v. State, 112 Nev. 946, 920 p.24 997 (1996). In Hubbarg, the petitioner’s appeal
was denied. They ruled the limitation period was tolled under NRS 171. 095, because appellant

had committed the crimes in secret. Id.

-3- PAWPDOCSWRITS\I 07543 LWPD
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The applicable statute for a violation of NRS 201.230 Lewdness With a Child Under the
Apge of Fourteen is NRS 171.095 Secret Manner and Offenses Constituting Sexual Abuse of A |
Child. NRS 171.095 states in pertinent part:

{:71 -}gggﬁpt as otherwise provided in subsection 2 and NRS.

b) An indictment must be found or an information or complaint

it 1 e o s e o' g o

§) Twenty-one c?rears old or if he discovers or reasonably should

date or whieh he Koachéo ft speoor © 1o sextal abuse by the

(2) Twenty-eight years old if he does not discover or reasonably

should not have discovered that he was a victim or the sexual

abuse by the date on which he reaches 21 years of age.

The offense of lewdness with a child was committed in a secret manner, where
intimidation was used to prevent the victim from reporting incidents. On appeal of judgement
of conviction for one count of lewdness with a child under the age of fourteen, the Supreme
Court concluded that, because the Defendant used intimidation to prevent the victim who was
a juvenile at the time of the molestation from reporting the incidents, the defendant committed
the crime in a secret manner. Pursuant to NRS 171.095. Houtz v, State, 111 Nev. 457, 893 P.2d
355 (1995).

Clearly the crimes listed in the information were committed in a secret manner. All of
the acts were committed with no one around other than the Defendant and the victim, The
record also reflects that the Defendant told the girls not to tell anyone and threatened the girls
by telling them something bad would happen if they told anyone. (PHT.p.33). The Defendant
argues that the crimes were not committed in a secret manner because there were other people
in the house at the time the crimes were committed therefore someone could have easily
discovered the acts. The Defendant’s argument is frivolous and without merit. It goes without
saying that most crimes committed against children are often done in their own homes or in the
homes of people they trust. Therefore the crimes the Defendant is charged with fall under NRS

171.095 and Defendant’s motion should be denied.

-4- PAWPDOCS\WRITS\1075431,WFD
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SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE WAS PRESENTED AT

THE PRELIMINARY HEARING

The Defendant’s next allegation is that there was insufficient evidence to establish

probable cause that the Defendant has committed the crimes being charged.

In a preliminary hearing or in proceedings before the grand jury, there must be evidence
adduced which establishes probable cause to believe that an offense has been committed and that
the Defendant committed it. Robertson v. Sheriff, 85 Nev. 681, 683, 462 P.2d 528 (1969). The
finding of probable cause may be based upon slight, even “marginal” evidence because it does

not involve a determination of the guilt or innocence of an accused. Hodes v, Sheriff, 96 Nev.
184, 186, 606 P.2d 178 (1980),

The Defendant states that NRS 201.230, does not define “lewd” or “lascivious”, The
Defendant cites to Summers v, Sheriff, 90 Nev. 180, 521 P.2d 1228 (1974). In Summers, the

word “lewd” had sufficient certainty of the definition to give a person of ordinary intelligence

fair notice of the nature of the proscribed conduct. The word “lewd” as used in NRS 201,230,
prohibiting lewd or lascivious acts upon a child under age fourteen, had sufficient certainty of
definition to give a person of ordinary intelligence fair notice of the nature of the proscribed
conduct when measured by common understandin g and practices. (Cited) Williams v. State, 110
Nev. 1182 at 1188, 888 P.2d 536 (1994).

In Federal District Court in, Schwartzmiller v. rdner, 567 F. Supp 1371 (1983), at p.
1374, the Court ruled in reference to this latter statutory language that:

“[there is]no legal authority nor... [credible argument] that people of ordinary intelligence
do not know what body parts are or what lust, passions and sexual desires refer to. The court
thus rules without hesitation that these phrases are sufficiently definite, when used in
combination, to pass constitutional muster”. Ifsuch language can stand on its own, we fail to
see how the addition of two adjectives such as “lewd” and “lascivious” describing the proscribed
acts could render the entire statute unconstitutionally vague. (Cited as) Harmon v, State, 107
Idaho 73, 685 P.2d 814 (1984).

-5- PAWPDOCS\WRITS\1075431,WPD
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The Defendant stateg that there was no evidence presented that the Defendant acted with

the intent of arousing, appealing to our gratifying the lust or Passions or sexual desires of the

DREFICIENT AND INDEFINITE

the State has failed to allege the exact date. In Cunningham v, State, 100 Nev. 396,683 P.2d
500 (1984), the court addressed the issue of time frames in child sexual abuse cases and stated

on which it believes the crime occurred.

Counts IV and V are plead by way of information did, durin g or between December 1993
and May 1994, Erika Goodall testified that in May 0f 1994 the Defendant kissed her on the lips
and rubbed her butt. (PHT.p. 8). Erika Goodall also testified that in December of 1993 the
Defendant rubbed and fondled her butt. (PHT p. 13).

Defendant to answer to the charges in District Court,
"
1/
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Iv.
THE INFORMATION SHOULD NOT BE DISMISSED

DUE TO PRE-INDICTMENT DELAY

The Defendant’s claim of “Pre-Indictment Delay™ is entirely meritless and should be

summarily dismissed. Claims of Sixth Amendment Pre-Indictment or Pre-Arraignment Delay
may only be invoked in reference to delays which occur after a defendant has become an

“accused” in a criminal prosecution. United States v. Marion, 404 U.S. 307,313, 92 S.Ct. 455,
459 (1971). In the instant case, Stephanie Culverson the mother of Lakeisha contacted Detective

Nicholas Lucas of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department on February 26, 1997, A
complaint was filed and an arrest warrant was issued on May 27, 1997 - 90 days after the
discovery of the crime. The Defendant is attempting to argue that this Court should consider the
time prior to the State’s commencement of the investigation as time in which the prosecution
“delayed” the bringing of formal charges. Clearly this is absurd, since the secret nature of the
offense made it impossible for the State to have taken any action in bringing forth charges in this
case. In Marion, supra., Defendant tried to claim a Sixth Amendment speedy trial violation for
the three years that had passed since the end of their criminal scheme charged and before the
return of the indictment, The United States Supreme Court held the following:

The Sixth Amendment provides that ‘[ijn all
criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the
right to a speedy and Xlubhc trial .. ..” Onits Tace,
the protection of the Amendment is activated onc1|y
when a criminal prosecution has begun and extends
only to those %ersons who have been ‘accused’ in
the course of that prosecution.

Id. U.S. at 313, S.Ct. at 459. The Court continued:

The framers could hardly have selected less
appropriate language if they had intended the
speedy trial provision to protect against pre-
accusation delay. No opinions of this Court
intimate_support for appellees’ thesis, and the
courts of appeals that have considered the question
In constitutional terms have never reversed a
conyiction or dismissed an indictment solely on the
basis of the Sixth Amendment’s speedy trial
provision where only pre-indictment delay was
nvolved.

-7- PAWPDOCSWRITS\075431.WPD
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1d. U.S. at 314, 315, S.Ct. at 460.

The Marion Court, supra., did acknowledge that if the defendant could establish 1
Substantial prejudice to appellees’ rights to a fair trial, and 2) the delay was an intentional device
to gain tactical advantage over the accused, that Fifth Amendment Dye Process could require
dismissal of the case. See also, Jopes v. State, 96 Nev. 240, 242, 607 P.2d 116, 117 (1980),
citing, United States v. Lovasco, 431 U.S. 783,97 S. Ct. 2044 (1977). In the instant case, the
defendant has completely failed to establish that the delay was “an intentional device 1o gain
tactical advantage over the accused.” The delay between discovery of the crime and the filing
of charges was only three months, This was a necessary and reasonable time for the
investigation of multiple, serious and on going sexual offenses. In State v, Autry, 103 Nev. 552,
746 P.2d 637 (1987), the Nevada Supreme Court quoted Lovasco, supra.:

Investizﬁ?tive delay is fundamentally unlike delay
undertaken by the Government solely ‘to gain
tactical advantage over the accused precisegr
because investigative delay in not so one-sided.
ther than deviating from elementary standards of
‘fair play and decency,’” a prosecufor abides b
them if he refuses to seek indictments until he s
completely satisfied that he should prosecute and
will be able promptly to establish guilt beyond a
reasonable doubt. .
Id. at 557, P.2d at 641. [Citations omifted]. The Nevada Supreme Court further held,
- [We note, for the future guidance of the trial
court, that the cases in this area strongly sugpest
that some showing must be made that the elay
entailed intentional or reckless disregard by the

state of appreciable risks of impairment fo an
N accused’s defense,

Id. at 558, P.2d at 641. The defendant has made absolutely no showing of intentional or reckless
disregard by the State.

Furthermore, the Defendant has failed to show any actual prejudice amounting to a denial
of due process. The defendant’s sole claim to prejudice is to cite “examples” of what constitutes
prejudice and then to claim that Defendant cannot “gather exculpatory evidence.” This is

clearly insufficient, In Sheriff v. Berman, 99 Nev. 102, 659 P.2d 208 (1983), the Nevada
Supreme Court stated:

-8- PAWPDOCSWRITS\07543 1. WrD
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1 Bare allegations of impairment of memory, witness
unavailability, or anxiety, unsupported by affidavits
2 or other offers of proof, do not demonstrate a
reasonable possibility that the defense will be
3 impaired at trial or {hat defendants have suffered
4 other significant prejudice.
5} At 107, P.2d at 301. In the instant case, the defendant has done nothing more than make bare
6 | allegations of prejudice. For the above stated reasons, Defendant’s fourth issue should be
7 || dismissed in its entirety.
8 CONCLUSTON
9 The State respectfully requests the Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus be
10 |j denied.
11 DATED this day of March, 1998.
12 Respectfully submitted,
13 STEWART L. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
14 Nevada Bar #000477
15

16 BY, ' uQ-ﬁZQmeu. W

TERESA LOWRY
17 Deputy District Attomey
Nevada Bar #03901

18
19
20 RECEIPT OF COPY
21 RECEIPT OF COPY of 1#21\30% and foregoing Retum of Writ of Habeas Corpus is
22 || hereby acknowledged this ay of March, 1998,
23 David C. Amesbury, ES
21 ATTORNEY FOR DEF ANT
25 O

BY 54// C W Lu.7 /,5
26 300 8. Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

27
281 st
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ORIGINAL ®

REPLY tem g,
DAVID C. AMESBURY, ESQ. IR
Bar No. 003889 "
AMESBURY & SCHUTT

300 So. Maryland Parkway fer 16 o FF'5g
Lag Vegas, Nevada 69101 i
(702) 385-.5570 =R

Attorney for Defendant Giracle . -
Darrell Bernard Thomas Hre -

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Application

of

DARRELIL: BERNARD THOMAS,

#0785645 DEPT. NO. V

DOCKET H

for a Writ of Habeas Corpus.

PETITIONER’S REPLY TO RETURN TO WRIT
OF HABEAS CORPUS

INTRODUCTION

The alleged facts and circumstances giving rise to the charges
against Petitioner (hereinafter referred to as "Defendant") have
been set forth in the Pretrial Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
and in Respondent’s Return to the Writ of Habeas Corpus.

ordered by the court, Petitioner files this reply to Respondent’s

Return.

C MDYV
CASE NO. 234555~

As
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ARGUMENT

I. COUNTS IT THROUGH V ARE BARRED BY THE STATUTE
OF LIMITATIONS.

The Respondent admits that the three-year limitations period
is applicable to these charges. gee NRS 171.085(2) {1977} . The
Respondent contends, however, that the alleged crimes ware
committed in a "Secret manner" and that, pursuant to NRS 171.09s,
the charges are not barred by the statute of limitations. The
Respondent, however, has failed to meet its burden of pProving hy
2 preponderance of the evidence that the alleged crimes were
committed in a secret wmanner. See Walstrom v, State, 104 Nev. 51,
752 P.2d 225 {1988} .

Moreover, the Respondent has failed to address the fact that
evidence indicateg that the victims told others about the alleged
offenses very shortly after they were committed. (See T. at 14,
18, 20, 51-52.) NRS 171.095(1) (a) provides that if such an offense
is committed in a secret manner, a complaint must be filed within
three years after the discovery of the offense. In this case, the
complaint was filed more than three years after discovery of the
alleged offenses. Thereafter, Counts II through Vv are barred by
the statute of limitations even if the offenses were committed in

& secret manner. Accordingly, these counts must be dismissed.

II. THE CHARGES ARE NOT SUPPORTED BY PROBABLE
CAUSE.

The Defendant Teasserts his argument made in his Petition.
Three points should be particularly noted, however. With respect
to the act of kissing the victim as alleged in the informatien,

2
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such act cannot be defined as a lewd and lascivious act. See State
v. Ragas, 607 So. 2d 967 (La. Ct. App. 1992); State v. Louviere,
602 So. 2d 1042 (La. Ct. App. 1992). With respect to Counts IV
and V, the evidence presented was inconsistent and contradictory.
Finally, the evidence did not establish the requisite intent.

Accordingly, the charges are not supported by probable cause.

IIT. COUNTS IV AND V ARE CONSTITUTIONALLY DEFICTENT
FOR BEING TOO INDEFINITE AND THEREFORE MUST BE
DISMISSED.

As noted in his Petition, Defendant recognizes that the State
is not absolutely required to allege the exact date of the
commission of an offense under NRS 201.230. Cunningham v. State,
160 Nev. 396, 683 P.2d 500 (1984), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 935
(1985) . Nevertheless, the State should, whenever possible, allege
the exact date on which the crime was committed, or as closely
thereto as possible. Id.

In this case, Erika Goodall, the victim of the acts alleged
in Counts IV and V, initially testified that Defendant touched her
butt and kissed her at his house around "Christmastime* 1993. (T.
at B, 14, 17-18.) She later testified, however, that there were
two separate incidents. {T. at 21-23.) The first incident
occurred in December 1993, apparently at the church, and this only
involved the Defendant kissing the viectim. (T. at 22-23.) The
second incident, which involved only the touching of her butt,
occurred in May 1994 at the Defendant’s house. (T. at 22-23.)
Nevertheless, both Counts IV and V allege that the criminal acts
occurred between December 1993 and May 1994, Und r these

3
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circumstances, Counts IV and V are constitutionally deficient in
that it cannot be determined from the information what specific act
is being charged in each count. Moreover, the allegations are not
consistent with the evidence presented at the Preliminary Hearing.
Accordingly, Counts IV and V must be dismissed as constitutionally

deficient for being too indefinite.
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Iv. THE INFORMATION MUST BE DISMISSED DUE TO
UNCONSTITUTIONAL PREINDICTMENT DELAY.

The Respondent contends that the Defendant hag made only bare
allegations of prejudice and that this ig insufficient to show a
denial of due process. As discussed in United States v. Richburg,
478 F. Supp. 535, 540 {(M.D. Tenn. 1979), however, when making
claims of prejudice by loss of evidence, defendants often encounter
difficulty in substantiating such claims, and courts experience
difficulty in evaluating them because of the very real danger that
what has been forgotten or lost can rarely be shown. Accoxdingly,
the adoption of a rigid approach in assessing prejudice is not
appropriate, as it predetermines an outcome adverse to defendants
in all but very rare instances. Id. at 540.

In this case, the testimony of Erika Goodall at the
Preliminary Hearing demonstrates the difficulty the Defendant faces
due to the delay in bringing thege charges. Goodail’s testimony
was inconsistent and contradictory. She at first testified that
both alleged incidents occurred at the same time and in the same
place. She later testified that there were two separate incidents,
each of which occurred at a different time and at a different
location. Goodall also testified that other people were present
in the Defendant’s kitchen when one of the alleged incidents
occurred, but she could not remember everyone who was there. ({T.
at 17.)

As can be seen, Defendant is faced with vague descriptions of
the accusations against him. Although other people may have been

present when the alleged incidents oceurred, they have, as a rule,
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not heen identified. It will thus be virtvally impossible for the
Defendant to gather exculpatory evidence due to the length of the
delay in bringing these charges. Given the nature of the
allegations, the Defendant cannot be expected to be more specific
in showing prejudice. Accordingly, the unjustified and Prejudicial
delay in bringing these charges constitutes a vioclation of due

process and requires dismissal of the charges.

CONCLUSION

The Defendant respectfully requests that his Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus be granted.

Dated this /0% day of April 1998,

Re¢spectfully submited,

d C. Amesbury,/Esquire
Law Offices of Amegbury & Schutt
300 South Maryland Parkway
Las Vegas, NV 89101

(702) 385-5570

Attorney for Defendant-Petit ioner
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gTI’}El\)NRARTL BELL ]
DTG ARGk FILED
evaaa Bar
200 S, Third Street Mris g o ‘99
I',;'aoszgfgg.'j!js,4 I;Ilel\fada 89155
gxttomey f-'or Plaintiff Oﬁizfﬁ:q v
’ £ K
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-Vs- Case No. Cl147517
DeptNo. VvV
DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, Docket H
#0785645
Defendant.

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT’S PRETRIAT, PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

DATE OF HEARING: 04/23/98
TIME OF HEARING: 900 AM.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the 23rd
day of April, 1998, the Defendant not being present, represented by DAVID C. AMESBURY,
ESQ,, the Plaintiff being represented by STEWARTTL.. BELL, District Attorney, through PAM
WECKERLY, Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having heard the argumentis of counsel
and good cause appearing therefor,

/
/7
i/
/
H
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's
Corpus, shall be, and it is denied.

DATED this_?Y__day of AprilT

\J

Pretrial Petition for Writ of Habeas

STEWART L. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

BY Wﬂa

;
£ ﬁé%

PAM WECKERLY

Depu(?( District Attorney

Nevada Bar #006163

8. /
DISTR]‘KTJ GT VJ

PAWPDOCSIORDRVFORDR\NT\70754301.WPD
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AINF e
STEWARTL. BELL e
DISTRICT ATTORNEY ;
Nevada Bar #000477 Bt
200 S. Third Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 N / puty
(702) 4554711 L
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

P]aintiﬂ’,

~vs- Case No. Cl47517
Dept.No. v

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, Docket H
#0785645

Defendant, AMENDED

INFORMATI ON

STATE OF NEVADA 5
ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK

committed the crime of OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS
201.210), during or berween July, 1993 and June, 1996, within the County of Clark, State of

Nevada, Contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made and Provided, and
i

i
m
i
1
"

.
i
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against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and
knowingly commit an act of open or gross lewdness by fondling and/or rubbing the buttocks of
LAKEISHA CULVERSON and/or EBONY BELL and/or ERIKA GOODALL.

DA#97F07543X/imj

LVMPD EV#970226-0834
OGL - GM

(TK4)

STEWARTL. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

By\i-’-d-&d,a_ %rﬁfﬂfd—q

TERESAM.LOWRY  °~ —/
Depugy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #003901

-2- PAWPDOCSWINRZONT0754303.WPD
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GEM FILED IN OPEN €OURT
STEWART L. BELL %

W)
DISTRICT ATTORNEY 19
Nevada Bar #000477 LGW BOWHAR, ¢L

200 S. Third Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 BY. et (! b
(702) 455-4711 Pty
Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

~vs- Case No, C147517
Dept. No. V

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, Docket H
#0785645

Defendant,

GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO ALFORD DECISION

I hereby agree to plead guilty, pursuant to North Carglina v, Alford, 400 U.S. 25 (1970),
to: OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS 201.210), as more fully

alleged in the charging document attached hereto as Exhibit "1",

My decision to plead guilty by way of the Aiford decision is based upon the plea
agreement in this case which is as follows:

The State retains the right to argue at the time of sentencing,
CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA
By pleading guilty pursuant to the Alford decision, it is my desire to avoid the possibility

of being convicted of more offenses or of a greater offense if I were to proceed to trial on the

original charge(s) and of also receiving a greater penalty. I understand that my decision to plead

guilty by way of the Alford decision does not require me to admit guilt, but is based upon my

belief that the State would present sufficient evidence at trial that a Jury would return a verdict

of guilty of a greater offense or of more offenses than that to which I am pleading guilty to.
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I understand that as a consequence of my piea of guilty I may be sentenced to jail fora
period of not more than one (1) year and/or I may be fined up to $2,000.00. I understand that
the law requires me to pay an Administrative Assessment Fee.

lunderstand that, if appropriate, I will be ordered to make restitution to the victim of the
offense(s) to which I am pleading guilty and to the victim of any related offense which is being
dismissed or not prosecuted pursuant to this agreement. I will also be ordered to reimburse the
State of Nevada for any expenses related to my extradition, if any.

Tunderstand that I am not eligible for probation unless a psychologist licensed to practice
in Nevada or a Ppsychiatrist licensed to practice medicine in Nevada certifies that 1 am not a
menace to the health, safety or morals of others.

I understand that if more than one sentence of imprisonment is imposed and I am eligible
to serve the sentences concurrently, the sentencing judge has the discretion to order the sentences
served concurrently or consecutively,

I also understand that information regarding charges not filed, dismissed charges, or
charges to be dismissed pursuant to this agreement may be considered by the judge at Sentencing.

I'have not been promised or guaranteed any particular sentence by anyone. I know that
my sentence is to be determined by the Court within the limits prescribed by statute, T
understand that if my attorney or the State or both recommend any specific punishment to the
Court, the Court is not obligated to accept the recommendation.

Ialso understand that the Division of Parole and Probation will prepare a report for the
sentencing judge prior to sentencing. This report will include matters relevant to the issue of
sentencing, including my criminal history. This Teport may contain hearsay information
regarding my background and criminal history, My attorney and I will each have the opportunity
to comment on the information contained in the report at the time of sentencing. Unless the
District Attorney has specifically agreed otherwise, then the District Attorney may also comment
on this report.

i
i
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WAIVER OF RIGHTS

By entering my plea of guilty pursuant to the Alford decision, I understand that I am
waiving and forever giving up the following rights and privileges:

1. The constitutional privilege against self-incrimination, including the right to refuse to
testify at trial, in which event the prosecution would not be allowed to comment to the jury about
my refusal to testify.

2, The constitutional right to a speedy and public trial by an impartial jury, free of
excessive prefrial publicity prejudicial to the defense, at which trial I would be entitled to the
assistance of an attorney, either appointed or retained. At trial the State would bear the burden
of proving beyond a reasonable doubt each element of the offense charged.

3. The constitutional right to confront and cross-examine any witnesses who would
testify against me.

4. The constitutional right to subpoena witnesses to testify on my behalf.

5. The constitutional right to testify in my own defense.

6. The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an attorney, either appointed
or retained, unless the appeal is based upon reasonable constitutional jurisdictional or other
grounds that challenge the legality of the proceedings and except as otherwise provided in
subsection 3 of NRS 174.035.

v T F PL.

I have discussed the elements of all of the original charge(s) with my attorney, and 1
understand the nature of these charge(s) against me.

I understand that the State would have to prove each element of the charge against me at
trial,

I have discussed with my attorney any possible defenses, defense strategies and
circumstances which might be in my favor.

All of the foregoing elements, consequences, rights, and waiver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attorney.

i
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AA2289



\DOG\JO\U:-IEUJMD—'

10
1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

I beiieve that pleading guilty by way of the Alford decision and accepting this plea
bargain is in my best interest, and that a trial would be contrary to my best interest.

F'am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my atlorney, and I am not
acting under duress, coercion, or by virtue of any promises of leniency, except for those set forth
in this agreement.

I'am not now under the influence of any intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or
other drug which would in any manner impair my ability to comprehend or understand this
agreement or the proceedings surrounding my entry of this plea.

My attomey has answered alf my questions regarding this guilty plea agreement and jts
consequences to my satisfactionﬂéam satisfied with the services provided by my attorney.

DATED this %__ day of Mg, 1998,

AGREED TO BY:

ML.%O/

Deputy District Attorney f

-4 l':\WPDOCS\INF\'ID?\'IO?Sd302.\VPD
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL:

I, the undersi%:ned, as the attorney for the Defendant named herein, as an officer of the
court hereby certify that:

1. Thave fully explained to the Defendant the allegations contained in the chargeﬁs to

avhi.cl_l guilty plea(s) are being entered and the entry of a guilty plea pursuant to the Alford
ecision.

2. I have advised the Defendant of the penalties for each charge and the restitution that
the Defendant will be ordered to pay.

3. All pleas of guilty offered by the Defendant pursuant to this agreement and the Alford
g)ec;gsign are consistent with the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the
efendant.

4. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the Defendant:

a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of pleading
guilty as provided in this agreement.

b. Executed this agreement and will enter all guilty pleas pursuvant hereto
voluntarily.

¢. ‘Was no under the influence of intoxicatin liquor, a controlled substance or
otl’ae; drug at the time I consulted with the defendant as certified in paragraphs 1
and 2.

Tore S

Dated: This ]~ day of My, 199§,

71A?1'0RNEY‘.FQR DEFENDANT

Jmj

-5- PAWPDOCS\INRZ0N70754302,WPD
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STEWART L. BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

200 S. Third Street

Las Vegas, Nevada §9155
(702) 4%-4711 .
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
VS Case No. C147517
: Dept. No. V
DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, Docket H
#0785645
Defendant. AMENDED

INFORMATION

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF CLARK 555'

STEWART L. BELL, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Cougt:

That DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, the Defendant(s) above named, having
committed the crime of OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS
201.210), during or between July, 1993 and June, 1996, within the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and
m
14
i
"

m

" EXHIBIT ''1"
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against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada, did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and
knowingly commit an act of open or gross lewdness by fondling and/or rubbing the buttocks of
LAKEISHA CULVERSON and/or EBONY BELL and/or ERIKA GOODALL.

STEWARTL.BELL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #000477

Byxlu-m_ ‘7770'?3%4/

TERESA M. LOWRY v
Deputy District Attomey
Nevada Bar #003901

DAFOTF07543X/imj
LVMPD EV#970226-0834
OGL - GM

(TX4)
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ORIGINAL

ROC -
DAVID C. AMESBURY Fi !-E S,
NEVADA BaRr NO. 003889 y 31

AMESBURY & SCHUTT I

300 So. Marylang Parkway J 18 Fly 59
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103 o -

(702) 385.557¢ v L
Attorney for Petitioner o St
Darrell Bernard Thomag l.ER

DISTRICT COORT
CLARK COUGHNTY, NEvVaDA

DARRELL, BERNARD THOMAS,
#0785645, Case No. Cl47517
Dept. No. v

Petitioner,

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Regpondent.,

RECEIPT oF ORIGINAL
==ae2ass UF ORTIGINAL

Receipt of original of the attached REPORT ig hereby
acknowledged thig day of July, 1998,

———

_d ﬁgﬁpé”’

. District Attorney’s Dffice
200 South Third St., 7th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

>
Ta'y
-
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NEVADA INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES
CASE

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS
“Character History”

September 10, 1908

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION

BY
JOSEPHE. BISHOP, Investigator
for Tames T, Born,

Private Investi gator, #457
NEVADA INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES

AA2296



ONEVADA INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES ‘

P.O. BOX 91434
Henderson, Nevada 89009-1434
(702) 586-8006 Offica and FAX.

EXPEAIENCE SINGE fac8
JAMES T.BORN State of Novada
Peivato Irvesfigator AUTHORITY NRS CHAPTER 648 Uicense No, 457
THOMAS, DARRELL

Mr. David C, Amesbury, ESQ.
Attorney at Law

300 8. Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, NV 89101
702/385-5570

NIS Case 9808200107

September 10® 1993

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION

NATURE OF INVESTIGATION

The purpose of this investigation
Thomas, for pre-sentencing penal

is to attempt to determine the character of the defendant Darrell
ty determination,

This Investigator attempted to contact Thomas’s wife Cynthia Thomas, however, the telephone
number provided by Thomas was no longer in service,

FORM.AD3
Capyrght © 1595 by Jamas T. Bam
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This Investigator proceeded to interview the defendant’s neighbors who lived in the immediate
proximity of the defendant’s residence. This Investigator attempted to contact the occupants of
3970 Gulliver, and thijs Investigator received no response. This Investigator then proceeded to
3964 Gulliver and spoke to the resident Mr. John Burke, who claimed that he did not really know
Mr. Thomas,

This Investigator then spoke to Ms Debra Ennis at 3958 Gulliver, who stated that she knew M,

Thomas since 1990 when they worked together. Ms, Ennis stated that she was familiar with the

thing. Ms. Ennis further stated that she had never, and would never feel uncomfortable with Mz,
Thomas being around her 16-year-old daughter, Danisha MclIntyre. Ms. Ennis stated that Mr.
Thomas was a good man and an excellent preacher. Ms, Ennis stated that she had a lot of
confidence in Mr, Thomas. Ms. Ennis declined providing this Investigator with a written
staternent.

This Investigator then proceeded to 3963 Gulliver and spoke to Ms. Shana Kozusko, who stated
that she was not familiar with Mr. Thomas, that she had only seen him around his residence,

This Investigator then went to 3969 Gulliver where this Investigator attempted to contact the
occupants of that residence, however, there was no response.

This Investigator then went to 3981 Gulliver where this Investigator spoke to Juliet Gutierrez,
Ms. Gutierrez stated that she had lived next door to Mr. Thomas for approximately two years and
knew of him but didn’t really know him personally. Ms. Gutierrez stated that she did believe Mr,
Thomas to be a “nice man”.
This Investigator spoke to the resident of 3987, Virginia Chavez, Ms, Chavez stated that she did
not know Mr. Thomas at all.

Investigator that Mr. Thomas shared openly and demonstrated empathy towards others, Mr. Hill

AA2298



Stated that an oyery] Opinion would pe
protect himself from further allegations,

SEPHE, B SHOP, Investigator
for James T, Bom, Private Invesu'gator, #457
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Ohriginal l“'hilﬂ.;('-nn:y Clerk STATE or NEVADA
Nt Otee DEPARTMENT OF n1o70R VEHICLES AND PUBLIC 5ArgTYy
::"r"““:::m"ﬂb’:“l';:“':‘:r' DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBA'I'ION
CARSON CiTY, NEVADA 89710 FI L EB9B/99 0694
PROBATION AGREEMENT AND RULES
Ocr 9 '
Crimina] Case No......._CJ.Als_T_J..__......_.__.._. Required tg pay $2s5 Aclmirg.s%gfﬂvgghsseasment fee
to the County Cle:s}as..offi"c:e, Las Vegas, Nevada,

THE STATE OF NEVADA, 89155, ot S

vs,
THOMAS, Darrell Bernaxg

Defendan:

DEFENDANT js guilty of the Crime of %@M@gﬁ%___mh___m___
q_%M“wM.MMMH. a3elanyyar Gross Misdemeanor.

Plaineig, ORDER ADMITTING DEFENDANT TO PROBATION
THEREQF

DEFENDANT s semtenced to a term of imprisonment in the — unty. Detentig L N
for ... years. Exccution of thyy sentence is suspendeq and the DEFENDANT is hereby admitied 10 probation for
years under the followjng conditigns;

. REPORTINGIRELEASE: Upon rcﬂgsc%ﬁﬁ:%‘%ouff]‘ }c&c}m ta report ditecily ang in person 1o the Division of Parole and Probation, Yoy

are required to submi 5 true and correeq waitten monthty feport to your Supervising prohatfon ufficer each month on forms supplied by the Probation
Davision, 1y addition, you gha)) Teport a5 dizected by your probation bffieer,

2, RESIDENCE; Yau shall pot change your place of residence, employmeny, nor leave the commuaity without firsy obtaining permission from
Your probation offeqr in cach mstance,

3. INTOXTCANTS: You shall nat deink gp Panake of any aleoho]le beverapes wnaunwemxxmu&mmmm:mmxume
Mpoatesmeathent PHzE ol wmmkmm

4. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES: You shalj not use, purchase, POSsCss, pive, sell or administer any controlled substance, nor any dangerous
drugs, unluss firse Prescribed by a bicepseq physician Yoy shalt sobmip 1 drug resting ng required by your Pprobation officer.

T, .

7. COOPERATION: You shall at o) timey coaperale with your probation officer and your behavior and attitude shay Justify the Cpporiunity
Branied to you by this probation.

B. LAWS AND CONDUCT: Yo shal cuomply with alf Municipal, county, state and federa) laws, ordinances and orders and Conduct yourself
as a gaod citizen., Yeu sha) comply with eonvictog PEISOn registration requirenicats whepy applicable.

9, OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL: Yoy shall not feave (g state withouy firsy obtaining writiey permission, in each instance, from Your probation
.

10. EMPLOYMENTIPROGRAM: You shall sesk and maintain cmploytnent, op maintain 5 Program as approved by the Probation Divisian.
0]

1. SPECIAL CONDITIONS oF PROBATION; “.._..“-..».__.,.__._.._.___..__,._.—...._,._,__,_._..__..,__.___~——..,________
._‘h_m._%_...hh._.....-....w“.._.,._.._.—h._-.m_,.u.._.._QYER_“h__...._,,_..__..,._m._..___.___.._“._...__m—_.ﬁ__

e e . et e e, -...._.,.,_-—-._...__-—.._..,,-_.._.-'ﬁh-——._.__._
T et e T e st o, e e -*——-.«—_..,___-_____._ ————————
DR T T e vomstt vame

The rvAs the right 10 mog
day of __\ ....'................._.w._..., 19:
in and for the County of ......._CLARK

et T

Y D. SOBEL

W of Nevada,
SN S S s
{

AGREEMENT By PROBAT{ONE !

I do hereby wajye Cxtradition to the Siye of Nevada from any State iffthe Union and I also agrec thay X will not cantes: any
effort 10 return me to the Siate of Nevada, | have read, or have had regd lofhe, the foregoing conditions f my probation, and fully
understand them and I agree 15 abide by ang strictly follow thep, and I Kully undercstand the penalties jnvolved should 1 in any
manner violate the forepoing conditiens. I have received g copy of # documeny and NRS 176.225.

-
7 L7,
| gm@%wh//g{;
/4//?{}. ¥ Darrell Bernarg Thomas DR
APPROVED, Tor 4 !

iy
Probatica Officer

SEP 306 Rex 102y Kristy Hendersoﬂ/ 762> 1205 wpm,,
8/17/ 98/5do

.-
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JOCP . .
STEWART L. BELL - l g SR
DISTRICT ATTORNEY R
Nevada Bar #000477
200 8. Thil'd StI'CEt UﬂT éi Ly ﬁf :]6
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 ~ frtg
(702) 455-4711
Attomney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-V5- Case No, Cl147517
Dept. No. v

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS, Docket H
#0785645

Defendant.

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (PLEA)

WHEREAS, on the 4th day of June, 1998, the Defendant DARRELL BERNARD
THOMAS, appeared before the Court herein with his counsel and entered g plea of guilty ,
pursuant to Mﬁh&ﬂm&ﬂm, 400 U.S. 25 (1970), to the crime(s) of OPEN OR GROSS
LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor), committed during or between July, 1993 and June, 1996,
in violation of NRS 201.210 and

WHEREAS, thereafier on the 17th day of September, 1998, the Defendant being present
in court with his counsel DAVID AMESBURY, ESQ., and LAURA REHFELDT, Deputy
District Attorney, also being present; the above entitled Court did adjudge the Defendant guilty
thereof by reason of his Alford, plea of guilty and, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative
Assessment Fee, sentenced Defendant to ONE (1) YEAR in the Clark County Detention Center;
sentence SUSPENDED and the Defendant is placed on PROBATION for a FIXED THREE (3)
YEARS with the following CONDITIONS:

AA2301



1. Defendant submit to a search of person, residence, vehigle Orany property under the
defendant’s control, at any time deemed fiecessary by any probation officer for Pomography
and/or child pomography,

or witnesses who testified against the Defendant or solicit another Person to engage in sych
contact or Communication on behalf of the Defendant,

8. Not use aliases or fictitious nameg,

9. Not obtain a Post office box unless the Defendant recejves permission from the parole
and probation officer assigned to the Defendant,

10. Not have contact with a person less than 18 years of age in any environment upless

13. Complete 14 hours of Community service work each month of the term of probatiop
not to exceed the Provisions of NRS 176.087.

-2- PAWPDOCSY UDG\TOR707543p LWpD
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Judgment of Conviction as part of the record in the above entitled matter.,

State of Nevada.

DA#97147517X/
27 LVMP

(TK4)

Credit for time served of 1 day.

THEREFORE, the Cletk of the above entitled Court is hereby directed to enter this

DATED this _[Q day of October, 1998, in the City of Las Vegas, County of Clark,

i,
\ J'G{JjJGE

DISTRICT l Y

!

D EV#9702260834
GM

-3- P;\WPDOCS\JUDG\?O?\?O?SﬂOI.WPD
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- MOT™ ORIGINAL F’LED

Ree
DAVID €. AMESBURY ;

NEVADA BAR NO. 003889 il 41 PH'98
AMESBURY & SCHUTT P

300 So. Maryland Parkway zoahL‘ o,

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 (4ot vlomomanse.
(702) 385-5570 CLERK

Attorney for Petitiomer
Darrell Bernard Thomas

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS,

}
#0785645, ) Case No. C147517
) Dept No. V¥
Petitioner. )
}
vs. )
)
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Respondent. ) \ ‘—-50*4 X
}
MOTION TO PLACE ON CALENDAR (J4>(va

COMES NOW, Defendant Darrell Bernard Thomas, by and through
his attorney of record, David C. Amesbury, Esqg., and does hereby
request to place on calendar for purpose of hearing Request for
Modification in the terms of Probation in the above-entitled
matter.

Such motion is made upon the affidavit of Defendant herein,
attached hereto.

Wherefore, the Defendant ays this Honorable Court s=et the

hearing.

DATED this /7 ’gday of /Nfvember, 1998.

. BURY, ESQ.
a Bar No. 3889
300 South Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

CE11
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NOTICE OF MOTION

PLEASE TARE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the
foregoing Motion to set on calendar for hearing before the Digtrict
Court Judge, Departmeat V, on the 'bgday of November, 1998, at

the hour of { %& m. or as soon thereafter a8 counsel may be

heard.

DATED this /f’fzday of Nfvember, 1993,

N,

: A\\E_g;é. AMEgBURY, ESQ.
Ne a Bar N 388¢
300 South Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Defendant
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AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID C. AMESBURY

STATE OF NEVADA )
)} ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

DAVID C. AMESBURY, being first duly sworn, deposes and
says:
1. That T am an attorney licensed to practice law in

the state of Nevada.

2. That I represent the Defendant in the above entitled

action.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGH

DATED this /T day, ember, 1998.

WD C. Aitsimr, ESQ.

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me
this day of November, 1998.

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for said
County and State

AA2306
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Pastor Darreli B. ‘Thomas and fully explained, Aj Parties have agreeq that once any
rule or condition has been braken, the following steps will be aken immediately.

1. All incidents wi) be reporied immediately to the Boar QTrustees.

2. Within 24 hours, ajl incidents will be reported to the Depariment of Pardle &
Probation.

3. His re-instatement will be revoked,

Approved:
——/

Trustee Chairran Tony J. Thomas

Trustee b «{’ Jerry Nash

Trustee Jeannette Felix

Trustes Ethel Jones

Trustee Shirley Marks

® Paga 2
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RIGINAL  ®
Roe FILED
Q%Acéﬁmﬁg?ugg:iBBS

1
AMESBURY & SCHupT Hay 20 6 oo AH 98
300 so. Maryland Parkway

Las Vegas, Nevada 89307 Caézzf— Bi

{702) 385-557¢ ol e
Attorney for Petitioper LLERK

Darrell Bernard Thomas

DPISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DARRELT, BERNARD THOMAS,
#0785645, Case No. Cl1l47517
Dept No. v

Petitioner,

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent .

RECETIPT OF CoPY
s==22=l OF COPY

Receipt of Copy of the foregoing HOTION is hereby acknowledged

this /) day of November, 1g9g,

ttorney’

Las Vegaga, Nevada 89155

8 QOffice
outh Third St., 7th Floor

ieif
B
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STEWARTL, BELL Fll
DISTRICT ATTORNEY E N}
200 & ThasA000477 Ot 24
. dhin eet ! 5 »
Las Vegas, Nevada 80155 S L2
(702) 4354711
Attorney for Plaintiff ..
DISTRICT COURT #
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, c 511
Doy, &
ept. No.
DARRELL BERNHARD THOMAS, Dogket H
#0785645
Defendant,
AMENDED
JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (PLEA)

WHEREAS, on the 4th day of June, 1998, the Defendant DARRELL BERNHARD
THOMAS, appeared before the Court herein with hig counsel and entered a pleg of guilty,

pursuant to North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25 (1970), to the crime(s) of OPEN OR GROSS
LEWDNESS (Gross Misdemeanor), committed during or between July, 1993 and June, 1996,

in violation of NRS 201210 and

WHEREAS, thereafter on the 17th day of September, 1998, the Defendant being present in court
with his counsel DAVID AMESBURY, ESQ., and LAURA REHFELDT, Deputy District
Attomey, also being present; the above entitled Court did adjudge the Defendant guilty thereof
by reason of his Alford, plea of guilty and, in addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment
Fee, sentenced Defendant to ONE (1) YEAR in the Clark County Detention Center; sentence
SUSPENDED and the Defendant is placed on PROBATION for a FIXED THREE (3) YEARS
with the followin g CONDITIONS:

CE-05
DEC 28 1933 R
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1. Defendant submit to a search of person, residence, vehicle or any property under the
defendant’s control, at any time deemed necessary by any probation officer for pomography
and/or child pornography.

2. Pay $90.00 in restitution during the first 60 days of probation.

3. Notaccept a paid and/or volunteer position as an Ordained Minister and/or Pastor with
any Church and/or Religious organization unless it has been approved by the parole and
probation officer assigned to the Defendant, as well as, the Charch Board of Directors.

4. Participate in and complete programs of professional counseling, as deemed necessary.

5. Submit to periodic tests to determine whether the Defendant is using a controlied
substance and submit to periodic polygraphic examinations, as requested by the parole and
probation officer assigned to the Defendant.

6. Abstain from consuming alcohol.

7. Not to have contact with or communicate with any of the victims of the instant offense
or witnesses who testified against the Defendant or solicit another person to engage in such
contact or communication on behalf of the Defendant.

8. Not use aliases or fictitious names.

9. Not obtain a post office box unless the Defendant receives permission from the parole
and probation officer assigned to the Defendant,

10. Not have contact with a person less than 18 years of age in any environment unless
another adult who has never been convicted of a sexual offense is present,

11. Register as a sex offender in accordance with NRS 179D.460 within 48 hours after
sentencing.

12. Submit to blood testing to determine genetic markers or secretor status within 30 days
of his probation grant.

13. Complete 16 hours of community service work each menth of the term of probation
not to exceed the provisions of NRS 176.087.

14. Pursuant to NRS 176.185, Defendant to be supervised in P&P’s Intensive

Supervision Program to include Electronic Monitoring for a period deemed appropriate.

-2- PAWFDOCSUUDGYTIONT0754302.WPD
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Credit for time served of 1 day.

THEREAFTER, on the 30th day of November, 1998, the Defendant appeared in court
with his counsel , DAVID C. AMESBURY, ESQ., and TERESA M, LOWRY, Deputy District
Attorney, also being present; and pursuant to Defendant’s Request for Modification in the Terms
of Probation, the Court orders the following: Condition 3 rescinded subject to re-instatement by
Parole and Probation if appropriate. Condition 10 modified to allow Defendant contact with his
own children.

THEREFORE, the Clerk of the above entitled Court is hereby directed to enter this
Amended Judgment of Conviction as part of the record in the above entitled matter.

DATED this QQ/ day of December, 1998, in the City of Las Vegas, County of Clark,

State of Nevada. )
\ .
/ / o
DISTﬁ[CT J'I‘IIDGE v
DA#97147517X/sms
LVMPD EV#0702260834
OGL - GM
(TK4)

-3- PAWPDOCSUUDGA\TOTI0754302.WPD
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Q MODIFIED B

Selgbnal (WHie)—Cauniy Clork STATE OF NEVADA
Dlue—tentral ffce DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND PUBLIC SABETY, o ! "
Crven_rcalanet DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION Aidy 8 S
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89711 voB ,g9_0594
PROBATION AGREEMENT AND RUEESq 4 51 P '%9
. . 147517 Required to pay $25 Administrative Assessment fee
Criminal Case No to the County Clerk's Office, Lasr_vEgas , Nevada,
THE STATE OF NEVADA, 85155. Fick.
Plaintiff, ORDER ADMITTING DEFENDANT TO PROBATION
5.
THOMAS, Darrell Bernard AND FIXING THE TERMS THEREOF
Defendant
OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS
DEFENDANT is guilty of the Crime of
FPRI¥EXr Gross Misdemeanor.

DEFENDANT is sentenced 1o a term of imprisonment in the . C12Tk County Detention Center .
f0r ol years, Execution of that sentence is suspended and the DEFENDANT is hereby admitted to probation for ..o
years under the following conditions: *Fixed 3 years

1. REPORTING/RELEASE: Upon release by the Court you arc to report directly and in person to the Division of Parole and Probalion. You
arc required to submit 2 tuc and correct written monthly repon 10 Your supervising probation officer each manth on forms supplicd by the Probation
Division. In addition, you shall report as dirccted by your probation officer.

2. RESIDENCE: You shall not change your plaee of resldence, employment, nor leave the community without first obtining permission from
your probation officer in each instance.

3. INTOXICANTS: “You shall not drink or parinke of any alcoholic bevernges whatsocverse ek Xt ] Riosdd oot ot RIS RASUAS KOk
XTI OCARRAR X ARFKUH TR RROORPDRAR, RAARFRRRA XX

4. CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES: You shall not usc, purchase, possess, pive, sell or ndminister any controfled subsmnc::.\nqr any dangerous
drugs, unless first prescribed by a licensed physician. You shall submit to drug testing o5 requited by your probation officer.

5. WEAPONS: You shall not possess or have under your conteol any type of weapon.
6. ASSOCIATES: You wilt not associole with people who have criminal records,

7. COOPERATION: You shall a1 all times cooperate with your probation officer and your behaviar and sttitude shall justify the opportunity
pranted {o you by this probation.
8. LAWS AND CONDUCT: You shall comply with all municipal, county, state and federal laws, ordinances and onders and conduct yourself
as 1 good cifizen. You shall comply with convicted person registration requirements where applicable.
i 9. OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL: You shali not leave the state without first obtaining written permission, in each instance, from your probation
officer.
10. EMPLOYMENT/PROGRAM: You shall seek and mainain employment, or mainlzin o program as approved by the Probation Division.
11. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF PROBATION:

UVER

The Court reserves the right to modify these terms of Probation at anmec and as permitted by law. DATED this &'5“\_-

EIGHTH
ofw , 19, {n the -

CLARK

and for the County of .......

" District Judg
AGREEMENT BY PROBATFONER

I do hereby waive extradition to the State of Nevada from any State in the Union and I also agree that |
effort lo return me to th State of Nevada. 1 have read, or have had read to me, the forcgoing conditions of my,
understand them and I agree 1o abide by and strictly follow them and I fully understand the penalties inyd
manner violate the foregoing conditions. I have received a copy of this.ocument and NRS 176.225.

I/10/5

/4 i / S . 3
O L A “B;*gﬁﬁiﬁ"‘rhoﬁﬁ"é‘"’“‘“"'_‘f -
VED . e -,..-'(— - E | o (LT
APPROVE Probatior Offiver Dean M. Prater/764 ;.

“‘99"1"?/’9’3/3-&0 WY oG

ill not contest any
prabation, and fully
Ived should I in any

AA2313
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tion and Order for Honorable Discharge from Probation®

EIGHTH F l LE D

IN THE JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF. CLARK Mg 208 o8 P} '0)
e 37‘6!:‘:‘;2',’.‘ u'--:(:u;. ‘o
THE STATE OF NEVADA, crpe e
Plaintiff
¥5. THOMAS, Darrell Bernard
Defendant
PETITION
To the Honorable Judge JEFFREY D. SOBEL oF the EIGHTH

Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of. CLARK ,
the Undersigned Chicf Probation Officer for the Simie of Nevada now reports as follows concerning the above Defendant: Said

not to exceed 3 years

Defendant was placed on probation by order of this Coust for & term of. , said Order being

dated the, 17th day of. September 19..9.9.... Said Probationer has satisfactorily completed all of

the conditions of probation, while under supervision in the State of. Nevada

THEREFORE, the undersigned recommends that said Probationer be discharged from further supervision.

Dated this 15th day of. August yq2001

- / g
>Lj_ twﬁét ‘é’ Y, Py liomatt
. Chief Parole and Pmbﬁiinn_Oﬂicer .
Michael Compton, Operaticns Supervisor

# % % & » & District IV, Llas Vegas, HV.

ORDER HONORABLY DISCHARGING PROBATIONER

In this cause it appearing that the above-named Defendant was heretofore placed on probation in charge of the Chief Parole and
Probation Officer of the State of Nevada, and it further appearing from the petition of said Probation Officer that the period of such

probation expired on...MRAN_Judae 's_signature §9......... Jrihhereby opltred thatthe abfve-named de [ dant be
hanorably discharged {rom said probation. | e
W )
7

U Diftrict Judge /
JEFFREY D, SOBEL .
Dated this \‘(D day of. CU'L‘QU( ,]q..... S"&

SEP 0N IRer 980 Huth/ISU/D-IV/Rh 0143 <
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CASE NO. C147517 FILED
i3 ZushN'M

IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF LAS VEG?&,TOWH HIP

B Sl
VADA

COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF N
GLERK

-000-
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ()Y{\(B\VQp\\-
Plaintiff,
vsS.

CASE NO. 97F07543X

DARRELL BERNARD THOMAS,

Defendant.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
oF
PRELIMINARY HEARING

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JAMES M. BIXLER,
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 1987
9:00 A.M.

APPEARANCES:

For the State: TERESA M. LOWRY, ESQ.,
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

For the Defendant: DAVID C. AMESBURY, ESQ.

Reported by: DIANA M. GREEN, C.C.R. No. 264
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WITNESSES FOR THE STATE
ERICKA GOODALL

Direct Exanmination by Ms. Lowry
cross-Examination by Mr. Amesbury
Redirect Examination by Ms. Lowry
Recross—-Examination by Mr. Amesbury

LAKEISHA CULVERSON

Direct Examination by Ms. Lowry
cross-Examination by Mr. Amesbury
Redirect Examination by Ms. Lowry
Recross-Examination by Mr. Amesbury

EBONY BELL

Direct Examination by Ms. Lowxy
Cross-Examination by Mr. Amesbury
Redirect Examination by Ms. Lowry

PAGE
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33
38
40

42
49
53
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LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, DECEMBER 16, 1997

9:00 A.M.

PROCEEDTN G S

THE COURY: Ready for Mr. Thomas? For
the record, this is the state of Nevada versus
Darrell Bernard Thomas. Is there an offer made to
put on the recoraz

MS. LOWRY: fThere was an offer made,
one count of lewdness with a minor naming all three
victims with the right to argue.

THE COURT: The State's withdrawn that
offer?

MS. LOWRY: fThat's correct.

THE COURT: Do You understand that,
Mr. Thomas, there won't be any other offers to
negotiate this case?

MR. AMESBURY: We discussed that, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: a1l right. First witness
for the State isg?

MS. LOWRY: GEricka. Judge, I have
three witnesses, They are each teenage girls ang
each will be accompanied by their parents.

THE COURT: QOkay. Very good. Who all

AA2317
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is ~- Goodall you said is first?

MS. LOWRY: Yes,

THE COURT: Ericka, you need to step
right arouna here, please. This is the witness
chair. Step around beside it, remain standing andg
raise your right hand and the clerk beside me will

Swear you in.

THE CLERK: Do you swear teo tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth seo

help you God?

THE WITNESS: I do.

ERICKA GOODALL,
A minor child called as a witness for the State,

having been first duly sworn, testified ag follows:

THE CLERK: Please be seated. State
your full name and spell Your last name for the
record.

THE WITNESS: My last name? My name
is Ericka Goodall, G-0-0-D~A-L~1.

VA
A
A

AA2318
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LOWRY:

Q. Ericka, I know that You have a very
soft voice. oOkay. oOne of the things I will need
You to do is speak up so that everybody hears you.

That way I don't have to ask you to repeat yourself

’

okay?

A. Okay.

Q. Ericka, how old are you?

Al Thirteen.

Q. When is your birthday?

A, May 31st.

0. What year?

A, 1982.

Q. Do you go to school?

A, Yes.

0. What grade are you in?

A. Tenth.

Q. What's your mother's name?

A. Monice Hughes.

Q. Do you know the defendant, Darrell
Thomas?

A. Yesg

Q. How is it that you know him?

AA2319
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Q.

A.

Aa.

Q.

Q.
church?
a.
Q.
months or
A.

0.

6
® @

He was my pastor at the church.

And what was the name of that church?
Philadelphia.

Philadelphia?

Yes.

And do you belong to that church now?
No.

When did you belong to that church?
Oh, about two years ago.

How long did you belong to that

I cant't remember.

Would it have been days or weeks or

Years?

Probably years.

50 you belonged to that church for at

least a couple years?

A,

Q.

Yes,

Okay. Did anybody else in your fanily

go to that church?

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

No. My mother.
You and your mom?

Yes.

During the time that you went to that

church, how often would you see or spend time with

AA2320
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the bastor, the defendant?

r- Every once in awhile.

Q. Did you ever g0 to his house?

A. Yes.

Q. And was hig house here ip Las Vegas,

in cClark County?
A, Yes.

Q. And what would be the Yeasons that yYou

would go to hig house?

A, To help his wife.

0. And what's his Wife's name?

A, Cynthia Thomas.

Q. And, Ericka, do You see Darrell Thonas

in court today?
A, Yes,
Q. Can you point to him and te1; the
judge what he's Wearing, the ¢olor of his clothes?
A. Like a goldish color.
MS. LOWRY: t1et the record reflect the
identification of the defendant.
THE COURT: Yes, the recorq wWill go
show.
BY Ms. LOWRY :
Q. About how many times do You think you

went to the defendant's house?
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Q.

help his wife?
A.

Q.

Twice.

And each of those times,

Yes,

Now, when you went to his

was that to

house, diaq

the defendant ever do anything that made You feel

uncomfortahbhle?
A.
Q.

a.

0.
A,
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
this happeneq?

A,

Q.
you?

A.

Q.
butt?

Yes.

What did he do?

He touched me °n my butt and kisseg

Now, this happened at his
Yes.

Where in his house did it
Downstairs by the laundry
The house is two-story?
Yes.

And was there anyone else

No.

When he kisseg You, where

On my lips.

house?

happen?

room.

around when

did he kiss

And you said that he touched your
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A.
Q.
did that?
A,

Q.

© @ ’

Yes.

What did he touch your butt with?

His hand.

What did he do with his hand when he

Just rubbed it.

Now, did he touch you on top of your

clothes or under your clothes?

A.

Q.

this?

you?n

that?
A.

Q‘

On top.

Did he say anything to you when he did

He said, "You like me, don't you?"
He said what?
"You like me, don't you?"

He said to you, "You like me, dontt

Yes.
What did you say?
I said no.

How did that make you feel when he dia

Scared.

Now, were there any other times that

he did something that made You feel uncomfortable?

MR. AMESBURY: I don't know if we
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establisheq the times. I know she's gone to thig
church for a number of Years. Are ye talking ahout

a time perioq?

THE COURT: 1 think we neeg to get to

MS. Lowmry: 1 admit my train of
thought bops around, but T will cover it.

MR. AMESBURY: Your Honeor, ailse I
Would make g motion to exclude. Ig there someone
other than her mon Present in the courtroom here
today?

THE CouRrp: 1 don't know. If there
are any other Witnesses or potential witnesses in
the courtroom in this case, the State of Nevada
Versus Darrell Thomas, they can'+ be in here Guring
the course of this preliminary hearing, You have tg
wait outside,

I believe that all the other
bPeople back here are actually with You; is that
right?

MR. AMESBURY: That's right,

Parents,

MS. LowRy: I told the Couxrt I'py
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calling the three girls.
THE COURT: That's fine.
MS. LOWRY: Okay.
Q. Okay. Ericka, was this the first time
that anything happened with him?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And about how old were You at

the time?

A, About 12.

0. Do you remember when this happened?
A, No.

Q. But you remember that you were 12 and

it was during the time that You went to his chureh?
A. Yes.
Q. Did he do anything else on any other
times that made you feel uncomfortable?
a. No.

Q. Now, did he ever italk to You about

personal things?

A. Yes,
Q. What did he say?
A, He asked me about, that he knowe T was

interested in boys, and then he switched the subject

and asked me personal questions.

Q. Tell me what those personal questions

AA2325



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

‘D {l’ 12

were.

F: He asked me was I developing, did I
have hair in certain spots and everything.

Q. Did he say which certain spots he was
talking about?

A, No, he just said down there.

Q. Down there, are we talking about your

vaginal area?
A. Yes.

Q. Where were you when he had this

conversation with you?
a. At church.

Q. And how old were you when this

conversation took place?

A. I don't know.

Q. Was it during the time that you went
to his church?

A. Yes.

Q. How old were you when you stopped
going to his church?
A, About 14,

Q. Was it -- did this happen before you

turned 14, the conversation?
A. Yes.

0. Then when he asked you about those
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Personal things, what dig you say?

A. I lied. I said ves.
Q. What did you say yes to?
A. When he askeqd me the personal

duestions.

Q. Help us out here. Tell us what
question he asked and then what you said.

A. He =aid do I have hair, and I saiaq
ves.

Q. And how did You know what hair he was
talking about?

A, He wouldn't pe talking abeut nothing
else, if he said down there.

Q. Because he said down there. How did

that conversation make you feel?

A, Awkward.

Q. Was there anyone else around?

A. No.

Q. Did he ever talk to You about your

discussing these things with anybody else?

A, Yes.
0. What did he say?
A, He said, "You don't have to tel]

nobody. fhis ig between me andg you."

Q. Did he say anything like that the time
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that he kisseg You and rubbea Your butt-?

A, Yes.,

Q. What did he say?

A. He said, Wphig has to stay between pe
and you.n"

Q. And did you tel] anybody right away

about these things?

A. Yes,

Q. Who did you te11?

A. I told Moniea and Sister Thomas.

Q. Is Monica a kid or grownup?

A, She was a teenager at the time.

Q. And you said that You told Sister
Thomas?

a. Yes.

Q. Who is that?

A. His wife.

Q. And did you telj Your mom?

A, Yes.

Q. Did vou ever spend any time at the

defendantis house aroung Christmastime?

A, Yes.

Q. Is that the tinme that wetre talking
about thisg happened?

A. Yes.
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MS. LOWRY: Pass the witness.

T'HE COURT: Cross.

CROSB-EXAMINATION

BY MR. AMESBURY:

made a

Q.

Ericka, you mentioned that Darrell

comment about hair. That was at church?

A.
Q.
A.

Q.

what date

vou --

room.

A.

Q.

Yes.

Were there any othex people around?

No.

Do you remember the specific day or

that was?

No.

Was that -- and Miss Lowry asked

was that around Christmas?

A.
Q.
a.
Q.
A.
Q.

A.

It was before.

Before Christmas of 1993, do you know?
No.

Was it in the summer or the wintexr?

I don't remember.

Were you there with any friends?

My mom was there. She wasn't in the

This was a room in the church?
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sermon?

A.

Q.

Q.
A.
Q.
week?
A.
Q.
on Sunday
A.
Q.
Sunday?
A,
Q.

mom?

O 16

His office.
His office?
Yes.

Was it before the sermon or after the

After.

After the sermon?

Yes.

It was just the two of you?

Yes.

And this was on a Sunday?

Either a Sunday or during the week.
¥You don't remember which Sunday?
No.

You say it might have been during the

Yes.

I mean, do you nermally have sermons

or =--
Yes.

You have them during the week or

Both.

After this happened, did you tell your

AA2330
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Yes.

This was -- did you tell anyone else?
No.

Did you tell Darrell's wife?

No, I didn't tell her about that.

Going back to this other incident at

the house, you told Darrell's wife; isn't that

correct?
A.
Q.
A.
Q.

the church?
A.
Q.

much before?
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

Yes.
Do you remember when that was?
Around Christmastime.

Was that before or after the event at

Before.

It was before. Do you remember how

No.
You don't remember?
No.

Was there anyone else in the house

other than Darrell and yourself?

A.

Q.

A.

Everyone was in the kitchen.
That everyone includes who?

I can't remember who was all there,

but Sister Thomas had sent me upstairs to get
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When I came downstairs, he met

me down there and pulled me around by the washroom.

0.
people?
a.
Q.
A.
Q.
anybody?
A.
Q.
a.
Q.
a.
Q.
time with
a lot?
a.

Q.

bid

Darrell socially? Dpidg You go to his hcouse

or anything?

a.

Okay. Where were the rest of the

In the kitchen.
How far away was the kitchen?

I can't remember.

Did you -- after that, did you talk to

you tell anybody what happened?

Yes.

Wheo did you tell?
Monica, Sister Thomas.
Did you tell your mom?
Yes.

Did you and your mom spend a lot of

Not very often.

Are you friends with any of his kids

We used to be,. My mother used to keep

his little gir} every once in awhile.

Q.
AL

Q.

Keep his little girl?
Yes.

Did he or his wife ever baby-sit you?
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A, No.

Q. You have brothers and sisters; is that
t?

A, Yes.

Q. Were they over at the house at the
ime?

A, No,.

Q. Noew I understand that you are not a

of his church anymore?

A, No.
Q. And where do you go to church now?
MS. LOWRY: Objection; relevance.
THE WITNESS: Zion.
THE COURT: Sustained.
MS. LOWRY: You don't have to answer
Ericka.
AMESBURY :
Q. Bo you know why vou left the churech?
A, Because I didn't want to be invoelved

more mess.

Q. You don't?

A. Yes.

Q. Or your mom?

AL Both.

Q. Did you actually ~- I don't know this,

AA2333
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but did your mom go to the police?

a.
Q.
A.
Q.
A,
Q.
A,
Q.

a.

No.

Did you make a report?

No.

Did the police contact you?

They came to ny school.

And when did they come to your school?
Last year.

Do you know if it was in February

It was during track $eason, so more

than likely the ena of the year.

Q.

Did you ever talk to any of the -- I

guess, you know, Lakeisha; is that correct?

A,
Q.
A.
Q.
A.

her about it

Yes,

Did you ever talk teo her about this?
Yes.

How about Ebony?

I know her, but 1 haven't talked to

And Lakeisha is a friend of yours?
Yes.

MR. AMESBURY: Pass the witness.

M5. LOWRY: Just a couple guestions.

THE COURT: let try to keep this on a
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short cast because we will have a room full of

people.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LOWRY:

Q. You said, Ericka, that you didn't
remember exactly when this happened, which December
it was, but you said you gave a statement to the
police?

A, Yes.

0. Okay. If I show you that statement,

would that maybe help you remember the dates, the

times this happened?

A. Probably so.

MS. LOWRY: Counsel, showing You her

voluntary statement, page 3 and 4.

Q. I want you to take a look at this,
read it to yourself and see if that helps you.
Page 3 and 4, if that helps you remember when these
things happened.

A. (Witness complied) .

Q. Do you remember what Decenber it was

this happened?

A. of '93.
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Q. And the church that You belonged +to,
the church is located in Las Vegas, cClark County,
too?

A. Yes.

Q. And so December of '93 something
happened. bpig anything happen in 'g94?

A. No.

Q. Erieka, do you recall telling the

police that there was a second incident in May of

947
A, Yes.
Q. Did something happen in May of t'947?
A. That was when he touched my butt.
Q. Okay. And that was where?
A. At his house.
Q. 50 he touched your butt in May of 'g94

at his house?

A. Yes,

Q. And then what did he do in December of
t937

A. That's when he kissed me on ny lips

when we was downstairs by the laundry room.

Q. When he kissed you on your lips, you
said he touched You at that time?

A, Yes.

AA2336
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MS. LOWRY: Nothing further.

MR. AMESBURY: Let mne clarify.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. AMESBURY:

Q. Maybe I'm a little confused. Dig you
see Darrell at the house prior? Didn't you just
testify that happened prior to?

A, I don't understand the guestion.

Q. When he -- when you saw him at the
house, do you remember was that before, before the
time in church?

THE COQURT: Counsel, the state scems
to be using a reference of the first incident and
the second incident, if You refer to it like that.

MR. AMESBURY: Okay.

Q. The first incident was the incident at

the church; is that my understanding of your

testimony?
A. Yes.
Q. The second one you are testifying

happened in May of 19947

A. Yes.

Q. Why did you wait so long before you

AA2337
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contacted the police?

A, I didn't contact the police. I don't

know who did.

Q. Was it your mom? Your father?
A. No.
Q. And then the police, to my

understanding, they came and interviewed you?

a, Yes.

MR. AMESBURY: Court's indulgence a

second.

Q. ¥ou stated that you have taikead to
Lakeisha; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the last time you

talked to Lakeisha?

A. Like two weeks ago.

Q. Prior to today's hearing?

A, Excuse me?

Q. About two weeks before today's
hearing?

A. No, about today's hearing.

Q. Have you spoken recently to Stephanie?

A Neo.

MR. AMESBURY: Pass it.

MS. LOWRY: Nothing further.

AA2338
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THE COURT: Is that it?

Thank you very much for your
testimony. I appreciate it. Go ahead and step
outside. Make sure you don't discuss any testimony
while waiting outside.

THE WITNESS: Okay.
THE COURT: Next.

MS. LOWRY: Lakeisha Culverson.
(The witness exited the courtroom.)

MS. LOWRY: Any objection to excusing
that witness?
THE COURT: Do you have any problem?

MR. AMESBURY: I don't have any

problem.
THE COURYT: Ericka is excused.
Lakeisha; is that right?
Lakeisha, step around here, please. This is the
witness chair. Stand right beside it, raise your

right hand and the lady right here, the clerk, will
swear you in.

THE CLERK: Do you swear to tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so

help you God?

AA2339
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THE WITNESS: Yes.

LAKEISHA CULVERSON,
A witness for the State, having been first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please be seated. State

Your full name ang spell your last name for the

record.

THE WITNESS: Lakeisha Yolanda

Culverson, C~U-L~-V-E-R-5-0-N.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LOWRY:

Q. Lakeisha, I will ask you to speak up,
okay, so we can hear you so I don't have to ask you
to repeat yourself. All right?

How o0ld are you?

A. Fourteen.

Q. When is your birthday?
a. March 18, 1993.

Q. Thank you.

What grade are you in at

school?
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Ninth.
What is Your mother'sg name?
Stephanie Culverson.

Okay. Lakeisha, do You know the

defendant, Barrel) Thomas?

A.

Q.

a,

Q.

A.

Q.
Clark County?

4.

Q.

a.

Q.
color clothes

A.

Yes.

How do yon know him?

He used to pe the pastor of my church.
What was the hame of that church?
Philadelphia.

Was that church located in rasg Vegas,

Yes.

Do you see hin in court today?

Yes,

Point to hin and tell the judge what
he has on.

Tan suit,

MS. LOWRY: May the record refleect

identification of the defendant?

show.

BY MS. LowRy:

Q.

Were a menmber

THE COURT: Yes, the record will =o

Lakeisha, how old were You when you

of your church?

AA2341
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A, I don't remember,

Q. About how long dig You go to hig
churech?

A, Five years.

Q. Did there come a8 point you stoppeqg

going to hig church?

A. Uh~-hum.

Q. Is that yes?

A. Yes,

0. About when was that?

A. About a Year-and-a-halr ago.

Q. Why did vou Stop going to his church?

A, Because of the situation that
happened.

Q. Okay. ang what was the situation that
happeneq?

A. The fondling of women,

Q. Where did this take place?

A. In his home.

0. Did it happen more than one time?

A, No.

Q. About when was this? When did thisg

take place?
aA. Around school time.

Q. Okay. How 0ld were yYyou?

AA2342
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A. Twelve.

Q. So it was during the school year when

you were 127

A, Yes.
Q. Do you know what year it was?
A, 1995.

MsS. LOWRY: Courtf's indulgence.
Q. How was it that you were at the
defendant's house?
a. My mom, she needed a baby-~sitter
because she was working and called him and asked him
if he would baby-sit. He said yes. He came to get

us and we went to his house.

0. When you say "we," who are you talking
about?

A. Me and my sisters and my cousins.

Q. How many kids were there that went to

his house to be babysat?

A, Five.

Q. S0 you, your sisters and your cousins?
A. Gh-humn.

Q. That's a yes?

A. Yes.

Q. Was it daytime or nighttime?

A. Day.
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Q. When you got to his house, were there
other beople at his house?

A, No.

Q. And what was the first thing that he
did that magde You feel uncomfortable?

A, He asked pe questions about ny
bpersonal lire.

Q. When youn Say your personal life, what
are you talking about Specifically? What guestions
2id he ask you?

A, Like did I have Pubic hairs ang have I
starteq my menstrual,

Q. Where were you when he was asking

these questionsg?

A, We were in the den area.

Q. Where were the other kids?

A. Outside,

Q. And how digqg those questions make you
feel?

A, Uncomfortable.

Q. Did you answer him?

A. Some questions 71 diq.

Q. Did he ask You to do anything?

A, He ask me to stand up ang unbutton ny
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didn't go further than that.

0. Did you do what he asked? Did you

unbutton your rants?

A, Yes,

0. And did you take Your pants off?

A, No.

g. Or pull them down?

A. I just unbuttoneq them and opened the

pants from the zipper. That's as far as I went.

Q. What was the purpose of him having you

unbutton your pants?

a. He said that he wanted to see

something.

Q. Did he touch You at that point?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did he touch you?

a. At my behind.

0. What did he touch You with on your
behind?

A. His hanad.

Q. What did he do with his hands when he
did that?

A. He just caresseqd my butt.

Q. Was he saying anything to you while he
did that?
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A, No.

Q. Did he ever do anything with his
clothes?

A. No.

Q. Did he ever touch any other rart of

Your body besides your butt?

A. No.

Q. Now, did he Say anything to you about
whether or not this was something that You could
discuss with People?

A, He just said 1 shouldn't tell my mom
because it's none of her business. and he said that
there's some things I don't have to tell her because
some things is just my business, and T don't have to
tell her everything that goes in my life. If I tell
her that, something bad could happen.

0. Did he tell You what it was that would

be bad, what happened irf You toldz

A. No.

Q. Did that WOrry you or upset you?
A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell your mom right away?
A. No.

Q. How come you didn't tell her right

away?
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about this?
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Q.
A.
happened.
Q.

house?
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I was scared.
Who were you scared of?
Him.

Who was the first person that you told

My mom.
About when was that?

It was a few weeks after the incident

And do you know the address of his

No.

But it's in Las Vegas, in Clark

Yes,
MS. LOWRY: Court's indulgence.

Pass the witness.

THE COURT: Cross?

HR. AMESBURY: VYes,

CROBS~EXAMINATION

BY MR. AMESBURY:

Q.

How long have you been going to that

church, do you remember?
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A. About five years.

Q. And would you consider your parent,
mom or dad active in the church?

A. I don't understand you.

Q. Do they participate, were they

involved in the church?

A, Yes.

Q. Are there a lot of church activities?

A, It was.

Q. Were your parents close with the
Thomases?

A. They were good friends.

Q. Did they hold a position in the

church, your mem hold a position in the chureh?

A. Yes.

Q. What was that?

A. I can't remember what it was.

Q. But thera came a time that You left

the church, right and went to another church?

A. Yes.

Q. And do you Xnow why that was?

A. Yes.

Q. Why?

A. Because of the incident that happened.
Q. When you tolaq Your mom about this, did
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she go to the police immediately?

A, Yes.

Q. She d4id?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And do you remember

A. No.

Q. Did you contact any of the

you know Ebony?

35

approximately when she went to the police?

other -- do

A. Yes.

Q. Do vou consider her a friend?

a. Yes.

Q. How about Ericka?

A. Yes.

Q. she is also your friend?

A. Yes.

Q. pid you talk to them about this case?
A. A while back.

Q. Do you remember when?

A. No.

Q. Did you talk to them prior to telling

your mom about this?

A. I don't understand.

Q. Did you talk to them before you told

your mom about this?
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A, No.

Q. Did you talk to them after?

A. Uh-~hum, vyes.

Q. Are you all members of the same church
now or --

A. Am I?

Q. With Ebony and Erieka?

A, No.

Q. Now, this happened, it is ny

understanding, around Spring of 199, Is that my

understanding?

MS. LOWRY: Well, it's pleq June of

'9g.

BY MR. AMESBURY:

Q. June of 1997
A, Yes.
Q. Did you ~- You say that you talked to

Ericka ang You talked to Ebony. Do ¥ou remember

when you talkegq to them?

A. No.

Q. Was it after You left the church?
A. Yes.

Q. But prior to contacting the police?
a. I don't understand.

MS. LOWRY: Can I have the Court's

AA2350



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

. 0 37

indulgence a moment?

(Mr. Amesbury conferred with

Ms. Lowry.)

BY MR. AMESBURY:

Q.

Before you talked to the police, did

You talk about this to Ericka?

A.
0.
a.
Q.

testimony

No.
How about Ebony?

No.

So it is my understanding your

is this happened around June of 1996 and

this is the only thing that happened, you didn't

have any more contact with Mr. Thomas after that?

a.

Q.

No.

Then you were never alone with him

privately before that?

A.
Q.
over with
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

you

No.

And the other, there were other kids
at the house?

Yes.

Were any of them in the room?

No.

Were they outside?
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A, Some were. There was one outside.
And before this happened, the little one went
outside that was in the house.

Q. You say they was in the house. Where

were they in the house?

A, Huh?
Q. Where were they in the house?
A, They were there with me. fThere was

one with me, but when the incident started to happen
and he told the little one to go outside, then it

was just me and him in the den area.

Q. Was his wife in the house at the time?
A, No.

Q. Just you two in the house?

A. Yes.

Q. This was in the den area?

A. Yes.

MR. AMESBURY: Court's indulgence.
Pass the witness.
THE COURT: Is that it?

MS. LOWRY: Just one.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LOWRY:

Q. Lakeisha, when you talked to the
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police about what happened the first tine, did you
tell them absclutely everything that happened?
A. No.

Q. Were there other things that happened

that you didn't talk about?

aA. Yes.
Q. What were the other things?
A, Just the incident when he had laid me

on the couch the first time then we started talking
again, then he laid me on the other side of +the
couch and I was on my back this time and showing me,

doing the same thing he did the first time.

Q. So was that at his house?
A. Yes.
Q. Was that a different time than the

time you went over there to be babysat?
A, No, the sanme day.

Q. Same time, but he did it more than

once on that day?

A. Yes.

Q. You said he laid you on the couch?
A. Yes.

Q. Tell us how he did that. Did he say

it or did he do something?

A. He said, "Come over here anad sit on
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this side of the couch." I went. He said, "Lay
back." I got on the couch. He got on me. He got

one arm on the couch and one arm on the side of me.

Q. Did he tell you why he was doing that?
A. No.
Q. When he laid on you, did his body

touch your body?
A. No.

Q. Did he do any touching at all at that

point on the couch?
A. No.
MS. LOWRY: Nothing further.
THE COURT: 1Is that it?

MR. AMESBURY: To clarify.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. AMESBURY:
Q. ¥You said there was a second time.
This happened after?
A. After the first time he laid me on the
couch.
THE COURT: she just described the
first time but nothing happened. The second

incident is what she described earlier was the basis
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for the charge. That was the actual --
MR. AMESBURY: 1t was the same day.
PHE COURT: The same day a little
while later.
MR. AMESBURY: It was a little
while -~
THE WITNESS: Excuse me?
BY MR. AMESBURY:
Q. There was a period of time between the
two incidents?
A. Yes. After I sat up the first time we

had been laying on the couch, after I sat up the

first time, we started talking again then he laid me

on the other side of the couch.
MR. AMESBURY: I will pass.
M5. LOWRY: WNothing further.

THE COURT: Thank you very much for

your testimony. I want you to step in the hallway.

Don't discuss any testimony while outside.
Any reason to make her stick
around?
MR. AMESBURY: ©No, I don't think so.
TPHE COURT: Ebony Bell is the last
one.

(The witness exited the courtroom.}
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THE COURT: Ebony, if you will step
around right here, the other side of the witness
chair, I need to have you remain standing, raise
your right hand and the clerk beside me will swear
you in.

THE CLERK: Do you swear to tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so
help you God?

THE WITNESS: I do.

EBONY BELL,
A witness for the State, having been first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Please be seated. State

your full name and spell your last name for the

record.

THE WITNESS: My name is Ebony Bell.

My last name spelled B-E~L-T.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LOWRY:
Q. Ebony --

THE COURT: Speak right towards the
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microphone.
BY MS. LOWRY:
Q.
a.

Q.

Q.

Thomas?

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.
wearing today.

A.

Ebony, how old are you?
I'm 17.

When is your birthday?
December 2, 19sg.

Do you know the defendant, Darrell

Yes, I do.

How do you know him?

I used to attend his church.

What is the name of that church?
Philadelphia chureh of God in Christ.
Do you see him in court today?

Yes, I do.

Point to him and describe what he is

Wearing a brownish suit with a

pinstriped white shirt.

HS. LOWRY: Let the record reflect the

identification of the defendant.

BY MS. LOWRY:

Q.

THE COURT: The record will so show.

Ebony, about how old Wwere you when you

attended his church?
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Q. Thirteen, fourteen?

a. Uh-hum.

Q. Do you attend his church now?

A. Neo, I dontt.

Q. Why is that?

A. I left because I felt that he sexually

harassed me.

Q. When you say sexually harassed, tell
me what he did do?

A. Touch me in =-- talked to me in certain
ways and touched me in search ways.

Q. What kind of things did he say?

A. He said things like, asked me did I
like him. Asked me if I was to have sex, how would
I have it, and told me if he wasn't older that he

wonuld try to talk te me, try to get with me.

Q. Try to what?

A. Try to be with me.

Q. When you say be with you, you mean
sexually?

A. Yes.

Q. Where did these conversations take
place?

A. In the church.
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Q. Were there other People around when he

said these things?

A. No, it was in nhis office.

Q. And is his church located inp Clark
County, Las Vegas?

A. Yes, it is,

Q. Now, how ola Were you when he hadqd
these conversations with you?

a. Fourteen.

Q. You said that in talking to You he

also did sonpe other things?

A. Yes.

Q. What were the other things that he
didz

A, He touchegq me, touched my breasts,

touched my behind. He tried, attempted to touch nme,
touch my vagina,

Q. Okay. was this all at the sanme time
Or were these each different occasions?

A. Just different times.

Q. Okay. Let's +a1k about when he

touched Your breasts, Where did this happen?

A. At his house.
0. How was it that You were at hisg house?
A, I was over there for the Fourth of
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Q. And that would have been Fourth of

July, 19937

A. Yes.

0. And where at his house did this
happen?

A, Just passing through. Just when no

cne was around.

Q. When he touched your breasts, what 4id
he touch your breasts with?

A. With his hand.

Q. Did he do it on top of your clothes or
under your clothes?

A, On top of my clothes.

Q. That Fourth of July time, did he touch
any other part of your body?

A. No.

Q. Now, you said that there was a time he

touched your butt?

A, Yeah.

Q. About when was that?

A, I'm not sure.

Q. Same time period, close to when?
A. Yes.

Q. The Fourth of July?
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A. Uh-hum.

Q. Was the Fourth of July the first
incident of him touching you?

A. Yes.

Q. And where were you when he touched

Your butt?

A. At his house.

Q. Was there anyone else around?

aA. No.

Q. What room of the house were you in?

Al In the den.

Q. And tell us exactly what he did. What

did he touch your butt with?

A. He touched my butt with his hand.

Q. Did he say anything to you while he
was doing this?

A. No. He just laughed and played it
off.

Q. Did he touch you on top of your
clothes or under your clothes?

A. Oon top.

Q. You said something about he tried to
touch your vagina?

A. Yes.

0. Where did that happen?
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A. At his house.

Q. What room of the house were you in at

that time?

A, The same place.

Q. The same place being the den?

A. Yeah.

0. Was there anybody else around?

A. No.

Q. And by try, what did he do that makes

you believe he was trying te do that?
A. Like he reached his hand going there,

but I just walked awvay.

Q. pid you tell anybody right away about

these things that he was doing?

A. No.

Q. How come?

A. Because I was scared.

Q. Had he said anything te you about
telling?

A. Yes.

Q. What did he say to you?

a. He told me if I told anyone that they

wouldn't believe me.
MS. LOWRY: Thanks, Ebony.

Mr. Amesbury will ask you some guestions now, okay?
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CROSS*EXAMINBTION

BY MR. AMESBURY :

It is ny understanding that you

testifieq this happened at the house when you were

Passing through?

A,
Q.
A,
Q.
that happen?
A,
Q.
A.

Yes,
That was July 4th of 19937
Yes,

Now, the sSecond incident, when diq

At his house at a slumhber Party.
At a Slumber party?

Yes.

Were there other girig Present?
Yes,

Was Lakeisha there?

No.

How about Ericka?

Yes.

Ericka was there ag well, Were there

any other girig there?

A,

Q.

A,

Yes,
Do you remember thejr names?

Antoinette and Monica. I don't knoy
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their 1ast nameg.

Q. Was this -- You say this Was a slumber

party he was having at hig house?

A. Yeah.

Q. Was his yife there at the tinpe as
well?

A, Yes.

Q. Were there only two times that yYou

were over at the house? Have You been over to the

house before?

A. Yes, Ir'ye been over there more than
twice.

Q. Did you ever baby-sit his kids or
anything?

A. No.

Q. The other times that You were pgver at

the house, was he there as well?

a. Yesg,

Q. Did anything happen in those times?

A, No.

Q. Now, you're no longer g member of thisg

church; is that correct?
A, Correct.

Q. You and your Parents just joined

another church?
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Yes, I dia.

You dig Personally. Are Your parentsg

a2 member of the church?

A.
Q.
4.

Q.

My parents wWere never g member,
So you'lve gone to a different churech?

Yes.

How many years have you peep going to

church? Hoyu many years hag You been going to

chuxrch?
A,
Q.
A.

Q.

For a year.
About a Year?
Yeah,

You consider Yourself 3 friend of

Lakeisha as well as Erieka?

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
A,
Q.
Al
Q.

understand;

Yes.

¥You see then on a regular basiz?

No.

You guys gc to school together?

No.

Did you talk to them about this case?

When?

When it happeneq?

No.

But you qiq talk to your mom T

is that correct?
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. I talked to my grandmother.

Q. You talked to your grandmother?

Al Yeah.

Q. Is your grandmother a member of the
church?

A. No.

Q. Did the police contact you or did you

contact the police?

A. They contacted mne.

0. They came to your school?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember when they came to your
school?

A. No.

Q. Do you know if they contacted any

other girls or girlfriends?

A. No.

0. Other than these two times, did

Mr. Thomas --

({Brief proceedings held in

unrelated matters.)

THE COURT: Sorry.

Iy
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BY MR. AMESBURY :

Q. Do you remember why the police

contacted you?

A. ¥Yes.
Q. What dia they tel1 you?
A, They told me that -~

MS. LOWRY: I will object. 1It's
hearsay.

MR. AMESBURY: Probable cause.

THE COURT: I Qon't think so.

MR. AMESBURY: They use it the other

way all the time.
THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. AMESBOURY: T don't have any

further questions.

MS. LOWRY: Just a couple.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. LOWRY:

Q. Ebony, the house where these things
happened, the defendant's house is in pas Vegas?

A, Yes, it is.

Q. You said that You didn't remember the

exact time frame of the secong incident. bpo you

AA2367



remember you gave a statement to the police?
A. Yes,
MS. LOWRY: Counsel, voluntary
statement, page 3.
Q. I will ask you to take a look at your
statement to see if that will help you remember
about when the second incident occurred.

A. (Witness complied). Around May of

Q. Is that what you told us in your

statement?
A,

MS. LOWRY: Nothing further.

MR. AMESBURY: No further guestions.

THE COURT: Thank you for your time.
I appreciate it. You can wait in the hallway if yon
want to. VYou are free to leave, also. If you wait
outside, don't discuss any testimony.

THE WITNESS: Okay.
(The witness exited the courtroom.)
THE COURT: Can we excuse her?

MS. LOWRY: ¥es.

THE COURT: All right.
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MS. LOWRY: Judge, that concludes my
witnesses. I would just move to conform to the
testimony to make two amendments. On Count Iv, I
would add and/or rubbing the buttocks of because I
believe that is what Ericka said that he kissed her
and he rubbed her buttocks at the time he kissed
her, as well as the other incident.

And then on Lakeisha, Count I,
Lakeisha was not specifically clear as to whether it
was June '95 or June of '96. She actually testified
to both. And under the Cunningham case, the supreme
court --

THE COURT: Which count?

MS. LOWRY: Now, talking about Count
I. June of '96. She actually testified she thought
it happened June of '96, and also testified she
thought it could have been June of '95. I would ask
to open that time frame to make it June '95 to June
of '96 to conform with her testimony.

With that, I rest.

THE COURT: Any objections to those
two amendments?

MR. AMESBURY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: They appear consistent

with the testimony. Count IV will be amended to so
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reflect at the end of line 7 it says the victim

Ericka, and insert and/or rub buttocks of Ericka

Goodall.

MS. LOWRY: Do that actually in place
of placing his tongue. There is no testimony about
that.

MR. AMESBURY: I don't think there's
been testimony today on that.

THE COURT: We will delete that part
on line 7 and/or rubbing the buttocks of Ericka
Goodall. And Count I, we'll add, line 14, June '95
to June '96.

MS. LOWRY: Okay.

PHE COURT: All right. With that, the
State rests; is that correct?

MS. LOWRY: Yes.

THE COURT: The defense calling any
witnesses?

MR. AMESBURY: We are not, Your Honor.
I have discussed this with Mr. Thomas, and at this
point, he's not electing to testify.

THE COURT: Any ardguments?

MS. LOWRY: Waive any opening, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: Counsel?
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MR. AMESBURY: Your Honor, basically,
as to Count No. IV, I think it's been established
today that was around Christmas of 1%%3. Count V
was around May of '94. Given the nature of these
offenses and the fact that at least in the incidents
of 1993 we're looking at four years, I think the
statute would apply as to Count IV, as well as
Count V.

additionally -—-

THE COURT: Counsel, what is the
statute of limitations?

MR. AMESBURY: Three or four years.

MS. LOWRY: Well, it's four years, but
these charges were -- the activated warrant was May
of '97, so --

THE COURT: That's when the case was
filed for the Complaint.

MS. LOWRY: There's special
provisions for -- sexual crimes fall under secret
offenses and the time it's told until the kids tell.

MR. AMESBURY: I don't think that it
would be a secret offense.

THE COURT: Doesn't make any
difference. The time of the told as the filing of

the Complaint to begin with, and all looks like
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within four years.

MR. AMESBURY: I beg to differ. I
think the statute is very specific from the act and
whether there's a claim of secret offense.

All the girls testified, or at
least Lakeisha or Ericka at the time testified she
told her mom on or around, if I'm not mistaken here,
about the same time as the incident.

MS. LOWRY: T think what the Court is
saying, we don't even have to go there if we're
within the regular statute of limitations to begin
with, which we are.

MR. AMESBURY: I mean, the statute, if
the State's position is the statute runs when they
file the complaint, not from the incident, I think
that's contrary to the law.

THE CQURT: No. Well, how else? What
other yardstick would you use if you don't use the
Complaint as the yardstick? The back end of the
yardstick to comply with the statute, the telling?
Otherwise, it's the arraignment date, preliminary
hearing date, trial date. I think it's the filing
of the Complaint.

MR. AMESBURY: Well, I mean, you know,

here's a guy that's been -~ we're talking about
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four-plus Years. This goes on forever.

THE COURT: T understand that. I
understand your argument. But then You have a
different kind of argument. You have, first of
all --

MR. AMESBURY:; Prearraignment delay.

THE COURT: -- pretrial delay, a
different kind of rights that are involved. The
statute of limitations itself as an argument is
complied with when the State files the Complaint
within the tipe period set by the statute of
limitations, which appears here, that it is within a
time periocd of the statute of limitations, assuming
it's a four-year statute of limitations.

Other than that, you may have
some other arguments in regards to the
pPrearraignment or pretrial delay. But I don't think
the statute of limitations is your argument just
because we are just now getting to a preliminary
hearing.

MR. AMESBURY: Well, with that, I will
go ahead and subnmit it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: A1l right. Submit it?

MS. LOWRY: Yes.

THE COURT: Appears to the court from
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the Complaint on file and the evidence adduced at
this preliminary hearing that crimes were committed,
they are all the same charges, Counts I, II, IIX, IV
and V, Lewdness With a Child Under the Age of 14,
and there appears to bhe sufficient cause to believe
the defendant named herein, Darrell Thomas,
committed the offenses, I hereby order this
defendant to be held to answer the charges in the
Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of
Nevada, in and for the County of Clark.
This is a Department V case.

THE CLERK: Next appearance date is
January 5th at 9:00 a.m. in Department V.

THE CQURT: Mr. Thomas, the clerk here
will prepare a slip with the date and department
number on it. Make sure you stay in contact with

your attorney.

ATTEST: FULL, TRUE AND ACCURATE TRANSCRIPT
OF PROCEEDINGS.

"\Qufmgwﬂ

DIANA M. GREEN, C.C.R. No. 264
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 1998, 9:00 A.M.

THE COURT: Dave, what do you have?

MR. AMESBURY: Page 25, Darrell Thomas, sentencing.

THE COURT: Does the Department have anything to add?

MR. SCOTT: No, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Do you have that file, Laura?

MS. REHFELDT: Darrell Thomas?

THE COURT: Yeah.

MS. REHFELDT: Yes, | do.

THE COURT: You have the right to argue. Do you wish to be heard?

MS. REMFELDT: I'd just like to note that P and P does recommend prabation.
The defendant doesn’t appear to have a record. And the psychologist alsa
recommends prohation. |'d submit it.

THE COURT: Mr. Thomas, despite what is fecommended, | have serjous
questions about whether you should go to jail, What would you like to say?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm in counseling at the moment.

THE COURT: Why are you in counseling and then you deny you did anything
wrong?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, because that's my assurance in order for me to get
the recommendation through them for the signed report. After explaining to them the
situation—the whole thing--

THE COURT: Well, what I'm saying is what good is counseling going to do
when you say you didn't do anything?

THE DEFENDANT: That's what they recommended and--

THE COURT: Okay. So, | mean, to me it doesn‘t say anything--

THE DEFENDANT: ~to back out--

THE COURT: --of benefit in terms of you being on the streets that you're

2
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going to counseling when you indicate that you haven’t done anything wrong that
deserves counseling, What | say is: do you want to tell me anything as to why |
shouldn’t put you in jail?

THE DEFENDANT: (inaudible)}

MR. AMESBURY: Well, you know, Your Honor, this--

THE COURT: Well, of course you're nervous. Why don't you take a minute

to compose your thoughts.
What would you like to say, Dave?

MR. AMESBURY: Okay, you know, Your Honor, you know, you've obviously
been--longer than | have. But, | mean, to go, basically five serious felony counts to
an Alford decision on a gross misdemeanor, | think says a lot about this case. |
mean, Mr. Thomas--all the allegations here were in a group setting. There was
unconsentual touching. Some of the allegations go back to four or five years. Had
this case gone to trial, we would have brought in evidence of some other motivation
mainly involving the parents and some friction with Mr. Thomas.

Considering the possibility of trial, we negotiated the case in good faith.
Mr. Thomas understands that some of the conduct may not necessarily be condoned
by society, but within the small setting within his community, it's somewhat
acceptable. | mean, if you're looking at kissing, you know, you're looking at a pat
on the buit—-

THE COURT: Well, that's not what led to the criminal charges, the kissing.
It's the fondling.

MR. AMESBURY: Yeah, a little fondling, that's correct, Your Honor. He
understands that. We feel with a little counseling, | think—hope the Court would
consider the fact that he is a minister. He is with the church here. He's basically the
inspirational leader of these people. There are safeguards in this community and

within this church that something like this will never happen again. The conditions
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themselves, | feel are rather strict: he can't attend a movie theater where minors may
be present. He can‘t conduct his livelihood. | feel these are--you know, we're
touching on some constitutional rights here.

THE COURT: We sure are. I'm not sure that condition 11 is even
constitutional.

MR. AMESBURY: | understand that, Your Honor. But, | was hoping you
would consider some of these conditions because, again, he is a minister, a man of
the clath. | understand they're very serious allegations-—-

THE COURT: If he weren't, | don’t think he would have had the position of
trust that would have led him to do what he's alleged to have done in these cases.

MR. AMESBURY: Well, you know, cases are filed for whatever reason all the
time. And, again, with the five serious felony counts, we go to an Alford plea to a
gross misdemeanor. I'm just asking for the Court’s consideration in this case.

| believe that counseling, a fine is appropriate.

THE COURT: Well, the counseling, though, Mr. AMESBURY, is fine for people
who say, “Gee, | have a problem. | want to work on it.” He's saying, “I didn't do
anything wrong. | didn‘t even fondle these kids. it's all just a vendetta against me.”

'm going to sentence you to one year in the Clark County Detention
Center. |I'm going to suspend this, place you on a fixed period of probation, three
years in length.

The conditions of your probation will be those 13 that appear on pages
7 and 8 of the report as if | had set them forth fully here in court today. 1'm going
to eliminate sub-section 1 as | think it's violative of your rights under the first
amendment. | can't see how you can be prohibited from going to church while
you're on probation.

There will be a fourteenth special condition. | don't see it in here. And

that condition will be that you'll do 100 hours of community service during the fife
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of your—excuse me—16 hours of community service during the fife of your probation
per month until you run into the statutory maximum. And a fifteenth special
condition that you be on house arrest during the period of probation for an
indeterminate time to be determined by the Department.

You'll be credited with the one day you've already done.

1 thought an awful lot about your case, Mr. Thomas, not because | think
putting you in jail for a year would protect the community, but that you, if you did
these things--and | guess I'm cynical enough to believe you probably did, despite the
Alford plea—I've certainly thought, just as a matter of punishment, of putting you in
jail for a year.

Very often if people violate their probation there’s dishonorable
discharges and other things rather than doing the time. If you have any significant
infraction of your probation and | remember you--and | think | will--my inclination
would be not to do anything short of just giving you the year.

So, good luck under the conditions that are set, in completing your
probation successfully. Thank you.

* ® % ¥

ATTEST: | do hereby certify that 1 have truly and correctly transcribed
the sound recording of the proceedings in the above case.

ij %
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, COURT RECORDER <~
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

"THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
. ) (791
Plaintff, ) DISTRICT COURT CASE NO. .
)
=y — )
)
__DARRELL. BFRNARD THOMAS ) JUSTICE COURT CASE NO. 97£07543X
)
)
)
)
Defendznt(s). )

RECEIVED OF JUSTICE COURT THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:
JUSTICE COURT PROCEEDINGS AND DOCUMENTS.

(2479
DATED: LORETTA BOWMAN, Couaty Clerk
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By
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' PAGE: 001 ‘ MINUTES DATE: 01/05/98
CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

97-C-147517-C STATE OF NEVADA vs Thomas, Darrell B

01/05/98 09:00 AM 00 INITIAL ARRATGNMENT
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO, Court Clerk

BILLIE JO CRAIG/BJC, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA ¥
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura C. ¥
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B Y
003889 Amesbury, David cC. )4
DEFENDANT THOMAS ARRATGNED, PLED NOT GUILTY AND WAIVED THE STIXTY DAY RULE.
COURT ORDERED, matter set for trial. Upon Mr. Amesbury’s request, COURT
GRANTED 21 days from the filing of the transcript for a writ.
O.R.
5/12/98 9:00 A.M. CALENDAR CALL
5/18/98 10:00 A.M. JURY TRIAL
02/10/98 09:00 AM 00 DEFT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORFPUS
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO, Court Clerk
JENNIFER LOTT/31l, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder
PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura C. Y
001 Pl Thomas, Darrell B N
003889 Amesbury, David c. ¥
Mr. Amesbury spoke with the State, and they need more time to answer; they
received the writ yesterday (2/9/98). COUR?T ORDERED, briefing schedule is
as follows, State’s answer 3/3/98...Defenge response 3/17/98.
O.R.
3/26/98 9:00 AM DECISION
CONTINUED TO: 03/26/98 09:00 AM 01
PRINT DATE: 02/11/98 PAGE: 001 MINUTES DATE: 02/10/98
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’ PAGE: 001 ' MINUTES DATE: 01/05/98
CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

97-C-147517~-C STATE OF NEVADA vs_Thomas, Darrell B

01/05/98 09:00 AM 00 INITYAL ARRATGNMENT
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO, Court Clerk

BILLIE JO CRAIG/BJC, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura C. ¥
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B Y
003889 BAmesbury, David C. ¥
DEFENDANT THOMAS ARRATGNED, PLED NOT GUILTY AND WAIVED THE SIXTY DAY RULE.
COURT ORDERED, matter set for trial. Upon Mr. Amesbury’s request, COURT
GRANTED 21 days from the filing of the transcript for a writ.
0.R.
5/12/98 9:00 A.M. CALENDAR CALL
5/18/98 10:00 A.M. JURY TRIAL
02/10/98 09:00 AM 00 DEFT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO, Court Clerk
JENNIFER LOTT/jl, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder
PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA ¥
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura C. ¥
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B N
003889 Amesbury, David C. 4

Mr. Amesbury spcke with the State, and they need nmore time to answer; they
received the writ yesterday (2/9/98). COURT ORDERED, briefing schedule is
as follows, State’s answer 3/3/98...Defense response 3/17/98.

0.R.

3/26/98 9:00 AM DECISION

CONTINUED TO: 03/26/98 09:00 AM 01

CONTINUED ON PAGE: 002
PRINT DATE: 03/26/98 PAGE: 001 MINRUTES DATE: 02/10/98
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PAGE: 002 Q MINUTES DATE: 03/26/98
CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

97-C-147517-C STATE OF NEVADA vs Thomas, Darrell B
CONTINUED FROM PAGE: 001

03/26/98 09:00 AM 00 ALL PENDING MOTIONS 3/26/98
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO /AC, Court Clerk

JENNIFER LOTT, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA 4
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura cC. Y
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B N
003889 amesbury, David C. Y
DEFENDANT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABERS CORPUS . . . STATE’S MOTION TO
DISMISS DEFENDANT’S PRETRIAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
COURT ORDERED, matter continued for the Court to review.
O.Rl
CONTINUED TO: 4/2/98 9:00 AM
04/02/98 09:00 AM 00 ALL PENDING MOTIONS 4/2/98
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO/AC, Court Clerk
JENNIFER LOTT, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder
PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
003501 ILowry, Teresa ¥
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B N
003882 Amesbury, David C. b4

DEFENDANT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS . . . STATE’S MOTION TO
DISMISS DEFENDANT’S PRETRIAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

CONFERENCE AT BENCH. Court directed Mr. ameshury to file a Reply by 4/13/98
and matter continued. court stated there will be no oral argument.

O.R.

CONTINUED TO: 4/16/98 9:00 AM

CONTINUED ON PAGE: 003
PRINT DATE: 04/16/98 PAGE: 002 MINUTES DATE: 04/02/98

AA2385



° PAGE: 003 ‘ MINUTES DATE: 04/16/98
CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

97-C-147517-C STATE OF NEVADA vs Thomas, Darrell B
CONTINUED FROM PAGE: 002

04/16/98 09:00 AM 00 ALL PENDING MOTIONS 4/16/98
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO/ac, Court Clerk

JENNIFER LOTT, Relief Clerlk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
000981 HNoxon, Arthur G. Y
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura C. Y
DEFENDAKRT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORBUS . . . STATE’S MOTION TO
DISMISS DEFENDANT’S PRETRIAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
COURT ORDERED, MATTER CONTINUED for the Court’s decision.
CLERK’S NOTE: Clerk telephconed Michelle at Mr. Amesbury’s office and advised
continuance date. ac
04/23/98 09:00 AM 00 ALL PENDING MOTIONS 4/23/98
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO/AC, Court Clerk
JENNIFER LOTT, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder
PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA b4
004630 Hendricks, Craig L. Y

DEFENDANT’S PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS . . . STATE’S MOTION TO
DISMISS DEFENDANT'S PRETRIAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

COURT ORDERED, WRIT IS DERIED; FURTHER, THE STATE’S MOTION TO DISMISS IS
ALSO DENIED. FURTHER, TRIAL DATE STANDS.

O0.R.

(CC 5/7/98)

CONTINUED ON PAGE: 004
PRINT DATE: 05/08/98 PAGE: 003 MINUTES DATE: 04/23/98
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’ PAGE: 004 MINUTES DATE: 05/07/98

CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

97-C-147517-C STATE OF NEVADA vs Thomas, Darrell B
CONTINUED FROM PAGE: 003

05/07/98 09:00 AM 00 CALENDAR CALL
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Scbel, Judge; Dept. 5
OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO, Court Clerk
JENNIFER IOTT /jl, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA
003901 Lowry, Teresa

001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B
003889 Amesbury, David cC.

KK K

Mr, Amesbury requested a continuance for negotiations. COURT ORDERED, TRIAL
DATE is VACATED, and matter set for status check and to reset trial date.

0.R.

5/18/98 9:00 AM STATUS CHECK: NEGOTIATIONS / RESET TRIAL DATE

05/18/98 09:00 AM 00 STATUS CHECK: NEGOTIATIONS / RESET TRIAL
DATE

HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5

OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO/AC, Court Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
004630 Hendricks, Craig L. Y

COURT ORDERED, MATTER CONTINUED FOR DEFENDANT AND MR. AMESBURY TO BE
PRESENT.

CLERK’S NOTE: Clerk telephoned Michelle at Mr. Amesbury’s office and advised
continuance date and requested defendant be notified to be present.

0.R.

CONTINUED TO: 06/04/958 09:00 AM 01

CONTINUED ON PAGE: 005
PRINT DATE: 06/05/98 PAGE: 004 MINUTES DATE: 05/18/98
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PAGE: 005 MINUTES DATE: 06/04/98
CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

87-C-147517-C STATE OF NEVADA vs_Thomas, Darrell B
CONTINUED FROM PAGE: 004

06/04/98 0900 AM 01 STATUS CHECK: NEGOTIATIONS/RESET TRIAL
DATE

HEARD BY: Jeffrey Schel, Judge; Dept. 5

OFFICERS: ALONA CANDITO, Court Clerk
SHARON COFFMAN/SC, Relief Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWAT,SKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA
000981 NMoxon, Arthur g,

001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B
C03889 Rmesbury, David c.

KK

AMENDED INFORMATION AND GUILTY PLEA AGREEMENT FILED IN OPEN COURT.
NEGOTIATIONS: Defendant will plead pursuant to Alford and the State retains
the right to drgue. DEFENDANT THOMAS ARRAIGNED AND PLED GUILTY TO OPEN OR

GROSS LEWDNESS (GM)}. Court accepted plea, referrad matter to P & P and
ORDERED set for sentencing.

O.R.
7/320/98 9:00 AM SENTENCING

07/30/98 09:00 AM g0 SENTENCING
HEARD RY: Jeffrey Scbel, Judge; Dept, 5

DARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA
000981 Noxon, Arthur G.

001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B
003889 Amesbury, David c.

KK WK

Mr. Amesbury has not received report From Dr. Glovinsky yet and requested
three (3) week continuance. Court inquired why defendant did not see doctor
last Tuesday. Defendant indicated he was not evaluated sooner due to
insurance Purposes. COURT ORDERED, matter continued.

O.R.

CONTINUED TO: 09/01/98 09:00 AM 01

CONTINUED ON PAGE: 006
PRINT DATE: 09/15/98 PAGE: 005 MINUTES DATE: 07/30/98
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PAGE: 006 MINUTES DATE: 08/14/98
CRIMINAL COURT MINUTES

897-C~-147517-C STATE OF NEVADA va Thomas, Darrell B
CONTINUED FROM PAGE: 005

09/14/98 09:00 AM 02 SENTENCING
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept. 5

OFFICERS: JANICE HAMPTON, Court Clerk
SHIRLEE PRAWALSKY, Reporter/Recorder

PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
006163 Weckerly, Pamela C. Y
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B Y
003889 Amesbury, David C. Y
Mr. Amesbury provided the Court with the Psychiatric Evaluation. COURT
ORDERED, matter CONTINUED.
0.R.
CONTINUED TO: 09/17/98 03:00 AM 03
09/17/98 09:00 AM 03 SENTENCING
HEARD BY: Jeffrey Sobel, Judge; Dept, 5
OFFICERS: JANICE HAMPTON, Court Clerk
ARLENE BLAZI, Reporter/Recorder
PARTIES: STATE OF NEVADA Y
005101 Rehfeldt, Laura C. Y
001 D1 Thomas, Darrell B Y
003889 Aamesbury, David C. Y

Representing P&P Larry Scott present. Pursuant to Deft's guilty plea COURT
ADJUDGED DEFT. GUILTY OF OPEN OR GROSS LEWDNESS (GM). Statements in
mitigations of sentence. COURT ORDERED, in addition to the $25.00
Administrative Assessment fee, DEFT. THOMAS SENTENCED to serve ONE (1) YEAR
in the Clark County Detention Center, SUSPENDED; placed on a FIXED THREE (3)
YEARS. CONDITIONS:

1) Search for the detection of pornography and/or child pornography.

2) Pay $90.00 restitution during the first 60 days of probation.

3) Not accept a paid and/or volunteer position as an Ordanined Minister
and/or Pastor with any Church and/or Religious organization unless it has
been approved by the parole and probation officer assigned to the Deft, as
well as, the Church Board of Directors.

4) Participate in and complete pregrams of professional counseling, as
deemed necessary.

5) Submit to periodic tests to determine whether the Deft. is using a
contrelled substance and ubmit teo periodic polygraphic examinations, as

CONTINUED ON PAGE: 007
PRINT DATE: 09/23/98 PAGE: 006 MINUTES DATE: 09/17/98
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